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Exhibit 1

. AGNA

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of Magna International Inc. (the
“Corporation”} will be held at the Main Stage Theatre, The Toronto Centre for the Arts, 5040 Yonge Street,
Toronto (North York), Ontario, Canada, on Thursday, May 9, 2002, commencing at 10:00 a.m. (Toronto time)
for the following purposes:

(@) To receive the Annual Report, including the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation for the
financial year ended December 31, 2001 and the Auditor’s Report thereon;

To elect directors;

T

To re-appoint the Auditor and authorize the directors to fix the Auditor’s remuneration; and

—
o
-~

To transact such further or other business or matters as may properly come before the meeting or any
adjournment(s) or postponement(s) thereof.

e

Only shareholders of record at the close of business on March 25, 2002 will be entitled to notice of the
meeting.

The Annual Report containing the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation, a Management
Information Circular/Proxy Statement and a form of proxy are enclosed with this Notice of Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. The Management Information Circular/Proxy Statement provides additional information
concerning the matters to be dealt with at the meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors.

J. BRIAN COLBURN
Secretary

April 1, 2002
Aurora, Ontario

Note: |f you are unable to be present at the meeting in person, please fill in, date and sign the enclosed proxy and return it to the
Secretary of the Corporation in the enclosed envelope.




SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

Proposals of shareholders intended to be presented at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held in
calendar 2003 must be received by the Corporation at its principal executive offices for inclusion in its
management information circular/proxy statement on or before March 7, 2003.

OTHER MATTERS

Management is not aware of any amendments or variations to matters identified in the Notice or of any
other matters that are to be presented for action to the Meeting other than those described in the Notice.

Information stated in this Circular is dated as at March 28, 2002 except where otherwise indicated. The
contents and the mailing of this Circular have been approved by the Board.

Belinda Stronach J. Brian Colburn
President and Secretary
Chief Executive Officer

The Corporation files an annual information form with the Ontario Securities Commission and,
under a Form 40-F, with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. A copy of the most
recent annual information form, this Circular and the Annual Report containing the financial statements
of the Corporation and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial
Condition, will be sent to any person upon request in writing addressed to the Secretary at the
Corporation’s principal executive offices set out in this Circular. Such copies will be sent to any
shareholder without charge.
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A\.\ MAGNA CLASS A SUBORDINATE VOTING SHARES
= PROXY

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED BY AND ON BEHALF OF
THE MANAGEMENT OF THE CORPORATION

The undersigned shareholder of Magna International Inc. (the “Corpoeration’) hereby appoints
Frank Stronach, or failing him Belinda Stronach, or failing her Brian Colburn, or instead of any of them
as the proxyholder of the undersigned, with full power of substitution, in respect of all the Class A Subordinate
Voting Shares of the Corporation held by the undersigned, to attend at, and to act and vote on behalf of the
undersigned in respect of all matters that may come before, the Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of
the Corporation on May 9, 2002 and any and all adjournments or postponements thereof, and, without
limiting the general authority conferred by this proxy, the undersigned hereby specifically directs such
proxyholder as follows:

(@) To vote FOR J or ABSTAIN [ in respect of the election of
William G. Davis, William H. Fike, Manfred Gingl, Edward C.
Lumley, Karlheinz Muhr, Gerhard Randa, Donald Resnick,
Royden R. Richardson, Belinda Stronach, Frank Stronach, Franz
Vranitzky and Siegfried Wolf as directors {to withhold your vote
from any individual nominee strike a line through the
nominee’s name),

{b) Tovote FOR [J or ABSTAIN [ in respect of the re-appointment of
the Auditor, and

(c) Tovote FOR O or ABSTAIN [J from authorizing the directors to fix
the Auditor’'s remuneration.

This proxy confers discretionary authority to vote on
amendments or variations to the matters identified in the Notice of
Annual Meeting of Shareholders and on all other business or
matters as may properly come before the meeting or any
adjournments or postponements thereof.

The proxyholder will vote FOR the election of the management
nominees for the office of director, FOR the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young LLP as the Auditor of the Corporation and FOR
authorizing the directors to fix the Auditor’s remuneration, where a
choice for each such matter is not specified in this proxy.

The undersigned confirms the express wish that this document
and the documents relating hereto including the Management
Information Circular/Proxy Statement be in English only. Le
soussigné confirme sa volonté expresse que ce document et les
documents se rattachant a la presente, y compris la circulaire
d’information et de procuration de la direction soient rédigés en
anglais seulement.

The undersigned hereby revokes any proxy previously given.

Date ... e 2002

Signature . . ... . e e S

NOTES:

1. This proxy must be signed by the shareholder or his attorney duly authorized
in writing.

2. If the shareholder is a corporation, this proxy must be executed by an officer or
attorney thereof duly authorized in writing.

3. Please date this proxy. If not dated, it shall be deemed to be dated the day on whichiit
is mailed.

4. A shareholder has the right to appoint a person to attend and to act for him on
his behalf at the meeting other than the management nominees named above.
Such right may be exercised by striking out the names of Mr. Frank Stronach,
Ms. Belinda Stronach and Mr. Brian Colburn and inserting in the space provided the
name of the person to be appointed, who need not be a shareholder of the
Corporation, or by completing another proper form of proxy.

If your address as shown is incorrect please give your correct address when
returning this proxy.




MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CIRCULAR/PROXY STATEMENT

This Management Information Circular/Proxy Statement (the “Circular”) is furnished to shareholders of
Magna International Inc. (the “Corporation” or “Magna’”) in connection with the solicitation by and on behalf
of the management of the Corporation of proxies to be used at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the
“Meeting”) of the Corporation to be held at the Main Stage Theatre, The Toronto Centre for the Arts,
5040 Yonge Street, Toronto (North York), Ontario, Canada, on Thursday, May 9, 2002, commencing at -
10:00 a.m. (Toronto time), and at any.adjournment(s) or postponement(s) thereof, for the purposes set forth in
the attached Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “Notice”).

This Circular, the Notice and the accompanying form(s) of proxy are first being mailed to shareholders of
the Corporation on or about April 4, 2002. The Corporation will bear all costs associated with the preparation
and mailing of this Circular, the Notice and the accompanying form(s) of proxy as well as the cost of the
solicitation of proxies. The soficitation will be primarily by mail; however, officers and regular employees of the
Corporation may also directly solicit proxies (but will not receive additional compensation for such activities)
personally, by telephone, by telefax or by other means of electronic transmission. Banks, brokerage houses
and other custodians and nominees or fiduciaries will be requested to forward proxy solicitation material to
their principals and to obtain authorizations for the execution of proxies and will be reimbursed for their
reasonable expenses in doing so.

The Corporation adopted the United States dollar as its reporting currency effective December 31, 1998.
All amounts referred to in this Circular are presented in United States dollars, unless otherwise noted. In
addition, in December 1998, the Corporation’s shareholders approved the change in its fiscal or financial year
end from July 31 to December 31. Accordingly, in this Circular fiscal 2001 refers to the fiscal or financial year
running from January 1, 2001 to December 31, 2001, fiscal 2000 refers to the fiscal or financial year running
from January 1, 2000 to December 31, 2000 and fiscal 1993 refers to the fiscal or financial year running from
January 1, 1999 to December 31, 1999.

APPOINTMENT AND REVOCATION OF PROXIES

The persons named in the accompanying form(s) of proxy are officers of the Corporation. A shareholder
has the right to appoint a person (who need not be a shareholder of the Corporation) as nominee to
attend and act for and on such shareholder’s behalf at the Meeting other than the management
nominees named in the accompanying form(s) of proxy. This right may be exercised either by striking out
the names of the management nominees where they appear on the front of the form of proxy and by inserting
in the blank space provided the name of the other person the shareholder wishes to appoint as proxyholder, or
by completing, signing and submitting another proper form of proxy naming such other person as
proxyholder.

A shareholder who has given a proxy, in addition to revocation in any other manner permitted by
applicable Canadian law, may revoke the proxy within the time periods described in this Circular by an
instrument in writing executed by the shareholder or by his/her attorney authorized in writing or, if the
shareholder is a body corporate, by a duly authorized officer or attorney thereof.

Shareholders desiring to be represented at the Meeting by proxy or to revoke a proxy previously given,
must deposit their form of proxy or revocation of proxy at one of the following locations: (i) the principal
executive offices of the Corporation at 337 Magna Drive, Aurora, Ontario, Canada L4G 7K1; (i) the offices of
Computershare Trust Company of Canada, 100 University Avenue, Sth Floor, Toronto, Ontario, Canada
M5J 2Y1, addressed to the Secretary of the Corporation; or (iii) the offices of Computershare Trust
Company, Inc., 350 Indiana Street, Suite 800, Golden, Colorado, USA 80401 (mailing address P.O. Box 1596,
Denver, Colorado, USA 80201}, addressed to the Secretary of the Corporation; at any time up to and including
the last business day preceding the day of the Meeting, or any adjournment(s) or postponement(s) thereof, at
which the proxy is to be used. If a shareholder who has completed a proxy attends the Meeting in person, any
votes cast by such shareholder on a poll will be counted and the proxy will be disregarded unless the
shareholder specifically requests that the proxy be counted for such poll.




VOTING OF PROXIES

The shares represented by any valid proxy in favour of the management nominees named in the
accompanying form(s) of proxy will be voted for or withheid from voting (abstain) on the election of
directors, the re-appointment of the Auditor and the authorization of the directors to fix the
remuneration of the Auditor, in accordance with any specifications or instructions made by a
shareholder on the form of proxy. In the absence of any such specifications or instructions, such shares
will be voted FOR the election as directors of the management nominees named in this Circular, FOR
the re-appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as Auditor and FOR the authorization of the directors to fix the
Auditor’s remuneration.

The accompanying form(s) of proxy confers discretionary authority upon the persons named therein with
respect to amendments or variations to matters identified in the Notice and with respect to such other
business or matters which may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournments or postponements
thereof. As of the date of this Circular, the Corporation is not aware of any other matter to be addressed at the
Meeting.

RECORD DATE

The board of directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) has fixed the close of business on March 25, 2002
as the record date (the “Record Date”) for the Meeting. Only holders of record of Class A Subordinate Voting
Shares and Class B Shares at the close of business on the Record Date are entitled to receive notice of and to
attend and vote at the Meeting except that, in accordance with applicable law, a transferee of Class A
Subordinate Voting Shares or Class B Shares acquired after the Record Date shall be entitled to vote at the
Meeting if such transferee produces properly endorsed share certificates or otherwise establishes ownership
of such shares and has demanded in writing not later than ten days before the day of the Meeting that the
name of such transferee be included in the list of shareholders entitled to vote at the Meeting.

VOTING SECURITIES AND THEIR PRINCIPAL HOLDERS

As at the Record Date there were issued and outstanding 82,518,318 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares.
Holders of Class A Subordinate Voting Shares as at the time of taking any vote on the date of the Meeting are
entitied to cast one (1) vote per Class A Subordinate Voting Share held by them on each matter to be acted on
at the Meeting.

As at the Record Date there were issued and outstanding 1,096,509 Class B Shares. Holders of Class B
Shares as at the time of taking any vote on the date of the Meeting are entitled to cast 500 votes per Class B
Share held by them on each matter to be acted on at the Meeting.

The following table sets forth information with respect to the only shareholders known to the directors or
officers of the Corporation to own beneficially, directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction over, more
than ten per cent (10%) of the issued and outstanding Class A Subordinate Voting Shares or Class B Shares of
the Corporation, as at the Record Date:

Number Percentage

Class of Shares  of Shares of Class
Stronach Trust .. ... . . . i Class B 726,629(1) 66.27%
Magna Deferred Profit Sharing Plan (Canada). . .............. Class B 111,444  10.16%

(1) These Class B Shares are held by 445327 Ontario Limited, ali of whose shares are directly owned by the Stronach Trust.
Mr. Frank Stronach, the Chairman of the Corporation, Ms. Belinda Stronach, the President and Chief Executive Officer and a director
of the Corporation, Mr. Andrew Stronach, an officer of the Corporation, and one other member of their family are the trustees of the
Stronach Trust. Mr. F. Stronach, Ms. Stronach and Mr. A. Stronach are also three of the members of the class of potential beneficiaries
of the Stronach Trust.




MINUTES OF PRIOR ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The minutes of the Annual and Special Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation heid on May 17, 2001
will be submitted to the shareholders at the Meeting. Any vote taken by the shareholders with respect to these
minutes will not constitute approval or disapproval of any of the matters referred to in such minutes.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board will submit to the shareholders at the Meeting the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Corporation for the financial year ended December 31, 2001 and the Auditor’'s Report thereon, but no vote by
the shareholders with respect thereto is required or proposed to be taken. The Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report are included in the Corporation’s 2001 Annual Report which is being mailed
to shareholders with the Notice and this Circular.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Election of Directors

Under the Articles of the Corporation, the Board is to consist of a minimum of five (5) and a maximum of
fiteen (15} directors. A special resolution passed by the shareholders of the Corporation on September 17,
1992 authorized the directors to determine the number of directors of the Corporation from time to time.
Pursuant to that resolution, the number of directors currently is set at thirteen (13) and will be reduced by the
Board to twelve (12) following the conclusion of the Meeting. The term of office of each director expires at the
time of the Meeting unless successors are not elected, in which case the directors remain in office until their
successors are elected by the shareholders of the Corporation.

Management proposes to nominate, and the persons named in the accompanying form(s) of proxy will
vote for (in the absence of specifications or instructions to abstain from voting on the proxy}, the election of the
twelve (12) persons whose names are set forth below, all of whom are now and have been directors for
the periods indicated, but will not vote for a greater number of persons than the number of nominees named in
the form of proxy. A shareholder may withhold his/her vote from any individual nominee by striking a line
through the particular nominee’s name in the form of proxy. Management does not contemplate that any
of the nominees will be unable to serve as a director. If, as a result of circumstances not now contemplated,
any nominee shall be unavailable to serve as a director, the proxy will be voted for the election of such other
person or persons as management may select. Each director elected will hold office until the next annual
meeting of shareholders of the Corporation, or until his/her respective successor is elected or appointed in
accordance with applicable law and the Corporation’s by-laws.

The following table sets forth information with respect to each of the management nominees for director,
including the number of the Class A Subordinate Voting Shares and Class B Shares of the Corporation, the
Class A Subordinate Voting Shares and Class B Shares of its public subsidiaries, Decoma International Inc.
(“‘Decoma’”), Intier Automotive Inc. (“Intier”) and Tesma International Inc. (“Tesma”), the Class A Subordinate
Voting Stock and Class B Stock of its public subsidiary Magna Entertainment Corp. (*“MEC”) and the
Exchangeable Shares (which are exchangeable into MEC Class A Subordinate Voting Stock) of MEC’s
subsidiary, MEC Holdings (Canada) Inc., beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or over which controf or
direction is exercised by each such nominee, as at the Record Date:




Intier

Tesma Decoma Class A
Class A Class A Class A MEC Class A Subordinste
Other Positions Subordinate i bordi inate Voting Voting
and Offices Voting Shares/ Class B Shares/ Voting Shares/ Voting Shares/ Stock or Exchangeable Shares/ Per
Presently Held PerCentof  PerCentof  PerCentof PerCentof  Shares/ Per Centof Cent of
Name of Nominee Age Director Since  With Comporation Principal Occupation Class Class Class Class Class Class
William G. Davis (1) (2} (3} . . . . . 72 June 6, 1985 None Counsel, "rorys 1,202 (4) oif 1,000 (4) nit 4700 (8)(12) nit
(Baristers and Solicitors) 47 (4(13)
Witliam H.Fike . . . ... . ... 65 June 5, 1995 None Consuttart and Corporate Director 5,955 (4) nil il 2,000 {4} 1,006 (4}(12) nil
Manfred Gingl . . . .. ... .. . 53 January 14, 2002 Vice- President and Chief Executive Officer, nil il 304,530 {4)() nil nil nil
Chairman Tesma International In¢. (Manufacturing)
Edward C. Lumley () . . . . . . . 62 December 7, 1989 None Vice- Chairman, BMO Nesbitt Bums 3,202 {4) nil 1,000 (4) 1,000 (4) 14,700 (4)(12} 2,288 {4)
{investment and Corporate Banking) 247 (4)(13)
Karheinz Muhr . . . . . . .. .. 45 March 8, 1999 None Chairman and Chiet Executive Officer, 943 (4) nil nil nil 15,000(4)(12) nil
Volaris Agvisors
{Risk and Asset Management)
Donald Resnick (1) (5} . . . . . . . 74 February 25, 1982 None Corporate Director- 1,202 {4) il nil 2,000 (4) 47 (4)(13) 1,000 {4)
Royden R. Richardson (1) (2) (8} . . 48 October 31, 1990 None President, RBQ Limited (Investments) 31,202 (4) nil nil nif 2,047 (4)(13) nil
GerhardRanda . . . . . . . ... 57 July 18, 1995 None Chaimman and Chief Executive Officer, 1,202 (4) il nil nil 47 (4)(12) nl
Bank Austria AG {Investment and
Corporate Banking)
Belinda Strorach . . . . .. . .. 35 December 8, 1988 Nene President and Chief Executive Officer of 300 (4)(7) nil (B(7)(8) nil (9) 2,300 (4)(10) 60 (4)(I1)(13)(14) il (15)
the Corporation
Frank Stomach . . . . . . . . .. 69 December 10, 1968 Chairman Partner, Stronach & Co {Consuttant) nit (7} 726,629/ nit (9) 14,938,149 5543,928/23.58% (11) nil (15)
ot the 66.27% (7)(8) 4185% (10)  504,223/28.55% (14)
Board
Franz Vranitzky . . . . . . .. .. 64 June 11, 1997 Nong Corporate Director 1,067 (4) nil nil il 20 (4){12) nil
Siegffied Wolf . . . . . ... .. 44 March 8, 1999 Vice- President and Chief Executive Officer, 10,000 {4} nil 1,000 (4) nil 2,000 (8)(12) 10,000 (4)

Chairman Magna Steyr (Manufacturing)
(1) Member of the Audit Committee.

{2} Member of the Human Resources and Compensation Committee.

(3) Lead Director of the Board of Directors.

{4) These shares represent less than 1% of the class.

(5) Member of the Environmental Committee.

{6) An associate of Ms. Stronach, the Stronach Trust, holds an aggregate of 726,629 Class B Shares.

(7) The Magna Deterred Profit Sharing Plan {Canada) {the "Canadian Plan") is an associate of Mr. F. Stronach which held 2,457,245 Class A Subardinate Voting Shares and 111,444 Class B Shares as at the Record Date. The trustee of the
Canadian Planis The Canada Trust Company, which has the power to vote the shares in the Canadian Plan; provided however, that Mr. F. Stronach as Chairman of the Corporation retains the right to direct the trustee in regard to voting and
disposing of the shares in such Plan. The Employees Deterred Profit Sharing Plan (U.S) (the “U.S. Plan”} is an associate of Mr. F. Stronach and Ms. Stronach, who are two of three trustees of the U.S. Plan, which held 1,458,973 Class A
Subordinate Voting Shares as at the Record Date. Mr. F. Stronach and Ms. Stranach were not and are not beneficiaries of either Plan. 865714 Ontario Inc. (“865714") was incorporated to provide a continuing separate vehicle for the
acquisition of Magna shares and the sale thereof to members of Magna management. Pursuant to a unanimous shareholder agreement, Magna has the right to direct 865714 in regard to disposing of any Magna shares held by 865714,
M. F. Stronach and Ms. Stronach were not and are not shareholders of 865714. 865714 also owns 91,740 Class B Shares. Taking into account the Magna shares held by the Canadian Plan, the U.S. Plan and 865714, as applicable, as at the
Record Date, Mr. F. Stronach and Ms. Stronach (through the Stronach Trust, an associate of both Mr. F. Stronach and Ms, Stronach) and these associates control approximately 74.33% of the votes carried by the Class A Subordinate Voting
Shares and Class B Shares in the case of Mr. . Stronach and approximately 85.10% of the votes in the case of Ms. Stronach.

(8) These Class B Shares are held by 445327 Ontario Limited, all of whase shares are directly owned by an associate of Mr. F. Stronach and Ms. Stronach, the Stronach Trust. Mr. F. Stronach, Ms. Stronach and Mr. A. Stronach and one other
member of their family are the trustees of the Stronach Trust. Mr. F. Stronach, Ms. Stronach and Mr. A. Stronach are also three of the members of the class of potential beneficiaries of the Stronach Trust,

{9) 284,466 of the Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Tesma hetd by Mr. Gingl are owned by Wahlheim Capital Inc., a company controlled by Mr. Gingl. In addition, 1,441,389 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Tesma are heid by the Tesma
U.S. and Canadian Deferred Profit Sharing Plans (the “Tesma DPSPs™). Through his position as the Presidert of Tesma, Mr. Ging! retains the right to direct the trustees of the Tesma DPSPs In regards to voting and disposing of such shares.
The trustees, absent any direction from M. Gingl, have the right to vate the shares. Mr. Gingl is not a beneficiary under the Tesma DPSPs. With respect to the ownership of Tesma shares by Mr. F. Stronach and Ms. Stronach, this does not
include the Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Tesma issuable on conversion by the Corporation of its 14,223,900 directly and indirectly owned Class B Shares of Tesma. The Corporation in turn is controlled by the Stronach Trust, an
associate of Mr. F. Stronach and Ms. Stronach.

(10) 14,838,149 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Decoma are owned directly and indirectly by the Corporation, which in tum is controlled by the Stronach Trust, an assaciate of Mr. £. Stronach and Ms. Stronach. This figure excludes the
Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Decoma issuable on conversion by the Corporation of its 31,909,091 directly and indirectly owned Class B Shares and of its Convertible Series Preferred Shases of Decoma.

{11) 1,181,600 shares of Class A Subordinate Voting Stock of MEC are indirectly owned by The Edalweiss Trust, in which members of Mr. F. Stronach’s family may become beneficially interested after his death. 4,362,328 shares of Class A
Subordinate Vating Stock of MEC are owned directly by the Corporation, which in tum is controlled by the Stronach Trust, an associate of Mr. F. Stronach and Ms, Stronach. The U.S. Plan, which is an associate of Mr. F. Stronach and
Ms. Stronach, aiso owns 206,428 shares of Class A Subordinate Voting Stock of MEC. This figure excludes the Class A Subordinate Voting Stock of MEC issuable on conversion by the Corporation of fts 58,466,056 directly and indirectly
owned shares of Class B Stock of MEC. Taking into account the shares of MEC held by the U.S. Plan, Mr. F. Stronach and Ms. Stronach (through the Stronach Trust, an associate of Mr. F. Stronach and Ms. Stronach) and these associates
control approximately 24.46% of the Class A Subordinate Voting Stock of MEC in the case of Mr. . Stronach and approximately 19.43% of the Class A Subordinate Voting Stock of MEC in the case of Ms. Stronach.

(12) MEC Class A Subordinate Voting Stock,
{13) MEC Holdings {Canada) Inc. Exchangeable Shares.

-{14) 144,965 Exchangeable Shares of MEC Holdings (Canada) In¢. are owned by the Stronach Trust, an associate of Mr. F. Stronach and Ms. Stronach. The Canadian Plan, which is an associate of Mr. F. Stronach, also owns 440,910
Exchangeable Shares of MEC Holdings (Canada) Inc. 865714 {whose relationship with Mr. F. Stronach and Ms. Stronach is described above) also owns 18,348 Exchangeable Shares of MEC Holdings (Canada) Inc.

(15) This does not include the Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Intier issuable on conversion by the Corporation of its 42,751,938 directly and indirectly owned Class B Shares and of its Convertible Series Preferred Shares of Intier.

All of the management nominees other than Mr. Manfred Gingl were elected to their present terms of
office by the shareholders of the Corporation at the Annual and Special Meeting of Shareholders held on
May 17, 2001. Mr. Gingl has been the President and Chief Executive Officer of Tesma, a subsidiary of the
Corporation, since April 1995 and served as a director and senior officer of the Corporation from 1981 to
November 1992, and as Vice-Chairman of the Corporation since January 14, 2002.

.




There are no contracts, arrangements or understandings between any management nominee and any
other person (other than the directors and officers of the Corporation acting solely in such capacity) pursuant
to which the nominee has been or is to be eiected as a director.

All directors and officers of the Corporation as a group (26 persons) owned beneficially or exercised
control or direction over 4,014,553 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares, or approximately 4.87% of the class,
and 939,938 Class B Shares, or approximately 85.72% of the class, as at the Record Date.

Board

The Board oversees the business and affairs of the Corporation, supervises senior management’s
day-to-day conduct of business, establishes or approves overall corporate policies where required and
involves itself jointly with management in ensuring the creation of shareholder value and the preservation and
protection of the Corporation’s assets as well as in establishing the Corporation’s strategic direction. The
Board acts through regularly scheduled Board meetings which are held on a quarterly basis, with additional
meetings being scheduled when required. A separate strategic planning meeting is held each year. There
were twelve (12) meetings of the Board during fiscal 2001. In addition, there is continued communication
between senior management and Board members between meetings both on an informal basis and through
Committee meetings.

Mr. W. G. Davis was appointed as Lead Director by the Board effective August 1, 1996. The Lead
Director’s duties include representing the Corporation’s outside and unrelated directors in discussions with
senior management on corporate governance issues and other matters, assisting in identifying potential
nominees to the Board, assisting in ensuring that the Board functions independently of management and
performing such other duties and responsibilities as are delegated by the Board from time to time.

Board Committees

The Board has established three (3) standing committees: the Audit Committee, the Environmental
Committee and the Human Resources and Compensation Committee. From time to time the Board has
established special committees composed entirely of outside directors to review and make recommendations
on specific matters. A special commitiee was established in November 2000 to review management’s
propaosal to further implement the policy of the Corporation adopted by the Corporation’s shareholders in
1982 to develop operating entities and change them into separate public corporations in accordance with the
guidelines which were approved by the sharehoiders in 1987 and to provide its recommendations to the
Board. This special committee presented its initial report to the Board on February 21, 2001 and a
supplementary report to the Board on May 16, 2001 and continues in existence. Each committee operates
pursuant to written guidelines or the mandate set out in their respective authorizing resolutions. The
Corporation does not have an Executive Committee. Other committees are established by the Board from
time to time as circumstances require.

The Audit Committee is composed of Messrs. D. Resnick {Chairman), W. G. Davis and R. R. Richardson.
See “Audit Committee and Audit Committee Report” below.

The Environmental Committee, composed of Messrs. D. Resnick (Chairman) and R. R. Richardson
(neither of whom are employees, officers or former officers of the Corporation or its affiliates), operates under
a written mandate and works directly with the Corporation’s environmental and human resources
management on environmental and health and safety matters. This committee ensures that a management
system is in place in each of these areas and that there are audit and other controls in place to ensure the
effectiveness of such systems. The committee meets quarterly to review significant issues in each area with
environmental and human resources management and reports to the Board as material matters arise, but not
less than annually. The committee also conducts an annual review of the Corporation’s Health, Safety and
Environmental Policy and, following the completion of such review, provides to the Board its
recommendations for changes to the Policy.

The Human Resources and Compensation Committee, composed of Messrs. W. G. Davis (Chairman),
E. C. Lumley and R. R. Richardson (none of whom are employees, officers or former officers of the




Corporation or its affiliates), operates under applicable law in addition to its written mandate. This committee
administers compensation related plans, including the Amended and Restated Incentive Stock Option Plan
(the “Stock Option Plan’”), administers the Pension Plan for Canadian Employees (the “Canadian Pension
Plan™), reviews succession plans, reviews and makes recommendations to the Board regarding executive
compensation plans and compensation, including the Chief Executive Officer’s compensation, and provides
its Report on Executive Compensation. There were eight (8) meetings of this committee during fiscal 2001.
See “Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers —Human Resources and Compensation
Committee” and “Report on Executive Compensation” below.”

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, pursuant to the Corporation’s by-laws and its written mandate (charter), has
general authority in relation to the Corporation’s financial affairs as well as the specific responsibility to review
the Corporation’s quarterly and annual financial statements and other financial information and report thereon
to the Board and to evaluate the performance of, review the independence of, review the annual fees of and
make recommendations to the Board as to the annual appointment of the Auditor. in addition, the committee
reviews the Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition prior to
its inclusion in the Corporation’s Annual Report and quarterly reports to shareholders and has certain
responsibilities relating to internal and external audits, internal controls and procedures, the application of
accounting principles, financial reporting and integrity, risk assessment and other matters. The committee
also annually reviews and reassesses the adequacy of its written mandate (charter) which it currently is in the
process of completing.

The committee met five (5) times during fiscal 2001 with management and representatives of the Auditor,
both together and separately. All three (3) members of the committee are considered by the Corporation to be
“independent” under the applicable standards of the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) and
“unrelated” under the Guidelines for effective corporate governance referenced in Sections 472 to 474 of The
Toronto Stock Exchange Company Manual.

Auditor Independence

The committee has discussed with the Auditor its independence from management and the Corporation
and has considered whether the provision of non-audit services is compatible with maintaining the Auditor’s
independence. Fees for the fiscal 2001 annual audit were $3.1 million (including performance of the annual
audit and review of interim financial statements and related reports/forms) and all other fees were $3.9 million,
including audit related services of $1.5 million and non-audit services of $2.4 million, substantially ali of which
were related to taxation matters. Audit related services generally include fees for Canadian and SEC
registration statements, accounting consultations and statutory audits and non-audit services generally
include fees for tax and other services. For fiscal 2001, there were no fees billed or incurred for financial
information system design and implementation.

Audit Committee Report

In connection with the Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended December 31,
2001, the committee has (1) reviewed and discussed the audited Consolidated Financial Statements with
senior management, (2) discussed with the Auditor the matters required to be discussed by the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants and the U.S. Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61 (Communication
with Audit Committees) as amended, (3) received and reviewed with the Auditor the written disciosures
and related letter from the Auditor required by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and
U.S. Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussion with Audit Committees) and
discussed with the Auditor the independence of the Auditor as auditor of the Corporation and (4) reviewed
with Ernst & Young LLP its Audit Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Management is responsible for the Corporation’s internal contrels and the financial reporting process.
Ernst & Young LLP is responsible for performing an independent audit on the Corporation’s consolidated




financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and United States
generally accepted auditing standards and issuing an auditor report thereon. The committee’s responsibility
is to monitor and oversee these processes in accordance with its mandate (charter).

Based on these reviews and discussions and a review of the Audit Report, the committee has
recommended to the Board, and the Board has approved, the inclusion of the audited Consolidated Financial
Statements in the Corporation’s Annual Repont, and other forms and reports required to be filed with the -
applicable Canadian securities commissions, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission and
applicable stock exchanges in respect of the financial year ended December 31, 2001.

The foregoing report is dated as of March 22, 2002 and is submitted by the Audit Committee of the Board:
Donald Resnick (Chairman) William G. Davis Royden R. Richardson




COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth a summary of all compensation earned during the last three completed

financial years by the individuals who were as at December 31, 2001, the Chief Executive Officer and the four

ot

her most highly compensated executive officers (collectively the “Named Executive Officers”) and the

Chairman of the Board of the Corporation, other than Ms. B. Stronach and Mr. Skudutis whose compensation

is only disclosed for fiscal 2001.
Long-Term Compensation
Annual Compensation (1) Awards
Financial Other Annual Securities Under Options All Other
Name and Principal Position Year (2) Salary Bonus Compensation Granted (3) Compensation (1)
Frank Stronach 2001 $200,000 Nit $1,500,000 (4}(5) 750,000 Intier options (6) $31,500,000 (8)
Chairman of the Board . .
2000 200,000 Nit 1,483,300 (4)(5) | 310,000 Tesma options and 26,600,000 (8)
1,000,000 MEC options (7)
1999 200,000 Nit 1,000,000 (4)(5) 500,000 21,958,300 (8)
Donald Walker (9) 2001 $263,800 | $4,668,100 5 200,000 and 1,000,000 —
President and Chief Executive Officer Intier options (10}
2000 100,000 5,186,000 (5) 10,000 Tesma and 10,000 -
Decoma options (11)
1999 100,000 3,987,000 (5) 235,000 —
Belinda Stronach (12) 2001 $110,500 | $1,648,270 (5) 100,000 and 10,000 intier —
President and Chief and 10,000 Decoma
Executive Officer options (13)
James Nicol (14) 2001 $110,500 | $1,732,000 Cdn.$68,000(5) 150,000 and 60,000 Intier —
President and Chief options {15)
Operating Officer
2000 100,000 1,558,800 {5) 10,000 Decoma and —
500,000 MEC options (16)
1999 100,000 1,300,700 (5) 165,000 —
Siegfried Wolf (17} 2001 $100,000 | $3,073,200 (5) 150,000 and 50,000 Intier $ 507,200 (19)
Vice-Chairman options (18)
2000 100,000 | 4,534,300 (5) — 519,600 (19)
1989 100,000 1,993,500 (5) 165,000 398,700 (19)
Vincent J. Galifi 2001 $110,500 | $1,420,236 (5) ' 100,000 —
Executive Vice-President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer 2000 85,000 1,139,400 ®) - -
1999 80,000 797,400 (5) 55,000 —
Tommy J. Skudutis 2001 $110,500 | $1,264,630 (5) 25,000 -
Executive Vice-President, Operations J
(1) Al amounts for fiscal 1999, fiscal 2000 and fiscal 2001 were paid or are payable in U.S. dollars.
(2) 2001 or fiscal 2001 refers to the financial or fiscal year running from January 1, 2001 to December 31, 2001. 2000 or fiscal 2000 refers to the financial or fiscal year
running from January 1, 2000 to December 31, 2000. 1999 or fiscal 1999 refers to the financial or fiscal year running from January 1, 1999 to December 31, 1999.
(3) These are options issued by the Corporation unless otherwise indicated.
(4) This amount is not compensation but represents fees paid to Mr. F. Stronach personally by an Austrian subsidiary of the Corporation for business development and
other services performed by Mr. F. Stronach in Austria. See “Interests of Management and Cther Insiders in Certain Transactions” below.
(5) Perquisites and other personal benefits did not exceed the lesser of Cdn.$50,000 and 10% of the total annual salary and bonus for the Named Executive Officers and
the Chairman of the Board other than Mr. Nicol who received a benefit in respect of his interest-free housing loan in the principal amount of $800,000.
(6) In fiscal 2001 Intier granted SCo, an associate of Mr. F. Stronach, options to purchase 750,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Intier as compensation for

services to be rendered by SCo to Intier pursuant to a consulting agreement between them. See “Interests of Management and Other Insiders in Certain
Transactions” and "'Stock Option Plans, Grants and Exercises” below.

This represents options granted by Tesma during fiscal 2000 following review and approval by the outside members of the Tesma board of directors to SCo, an
associate of Mr. F. Stronach, to purchase 300,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Tesma as compensation for services to be rendered by SCo to Tesma




pursuant to a consulting agreement between them. See "Stock Option Plans, Grants and Exercises” below. In fiscal 2000 Mr. F. Stronach also received options to
purchase 10,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Tesma pursuant to the Tesma Incentive Stock Option Plan together with all other non-employee members of
the Tesma board of directors and options to purchase 1,000,000 shares of Class A Subordinate Voting Stock of MEC pursuant to the MEC Long-Term incentive
(Stock Option) Plan. See “Stock Option Plans, Grants and Exercises” below.

(8) This amount is not compensation but represents fees paid to SCo by Eurcpean subsidiaries of the Corporation for business development and consulting services
performed by SCo. See “Interests of Management and Other Insiders in Certain Transactions” below.

(9) Mr. Walker resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation on February 21, 2001 to become President and Chief Executive Officer of intier and -
subsequently entered into a new employment contract with Intier effective as of that date. The Corporation paid Mr. Walker a lump sum retiring allowance of
$11.25 million and transterred an existing life insurance policy on his life te Intier in connection with his resignation. For fiscal 2001 only his compensation reflects his
aggregate compensation from the Corporation and Intier.

(10) In fiscal 2001 Mr. Walker received options to purchase 1,000,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Intier under the Intier Incentive Stock Option Plan foltowing
the completion of Intier's initial public offering on August 9, 2001. See “Stock Option Plans, Grants and Exercises” below.

(11) In fiscal 2000 Mr. Walker received options to purchase 10,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Tesma together with all other non-employee members of the
Tesma board of directors pursuant to the Tesma Incentive Stock Option Plan and 10,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Decoma pursuant to the Decoma
Incentive Stock Option Plan together with all of the members of the Decoma board of directors. See "Stock Option Plans, Grants and Exercises” bslow.

(12) Ms. Stronach became Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation immediately following the resignation of Mr. Walker as President and Chief
Executive Officer on February 21, 2001. She became President of the Corporation, in addition to her position as Chief Executive Officer, immediately following the
resignation of Mr. Nical as President and Chief Operating Officer on January 14, 2002.

(13) In fiscal 2001 Ms. Stronach received options to purchase 10,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Decoma pursuant to the Decoma Incentive Stock Option Plan
together with all of the members of the Decoma board of directors and 10,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of intier pursuant to the intier Incentive Stock
Option Plan together with all other non-employee members of the Intier board of directors. See "Stock Option Plans, Grants and Exercises” below.

(14) Mr. Nicol became President and Chief Operating Officer on February 21, 2001 immediately following Mr. Walker’s resignation as President and Chief Executive
Officer. He resigned as President and Chief Operating Officer on January 14, 2002 and as an employee on February 14, 2002. The Corporation paid Mr. Nicol a fump
sum retiring allowance of $3.0 million, forgave repayment of an outstanding housing loan in the principal amount of $800,000 and amended all outstanding stock
option agreements to permit their exercise until the specified expiry date, subject to the existing vesting provisions in connection with his resignation.

(15) In fiscal 2001 Mr. Nicol received options to purchase 60,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Intier pursuant to the Intier Incentive Stock Option Plan, 10,000 of
which were granted to him together with all of the non-employee members of the Intier board of directors. See “Stock Option Plans, Grants and Exercises” below.

(16) In fiscal 2000 Mr. Nicol received options to purchase 10,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Decoma pursuant to the Decoma Incentive Stock Option Plan
together with all other members of the Decoma board of directors and options to purchase 500,000 shares of Class A Subordinate Voting Stock of MEC pursuant to
the MEC Long-Term Incentive (Stock Option) Plan. See “Stock Option Plans, Grants and Exercises” below.

(17) Mr. Wolf is employed by European subsidiaries of the Corporation. He became Vice-Chairman and a director of the Corporation on March 8, 1899 and continued in
his role as President, Magna Europe. Mr. Wolf resigned as Vice-Chairman of the Corporation and as President, Magna Europe on February 21, 2001 to become
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation’s new Magna Steyr group. He was reappointed as a Vice-Chairman of the Corporation on January 14, 2002.

{18) In fiscal 2001 Mr. Wolf received options to purchase 50,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Intier pursuant to the Intier Incentive Stock Option Plan. See “Stock
Option Plans, Grants and Exercises™ below.

(19) This represents the amount credited to Mr. Wolf's phantom stock account in respect of fiscal 1999, fiscal 2000 and fiscal 2001 in the form of 9,534, 13,137 and 8,463
units respectively of notional Class A Subordinate Voting Shares pursuant to an agreement supplemental to Mr. Wolf's employment contracts. See “Employment
Contracts” below.

Stock Option Plans, Grants and Exercises

The Stock Option Plan was originally adopted by the shareholders of the Corporation on December 10,
1987. At the Annual and Special Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation held on May 18, 2000, the Stock
Option Plan was further amended and restated which enabled the Board to provide incentive stock options
and stock appreciation rights in respect of Class A Subordinate Voting Shares to consultants as well as to
eligible officers and employees of the Corporation and its subsidiaries. These amendments also provided for
the grant of options for 5,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of the Corporation to outside directors upon
their election as a director of the Corporation as well as upon the completion of every five (5) year period of
continuous service. See "Directors’ Compensation” below.

The maximum number of shares for which options and stock appreciation rights may be granted under
the Stock Option Plan is 6,000,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares, subject to certain adjustments. The
option price is to be established at the time of the grant, but cannot be less than the closing price of the
Class A Subordinate Voting Shares on The Toronto Stock Exchange (the “TSE”) or the NYSE on the trading
day immediately prior to the date of the grant. Each option is exercisable in such manner as may be
determined at the time of the grant, and options granted will be for terms not exceeding 10 years. Under the
Stock Option Plan, the Corporation does not provide any financial assistance to participants in order to
facilitate the purchase of Class A Subordinate Voting Shares thereunder. As at December 31, 2001 options




to purchase an aggregate of 3,160,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares at prices ranging from Cdn.$62.75
to Cdn.$96.50 per share were outstanding under the Stock Option Plan. Vesting periods range from 4 to
7 years, with the expiration dates ranging from May 13, 2006 to December 31, 2010.

No stock appreciation rights or options to purchase securities of the Corporation or its subsidiaries were
granted to any of the Named Executive Officers or the Chairman of the Board during fiscal 2001, except as
disclosed in the following table: .

Option Grants During the 2001 Financial Year (1)
Market Value of
% of Total Options Exercise or Securities on
Number of Securities Granted to Employees in Base Price Date of Grant
Name Under Option (2) 2001 Financial Year ($/Share) ($/Share) Expiration Date
Frank Stronach (3) nil Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
Donald Walker(4) 200,000 Magna 16.56% Cdn.$66.80 Cdn.$66.80 December 31, 2010
1,000,000 Intier (5) 39.60% Cdn.$21.00 Cdn.$21.00 July 31, 2011
Belinda Stronach 100,000 Magna 8.28% Cdn.$66.80 Cdn.$66.80 December 31, 2010
10,000 Decoma 2.47% Cdn.$10.30 Cdn.$10.30 April 15, 2011
10,000 Intier 0.40% Cdn.$21.00 Cdn.$21.00 July 31, 2011
James Nicol 150,000 Magna 12.42% Cdn.$66.80 Cdn.$66.80 December 31, 2010
60,000 Intier 2.38% Cdn.$21.00 Cdn.$21.00 July 31, 2011
Siegfried Wolf 150,000 Magna 12.42% Cdn.$66.80 Cdn.$66.80 December 31, 2010
50,000 Intier 1.98% Cdn.$21.00 Cdn.$21.00 July 31, 2011
Vincent J. Galifi 100,000 Magna 8.28% Cdn.$66.80 Cdn.$66.80 December 31, 2010
Tommy J. Skudutis 25,000 Magna 2.07% Cdn.$66.80 Cdn.$66.80 December 31, 2010

(1) Class A Subordinate Voting Shares are the only securities of the Corporation for which options have been granted under the Stock Option Pian. In the case of Intier
and Decoma, these options are for their respective Class A Subcrdinate Voting Shares.

(2) The grant of options to the Named Executive Officers for Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of the Corporation were made on January 10, 2001 in respect of services
performed in fiscal 2000 at an exercise price equal to the previous trading day's closing price on the TSE and NYSE (in the case of U.S. resident recipients). All of
these options are exercisable as to 20% on the date of grant and 20% on each of December 31, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004.

(3) Does notinclude options granted by Intier upon the completion of Intier’s initia! public offering on August 9, 2001 to SCo, an associate of Mr. F. Stronach, to purchase
750,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Intier at an exercise price of $13.72 as compensation for services to be rendered by SCo to Intier pursuant to a
consuiting agreement between them. See “Interests of Management and Other Insiders in Certain Transactions” below.

(4) Mr. Walker resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation on February 21, 2001 to become President and Chief Executive Officer of Intier.

=

(5

-

On August 9, 2001 Intier granted Mr. Walker options to purchase 1,000,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Intier upon the completion of Intier’s initial public
offering.

The following table provides certain information with respect to options for securities of the Corporation
and its subsidiaries exercised by the Named Executive Officers and the Chairman of the Board during fiscal
2001 as well as the fiscal 2001 year end option values of all options for securities of the Corporation and its
subsidiaries granted to such persons up to December 31, 2001:
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Aggregate Option Exercises During the Financiai Year Ended December 31, 2001
and 2001 Financial Year End Option Values (1)
Value of Unexercised
Unexercised Options at In-the-Money Options at
Aggregate December 31, 2001 December 31, 2001 (2)(3)
Securities Acquired | Value Realized
Name on Exercise on Exercise Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Frank Stronach® 200,000 Cdn.$3,610,400 100,000 200,000 Cdn.$2,610,000 | Cdn.$5,220,000
a ’ ’ 10,000 Tesma nil Cdn. $37,900 nil
666,867 MEC 333,333 MEC $416,700 $208,300
Donald Walker® Nit Nit 295,500 239,500 Cdn.$6,485,925 | Cdn.$6,382,575
10,000 Tesma nil Cdn. $37,900 nil
10,000 Decoma nil Cdn. $46,000 nil
Belinda Stronach® Nil Nil 72,250 77,750 Cdn.$1,973,300 | Cdn.$2,423,200
2,000 Decoma 8,000 Decoma Cdn. $11,100 Cdn. $44,400
James Nicol® 167,000 Cdn.$3,715,600 nil 148,000 nil Cdn.$4,468,800
10,000 Decoma nil Cdn. $46,000 nil
333,334 MEC 166,666 MEC $208,300 $104,200
Siegfried Wolf® 30,000 Cdn.$1,158,700 137,000 148,000 Cdn.$3,293,700 | Cdn.$2,410,800
Vincent J. Galifi 41,150 Cdn.$1,551,300 78,125 88,125 Cdn.$2,180,800 Cdn.$2,803,100
Tommy J. Skudutis nil nil 28,000 27,000 Cdn.$812,800 Cdn.$656,200

)
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Class A Subordinate Voting Shares are the only securities of the Corporation for which options have been granted under the Stock Option Plan. In the case of Tesma,
Decoma and Intier these options are for their respective Class A Subordinate Voting Shares and in the case of MEC these options are for shares of its Class A
Subordinate Voting Stock.

The closing price on December 31, 2001 for Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of the Corporation on the TSE was Cdn.$101.10 and on the NYSE was $63.47.

The closing price on December 31, 2001 for the Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Tesma on the TSE was Cdn. $29.79, for the Class A Subordinate Voting Shares
of Decoma on the TSE was Cdn. $15.85, for the Class A Subordinate Yoting Shares of intier on the TSE was Cdn. $19.50 and for the Class A Subordinate Voting
Stock of MEC on NASDAQ was $7.00.

Does not include options granted to SCo, an associate of Mr. F. Stronach, to purchase: 750,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Intier at an exercise price of
$13.72, 250,000 of which are vested and 500,000 of which are unvested, none of which have been exercised and none of which are in-the-money; 750,000 Class A
Subordinate Voting Shares of Decoma at an exercise price of Cdn.$13.55, 625,000 of which are vested and have a value at December 31, 2001 of Cdn.$1,437,500
and 125,000 of which are unvested and have a value at December 31, 2001 of Cdn.$287,500, and none of which have been exercised; and 300,000 Class A
Subordinate Voting Shares of Tesma at an exercise price of Cdn.$26.45, 100,000 of which are vested and have a value at December 31, 2001 of Cdn.$352,000 and
200,000 of which are unvested and have a value at December 31, 2001 of Cdn.$704,000, and none of which have been exercised. In each case these options were
granted in return for consulting services to be rendered by SCo to Intier, Decoma and Tesma respectively under consuiting agreements with each of them. See
“Interests of Management and Other Insiders in Certain Transactions” below.

{5) Does not include options for 1,000,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Intier granted by Intier to Mr. Walker as President and Chief Executive Officer of Intier

()

2

[t

under the Intier incentive Stock Option Plan at an exercise price of Cdn.$21.00, of which 200,000 are exercisable and 800,000 are unexercisable and none of which
are in-the-money.

Does not include options for 10,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Intier granted by Intier to Ms. Stronach as a director under the Intier Incentive Stock Option
Ptan at an exercise price of Cdn.$21.00, of which 2,000 are exercisable and 8,000 are unexercisable and none of which are in-the-money.

Does not include options for 60,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Intier granted by Intier to Mr. Nicol under the intier Incentive Stock Option Plan at an
exercise price of Cdn.$21.00, of which 12,000 are exercisable and 48,000 are unexercisable and none of which are in-the-money.

Does not include options for 50,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Intier granted by Intier to Mr. Wolf under the Intier Incentive Stock Option Plan at an
exercise price of Cdn.$21.00, of which 10,000 are exercisable and 40,000 are unexercisable and none of which are in-the-money.

Pension Pians

None of the executive officers, including the Named Executive Officers and the Chairman of the Board,

participate in any Corporation provided pension plans, including the defined benefit Canadian Pension Plan
and the Pension Plan for United States employees (the “U.S. Pension Plan”), both of which were implemented
effective January 1, 2001, or the Canadian, U.S., U.K. and Austrian Magna Employee Equity Participation and
Profit Sharing Plans, of which the Canadian Plan, the U.S. Plan, the Magna International UK Employees’

D

eferred Profit Sharing Plan (the “UK Plan”) and the Magna International Austrian Employees’ Share Award

Plan (the “Austrian Plan”) are a part.
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Employment Contracts

Mr. Walker, the Corporation’s former President and Chief Executive Officer, was employed by the
Corporation pursuant to a written employment contract, which was entered into prior to January 1, 1994 and
terminated upon his resignation on February 21, 2001 to become President and Chief Executive Officer of
intier. Concurrent with Mr. Walker’s resignation, the Board, on the recommendation of the Human Resources
and Compensation Committee, approved certain employment arrangements with Ms. Stronach in her role as-
Chief Executive Office and Vice-Chairman. The Corporation entered into an employment contract with
Mr. Nicol in May 1998 which terminated on February 14, 2002. European subsidiaries of the Corporation
entered into employment contracts with Mr. Wolf in March 1999 but effective January 1, 1999. The Corporation
also entered into an employment contract with Mr. Skudutis effective January 1, 2001. The employment
contracts or arrangements for the Named Executive Officers generally provide for base salaries, annual cash
bonuses based on a specified percentage of the Pre-tax Profits before Profit Sharing of the Corporation as
defined in the Corporate Constitution, the maintenance of the ownership of a minimum number of Class A
Subordinate Voting Shares, confidentiality obligations and non-competition restrictions. Each employment
contract provides that employment may be terminated by the Corporation either by giving advance written
notice of termination for a minimum time period or by paying a retiring allowance or making a payment in lieu
thereof. The maximum total amount potentially payable by the Corporation pursuant to the outstanding
contracts for severance is approximately $4.6 million in the aggregate.

Pursuant to an agreement supplemental to Mr. Wolf's employment contracts, in order to retain Mr. Wolf as
a long-term employee of the Corporation or its subsidiaries, a European subsidiary of the Corporation created
a phantom stock account to which phantom Class A Subordinate Voting Share units are annually credited
subsequent to the completion of each financial year of the Corporation for a term commencing January 1,
1999 and ending December 31, 2008. Each annual credit is calculated based on a specified percentage of the
Pre-tax Profits before Profit Sharing of the Corporation for each such year divided by the 20 day weighted
average closing price of Class A Subordinate Voting Shares on the NYSE during the last 20 trading days in
December of such year. Class A Subordinate Voting Share credits to the account are also to be made annually
based on the dividends paid by the Corporation during the applicable financial year calculated using the same
price formula. 7,978 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares were notionally credited to such account in
March 2002 in respect to fiscal 2001 based on a weighted average Class A Subordinate Voting Share price of
$63.58 in addition to the aggregate of 22,671 credited in March 2000 and March 2001. This agreement was
terminated in March 2002 with effect from December 31, 2001 and a payment of $2,134,148 made to Mr. Wolf
based on the weighted average closing price ($68.55) of Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of the
Corporation on the NYSE for the 20 trading days preceding the effective date of termination.

No notice or severance payment is required for a termination for just cause or on voluntary resignation
under any of the preceding employment contracts, nor are payments required to be made in the event of
change of control of the Corporation.

Directors’ Compensation

Directors who are not employees of the Corporation were paid during fiscal 2001 an annual retainer fee of
$40,000 ($20,000 of which was paid in Class A Subordinate Voting Shares), a fee of $1,500 per meeting for
attendance at mestings of the Board and its committees and a fee of $2,000 per day for travel days or any
additional services. The Lead Director of the Board received a $25,000 annual retainer fee and outside
directors who serve on Committees of the Board received an annual retainer fee of $5,000, with the chairman
of the Audit and Human Resources and Compensation Committees receiving an additional $12,000 annual
retainer fee and the chairman of the Environmental Committee receiving an additional $7,000 annual retainer
fee. Outside directors are required to accumulate commencing January 1, 2000 and then maintain during their
term as a director shares of the Corporation having an aggregate value of not less than $75,000. With respect
to Mr. F. Stronach, see “Interests of Management and Other Insiders in Certain Transactions™ below.

In recognition of past service and to more closely align the interests of “non-management” directors with
the Corporation’s shareholders and pursuant to the amendments to the Stock Option Plan approved by the
shareholders at the Annual and Special Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation held on May 18, 2000,
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each of the eight (8) outside directors have been granted options in respect of 5,000 Class A Subordinate
Voting Shares. Such options were granted for a term of approximately nine years ending December 31, 2009
at an exercise price of $51.00 (Cdn.$75.00), with 1,000 options vesting on the date of grant and 1,000 on each
anniversary of the grant date, subject to accelerated vesting of 1,000 options for each prior year of service as a
director of the Corporation. This exercise price exceeded by approximately 20% the TSE closing price on the
trading day immediately preceding the date of grant. Each outside director is to receive an additional grant of
options for 5,000 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares on the completion of each five (5) year period of
continuous service. . ’ - :

Effective January 1, 2000, the Corporation established the Non-Empioyee Director Share-Based
Compensation Plan (the “DSP Plan”) which provides for a deferral of up to 100% of an outside director’s total
annual cash remuneration from the Corporation (including Board and committee retainers, meeting
attendance fees, work and travel day payments and written resolution fees), at specified levels elected by
each director, until such director ceases to be a director of the Corporation for any reason. The amounts
deferred are reflected in deferred share units allocated under the DSP Plan-i.e. notional units whose value
reflects the market price of the Corporation’s Class A Subordinate Voting Shares at the time that the particular
payment(s) to the director would become payable. The value of a deferred share unit will appreciate (or
depreciate) with increases (or decreases) in the market price of the Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of the
Corporation. The DSP Plan also takes into account any dividends paid on the Class A Subordinate Voting
Shares. Under the DSP Plan, when a director leaves the Board, he/she receives (within a prescribed period of
time) a cash payment equal to the then value of his/her accrued deferred share units, net of withholding taxes.
Currently Messrs. Fike, Randa and Muhr have elected to participate in the DSP Plan.

Human Resources and Compensation Committee

The Human Resources and Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Committee”) is comprised of
Messrs. W. G. Davis (Chairman), E. C. Lumley and R. R. Richardson, none of whom are employees, officers or
former officers of the Corporation or its affiliates. The Committee meets as required to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the compensation of, and material contractual matters involving, the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and to review recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer
regarding compensation for the other executive officers of the Corporation. The Committee also has certain
other responsibilities, including the administration of the Stock Option Plan and the Canadian Pension Plan,
succession planning and other matters. See “Board of Directors — Board Committees” above.

Report on Executive Compensation

Magna’s unique, entrepreneurial corporate culture has evolved since the Corporation’s founding
approximately four decades ago. Two key elements of this entrepreneurial culture are the emphasis on
decentralization, which provides a high degree of autonomy at all levels of operation, as well as the direct
participation in profits. Certain aspects of this culture were formalized in 1984 when the Corporation’s
shareholders adopted the Corporate Constitution as part of the Corporation’s Articles. The Corporate
Constitution balances the interests of shareholders, employees and management, defines the rights of
employees (including management) and investors to participate in the Corporation’s profits and growth and
reflects certain of the entrepreneurial operational and compensation philosophies developed since Magna’s
founding which align employee (including management) and shareholder interests. These operational and
compensation philosophies and the Corporate Constitution enable Magna to maintain an entrepreneurial
environment which encourages productivity, ingenuity and innovation.

It is the Corporation’s objective to enable this entrepreneurial culture to continue to flourish, and it
therefore intends to continue to apply its long established compensation philosophies, which have been
essential to its continued success and its ability to attract, retain and motivate skilled, entrepreneurial
employees at all levels of the Magna organization, as well as to maintain the alignment of shareholder and
employee interests and create shareholder value.

In order to achieve this objective and consistent with the concepis reflected in the Corporate Constitution,
certain managers who have senior operational or corporate responsibilities receive a remuneration package
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consisting of a base salary (which generally is lower than comparable industry standards) and an annual
incentive bonus based on direct profit participation at the operating or corporate level at which such manager
is involved. All other eligible Canadian, U.S., U.K. and Austrian employees (other than Tesma and Decoma
employees, who participate in their own equity participation and profit sharing plans, MEC employees and
those employees who have elected to participate in the Canadian Pension Plan or the U.S. Pension Plan
(collectively, the “Pension Plans”)) participate in ten per cent (10%) of the Employee Pre-Tax Profits before
Profit Sharing of the Corporation under the Magna Employee Equity Participation and Profit Sharing Plans.
Canadian and US employees who participate in the Pension -Plans, participate in six percent (6%) of the
Employee Pre-Tax Profits before Profit Sharing under the Magna Employee Equity Participation and Profit
Sharing Plans.

The Committee applies the following criteria in determining or reviewing recommendations for
compensation for executive officers;

Base Salaries. Base salaries should be at leveis generally below base salaries for comparable positions
within a comparator group of North American industrial companies which have global businesses and
are not generally increased on an annual basis. Fixed compensation costs are therefore minimized in
cyclical or other down periods, with financial rewards coming principally from variable incentive cash
compensation and long-term incentive compensation. See “Summary Compensation Table” above.

Incentive Compensation. The amount of direct profit participation and therefore the amount of
compensation “at risk” increases with the level of performance and/or responsibility. Due to the variable
nature of profit participation, incentive cash compensation is generally reduced in cyclical or other down
periods where profits are reduced. As a result, senior management (including executive officers) has an
incentive to emphasize consistent growth in profitability over the medium-to long-term to ensure stable
levels of annual compensation. Variable incentive cash compensation for fiscal 2001 paid to the Named
Executive Officers represents more than 90% of each individual’s total cash compensation and reflects
the record financial performance of the Corporation and the overall performance of management during
fiscal 2001,

Under the Corporate Constitution the aggregate incentive bonuses paid and payable to “Corporate

Management” (which includes the Named Executive Officers and other executive officers of the

Corporation) in respect of any financial year shall not exceed 6% of the Corporation’s Pre-Tax Profits
. before Profit Sharing for such year.

Long-Term Incentives. Minimum stock ownership has been required of all direct profit participators
(including executive officers) for over a decade in order to align their interests with those of shareholders
and to encourage the enhancement of shareholder value. Following a review with its external
compensation consultants, the Committee in fiscal 1998 recommended to the Board the implementation
of an ongoing stock option program involving annual grants under the Stock Option Plan to management
and other eligible employees as part of total compensation. The Committee believed that, in addition to
the existing mandatory stock maintenance program, such a program would assist in retaining such
employees by providing them with an opportunity for capital appreciation and would further align their
interests with shareholders. As a result of the implementation of this program, options have generally
been granted by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee to members of management and
eligible employees in respect of each fiscal year, in each case with not less than a four year vesting
period. Options were granted to certain members of management in January 2001 in respect to fiscal
2000 and in January 2002 in respect to fiscal 2001 on the recommendation of the Committee. See “Stock
Option Plans, Grants and Exercises” above.

The Corporation generally utilizes written employment contracts with its executive officers to reflect the
terms of their employment, including compensation, severance, stock maintenance, confidentiality and
non- competition arrangements. Prior to the renewal and/or material amendment of each such contract,
the Committee reviews the executive officer's compensation in the context of Magna’s historical
compensation philosophies and policies, such officer's individual performance and relevant
comparators, with the objective of ensuring that such compensation is commensurate with the
Corporation’s performance, is competitive and is primarily “at risk”. As part of its review policy, the
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Committee also conducts a bi-annual review of total compensation with its external compensation
consultants of compensation for a group of comparator companies as weil as its compensation criteria
and overall approach to ensure the continued competitiveness of the Corporation’s total compensation
and effectiveness in achieving its compensation objectives.

Mr. F. Stronach’s historical compensation reflects his special position as the Corporation’s founder and

architect of Magna’s unique, entrepreneurial corporate culture. Until February 28, 1994, virtuaily all of -

Mr. F. Stronach’s compensation had been variable incentive cash compensation and therefore directly
reflected the continued financial success of the Corporation. Due to the rapid expansion of Magna’s business
outside North America, Mr. F. Stronach moved to Europe early in 1994. Mr. F. Stronach, directly and through
Stronach & Co (*SCo"), provides business development and consulting services to Magna’s European and
other affiliates and co-ordinates global strategies. The Committee first reviewed the contractual arrangements
referred to in “Interests of Management and Other Insiders in Certain Transactions” during fiscal 1994 and
subsequently reviewed the annual fees payable under such arrangements on an annual basis as well as all
amendments to the contractual arrangements. During fiscal 2001, the Committee reviewed and
recommended to the Board that it extend the term of the original Consulting Agreement, the new Business
Development Agreement and the new Consulting Agreement to run for a further twelve months ending
December 31, 2001 and reviewed the fees to be paid during the twelve-month period ending December 31,
2001 pursuant to the original Consulting Agreement, the new Business Development Agreement and the new
Consulting Agreement. In each case the unrelated members of the Board subsequently approved all such
fees and term extensions as being in the best interests of the Corporation. As Chairman, Mr. F. Stronach
received a salary of $200,000 in fiscal 2001. See “Summary Compensation Table” above and “Interests of
Management and Other Insiders in Certain Transactions” below.

Mr. Walker resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation effective February 21,
2001 and assumed the role of President and Chief Executive Officer of Intier Automotive Inc., a subsidiary of
the Corporation, effective as of that date. Prior to that time his annual compensation, long-term compensation
awards and other compensation referred to in the Summary Compensation Table reflect the compensation
and benefits provided to him under his employment contract which was entered into in fiscal 1993, virtually all
of which was variable incentive cash compensation based on a fixed percentage of Pre-tax Profits before Profit
Sharing of the Corporation established at that time.

Ms. Stronach’s annual compensation, long-term compensation awards and other compensation referred
to in the Summary Compensation Table were reviewed by the Committee and recommended to the Board
concurrent with Mr. Walker’s resignation as President and Chief Executive Officer and her promotion to Chief
Executive Officer and Vice-Chairman effective February 21, 2001. As Chief Executive Officer, in addition to a
base salary of $110,500, Ms. Stronach participates in the Pre-tax Profits before Profit Sharing of the
Corporation for each fiscal year as well as the Stock Option Plan. In January 2001, the Committee
recommended the grant to Ms. Stronach of options for 100,000 Ciass A Subordinate Voting Shares of the
Corporation in her position as Vice-Chairman. See “Stock Option Plans, Grants and Exercises” above.

Magna believes that its continued strong, profitable growth positions it for long-term growth in
shareholder value, which justifies competitive financial rewards for executive officers which are contingent on
the continued profitability of the Corporation.

The foregoing report is submitted by the Human Resources and Compensation Committee of the Board:
William G. Davis (Chairman) Edward C. Lumley Royden R. Richardson
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SHAREHOLDER PERFORMANCE REVIEW GRAPH

The following graph compares the total cumulative shareholders’ return (including dividends) for
Cdn.$100 invested in Class A Subordinate Voting Shares and in Class B Shares on December 31, 1996 with
the cumulative total return of the TSE 300 Total Return Index during the five years ended December 31, 1997,
1998, 1999, 2000 and 2001.

. ,Five-Year Cumulative Total Returns
Value of Cdn.$100 Invested on December 31, 1996
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Financial December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
Years 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
Magna Class A Cdn.$100.00 Cdn.$119.19 Cdn.$128.62 Cdn.$84.62 Cdn.$91.30 Cdn.$150.58
Magna Class B 100.00 128.48 129.54 104.82 123.67 141.34
TSE 300 100.00 114.98 113.16 149.04 160.08 139.96

The total cumulative shareholders’ return for Cdn.$100 invested in the Class A Subordinate Voting Shares
was Cdn.$150.58 and in the Class B Shares was Cdn.$141.34, in each case compared to Cdn.$139.96 for the
TSE 300 Total Return Index.

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND SENIOR OFFICERS

None of the directors, executive officers or senior officers of the Corporation or their respective associates
were indebted at any time during fiscal 2001 to the Corporation or its subsidiaries in connection with the
purchase "of securities of the Corporation or its subsidiaries, excluding routine indebtedness and
indebtedness that has been entirely repaid. During fiscal 2001, Mr. Gingl, who is currently a director of the
Corporation and the President and Chief Executive Officer of Tesma, and a proposed nominee for election as
a director of the Corporation, received an unsecured loan from Tesma in the amount of Cdn. $600,000. The
loan is due on December 31, 2002 (or earlier in certain circumstances) and bears interest at a rate of 4% per
annum. As at the Record Date, the entire principal amount of the loan and accrued interest was outstanding.
The aggregate amount of indebtedness as at the Record Date to the Corporation and its subsidiaries incurred
other than in connection with the purchase of securities of the Corporation or its subsidiaries, excluding
routine indebtedness and indebtedness that has been entirely repaid, was approximately $2.4 million in the
case of present and former officers, directors and employees of the Corporation and its subsidiaries.
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INTERESTS OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHER INSIDERS IN CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

Two trusts {the “Trusts”) make purchases of Class A Subordinate Voting Shares and Class B Shares from
time to time for transfer to the Canadian Plan, the U.S. Plan, the U.K. Plan and the Austrian Plan, for transfer to
employees in payment of bonuses or for sale to employees. During fiscal 2001, the Trusts borrowed up to
$50.9 million interest-free from the Corporation to facilitate the purchase during the year of Class A
Subordinate Voting Shares, principally for transfer to the Canadian Plan, the U.S. Plan, the U.K. Plan and the
Austrian Plan. This indebtedness was $32.6 million at December 31, 2001.

Under a Consulting Agreement dated August 1, 1994 between Magna Investments S.A., a Belgian
corporation and a direct subsidiary of the Corporation, and SCo, an associate of Mr. F. Stronach, SCo is to
provide certain consulting services to the subsidiaries and affiliates of Magna Investments S.A. located in
Europe, for an annual fee payable quarerly in advance. As a result of a reorganization of the Corporation’s
subsidiaries in Europe, this Consulting Agreement was assigned to New Magna Investments S.A. (“Magna
Belgium”) effective July 26, 2001. The Consulting Agreement had an original contract term of five years
expiring July 31, 1999, with annual fees to be mutually agreed upon for each twelve month contract period.
During fiscal 1999 the contract term of this Consulting Agreement was extended from July 31, 1999 to July 31,
2000, was further extended during fiscal 2000 for an additional five months from July 31, 2000 to
December 31, 2000 and was further extended during fiscal 2001 for an additional twelve months from
December 31, 2000 to December 31, 2001 for an annual fee of $17.0 million for the contract period January 1,
2001 to December 31, 2001. In March 2002 the contract term of this Consulting Agreement was further
extended from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002 for an annual fee of $19.5 million for the contract
period January 1, 2002 to December 31, 2002.

Effective August 1, 1997 Magna Investments S.A. and SCo entered into a Business Development
Agreement under which SCo is to provide business development services on behalf of Magna
Investments S.A. to certain of its European affiliates which have contracted with Magna Investments S.A. to
develop business opportunities and provide certain other services on a global basis to achieve the global
business development plan of each such Magna affiliate, for an annual fee payable quarterly in arrears. As a
resuit of a reorganization of the Corporation’s subsidiaries in Europe, this Business Development Agreement
was assigned to Magna Belgium effective July 26, 2001. The Business Development Agreement is for a
contract term of five years ending July 31, 2002, but is terminable prior to that time by either party giving not
less than 120 days written notice of termination prior to the commencement of each twelve month contract
pericd. Annual fees are to be mutually agreed upon for each twelve (12) month contract period. The Business
Development Agreement was amended during fiscal 2000 to change the contract periods to run for twelve
months from January 1 to December 31 of each year during the contract term commencing January 1, 2001
and in fiscal 2001 an annual fee of $14.5 million for the contract period January 1, 2001 to December 31, 2001
was agreed upon. In March 2002 the contract term of the Business Development Agreement was extended for
an additional five months from July 31, 2002 to December 31, 2002 for an annual fee of $12.0 million for the
contract period January 1, 2002 to December 31, 2002.

Effective August 1, 1997 Magna Holding AG and Mr. F. Stronach, the Chairman of the Corporation,
entered into a Consulting Agreement under which Mr. F. Stronach is to provide business development and
other services to certain of Magna Holding AG’s subsidiaries in Austria, for an annual fee payable quarterly in
arrears. As a result of a reorganization of the Corporation’s subsidiaries in Europe, this Consuliing Agreement
was assigned to Magna Europa AG effective August 1, 1998. Magna Europa AG was subsequently
transformed into Magna Steyr AG & Co. KG in fiscal 2001. This Consuiting Agreement is for a contract term of
five years ending July 31, 2002, but is terminable prior to that time by either party giving not less than 120 days
written notice of termination prior to the commencement of each twelve month contract period. Annual fees
are to be mutually agreed upon for each contract period. The Consulting Agreement was amended during
fiscal 2000 to change the contract periods to run for twelve months from January 1 to December 31 of each
year during the contract term commencing January 1, 2001 and in fiscal 2001 an annual fee of $1.5 million for
the contract period January 1, 2001 to December 31, 2001 was agreed upon. In March 2002 the contract term
of this Consulting Agreement was extended for an additional five months from July 31, 2002 to December 31,
2002 for an annual fee of $1.5 million for the contract period January 1, 2002 to December 31, 2002,
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The terms and conditions of each of the three contracts described above, including the fees to be paid
during fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2002, were reviewed by the Human Resources and Compensation Committee
and approved by the independent “outside” directors on the Board as being in the best interests of the
Corporation. In addition, the Committee determined not to terminate the Business Development Agreement
and the Austrian Consuiting Agreement, both of which will now continue in force untii December 31, 2002.

Effective August 9, 2001, Intier entered into a four year consulting services agreement with SCo pursuant
to which Intier secured consulting services from SCo for the benefit of Intier in Europe and other global
markets outside of North America, in consideration of the grant of options to acquire 750,000 Class A
Subordinate Voting Shares of Intier under Intier's Incentive Stock Option Plan at an exercise price of $13.72
per share, with such options vesting as to 250,000 on August 9, 2001 and as to 125,000 on each of August 8,
2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005. The Consulting Agreement and related share option compensation was reviewed
and approved by the independent “outside” members of the Magna Board following review by and positive
recommendation of the Human Resources and Compensation Committee on July 5, 2001, but with effect only
upon the completion of the Intier initial public offering, which was subsequently completed on August 9, 2001.

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Magna has adopted certain structures and procedures, in addition to its Corporate Constitution, to
ensure that effective corporate governance practices are followed and the Board functions independently of
management. The following describes Magna'’s approach to corporate governance with specific reference to
each of the fourteen (14) non-compulsory Guidelines for effective corporate governance referenced in
Sections 472 to 474 of The Toronto Stock Exchange Company Manual (the “Guidelines”) as well as to
Magna’s Corporate Constitution which reflects the Corporation’s historical commitment to effective corporate
governance practices.

Magna’s Corporate Constitution

The adoption by Magna’s shareholders in 1984 of the Corporate Constitution represented the
formalization of Magna’s corporate governance practices which had evolved over many years. During the
period prior to 1984, certain specific policies were developed, described in each Annual Report to
Shareholders and applied by the Board and management. These policies attempt to strike a balance between
the Corporation’s stakeholders — its employees, managers and investors — by describing their respective
rights and, in the case of management, imposing certain responsibilities or disciplines. The specific inclusion
of such policies in a Corporate Constitution, which has formed part of the Corporation’s governing charter
documents (its Articles) and is therefore subject to enforcement by any shareholder, was (and continues to
be) unprecedented to the Corporation’s knowledge.

The policies reflected in the Corporate Constitution, which define the rights of the stakeholders to
participate in the Corporation’s profits and growth while at the same time subjecting management to certain
disciplines, include the following:

(1) A majority of the members of the Corporation’s Board must be individuals who are not “officers or
employees of the Corporation or any of its affiliates or related to such officers or employees”.

(2) Shareholders are entitled to certain minimum annual dividend distributions i.e. not less than 20% of -
the Corporation’s after-tax profits on average over a rolling three financia! year basis (the *Dividend
Policy”).

(3) Class A Subordinate Voting shareholders may directly elect two directors if a 4% return on capital is
not achieved on average over a rolling two financial year basis or the dividends required under the
Dividend Policy are not distributed.

(4) Class A Subordinate Voting and Class B shareholders, with each class voting separately, will have
the right to approve any investment by the Corporation in an unrelated business in the event such
investment together with all other investments in unrelated businesses exceeds 20 percent of
Magna's equity (the “Investment Policy”).
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(8) Certain specific distributions of pre-tax profits relating to employee profit participation (10%), to the
support of social objectives (maximum 2%) and to research and development (minimum 7%) are
required (the “Distribution Policy”).

A description of each of the foregoing policies.is contained in the Annual Report to Shareholders as well
as the Corporation’s Annual Information Form. These policies represent another aspect of Magna’s unique,
entrepreneurial corporate culture, in addition to the operational and compensation philosophies described in
the Human Resources and, Compensation Committee’s Report on Executive Compensation (see
“Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers -— Report on Executive Compensation” above) as well as
the Employee Charter of Rights.

Constitution of the Board and its Committees

The Board currently consists of thirteen (13) members. Magna has historically maintained a functional
Board of between nine (9) and fourteen (14) in order to facilitate effective and efficient decision making as
contemplated by Guideline (7). While there are no specific criteria for Board members, Magna attempts to
maintain a diversity of personal experience, particularly amongst the “outside” directors. See “Board of
Directors” above.

A majority of the current Board members (Messrs. Davis, Lumley, Muhr, Randa, Resnick, Richardson and
Vranitzky) are viewed by Magna as “unrelated directors” within the meaning of Guideline (2) as they are “free
from any interest and any business or other relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to,
materially interfere with the director’s ability to act with a view to the best interests of the Corporation, other
than interests and relationships arising from shareholding”, and have no interests in or relationship to a
significant shareholder. While the investment banking firm employing Mr. Lumley performs underwriting
services for the Corporation and its public subsidiaries from time to time, these assignments are made on a
competitive basis and approved by the Board {such individual having declared his interest and not voted) or
by the board of directors of the relevant public subsidiary. While Torys, to which Mr. Davis is counsel, provides
legal services from year to year to the Board and its committees and to certain of the Corporation’s public
subsidiaries, the amount or dollar value of such services are not significant or material either to Torys or to
Magna when compared to the overall amount or dollar value of legal services provided to Magna and its
subsidiaries in any period. These relationships and/or services are neither “material” to the Corporation nor
do they interfere with or compromise such directors’ “ability to act with a view to the best interests of the
Corporation”. Magna accordingly believes all seven (7) directors are “unrelated” within the meaning of
Guidelines (2) and (3). The other six (6) Board members are related, Ms. Stronach being a member of
management, Messrs. Gingl, Walker (who is not standing for re-election as a director of the Corporation), Wolf
and Fike being present or former officers and members of management and Mr. F. Stronach and Ms. Stronach
being both officers of the Corporation and trustees of and therefore related to the Stronach Trust. The
Stronach Trust is a significant shareholder by virtue of its voting control of the Corporation through its Class B
shareholdings. See “Voting Securities and Their Principal Holders”” above. None of the seven (7) “‘unrelated”
directors have interests in or relationships with the Stronach Trust and Magna therefore believes that the
Board’s composition appropriately reflects the investment in the Corporation by its shareholders other than
the Stronach Trust. '

Magna has established a number of Board committees in order to permit the Board to delegate as well as
share responsibility amongst the directors and to devote the necessary expertise and resources to a particular
area. These committees include an Audit Committee, a Human Resources and Compensation Committee
and an Environmental Committee. All of the members of these committees currently consist solely of
“outside” and “unrelated” directors as recommended by Guideline (9). Ad hoc Board committees, including
special committees, have also been established from time to time to carry out a specific function delegated by
the Board. Each committee, particularly the Audit Committee, has a specifically defined mandate and
responsibilities which have been established by the Board as recommended by Guideline.(13). See “Board of
Directors — Board Committees” above for a description of the Committee mandates and their membership.
While Magna has not established a Nomination Committee and/or a Corporate Governance Committee as
recommended by Guidelines (4) and (10), the Corporation believes that the nomination of directors (within the
requirements established by the Corporate Constitution) and other issues normally considered by these
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committees can be effectively dealt with by the “unrelated” or “outside” directors on the Board due to its
relatively small size, by the Audit Committee or Human Resources and Compensation Committee which are
composed entirely of “outside” directors, all of whom are “unrelated”, or by the Lead Director.

Magna ensures that new Board recruits are provided with a basic understanding of its business to assist
them in contributing effectively from the commencement of their election by the Board and/or shareholders as
recommended by Guideline (6). This includes an orientation manual as well as the opportunity for each new
member to meet with senior management and operational personnel and to visit the Corporation’s
manufacturing and other facilities. Following their election, Board members routinely accept standing
invitations to visit operational facilities and engage in discussions with individual corporate or operational
managers. Magna does not, at the current time, have a formal process for assessing the effectiveness of the
Board as a whole, its committees or the contributions of individual directors as recommended by Guideline

(5).

Functioning and Independence of the Board

Guidelines (11) and (12) also discuss other issues which arise out of the relationship between the Board
and management, including a recommendation that the limits of management’s responsibilities be defined
and that structures and procedures be put in place to ensure the Board can function independently of
management. As noted above, the primary legal mechanism implemented by the Corporation to ensure
Board independence from management is the “outside’” director requirement in the Corporate Constitution
and the existence of a majority of what the Corporation believes are “unrelated” directors. The Board has no
formal policy or “position description” setting out which specific matters must be brought by the Chief
Executive Officer and management to the Board for approval; however there is a clear understanding between
management and the Board through historical Board practice and accepted legal practice that all transactions
or other matters of a material nature must be presented by management for approval by the Board. As
previously indicated, each committee does have a formal written mandate outlining such committee’s
responsibilities and its obligation to report its recommendations to the Board. Subject to those powers which it
has specifically delegated, the Board retains residual authority.

Mr. F. Stronach has been the Chairman of the Board since 1971 reflecting his position as the founder of a
predecessor of the Corporation in 1957. While a trustee of the Stronach Trust and therefore related to the
controlling shareholder, he is technically a non-executive chairman; however, the Corporation does not
consider him as such due to the foregoing relationship and his relationship with Stronach & Co. See “Interests
of Management and Other Insiders in Certain Transactions” above. Effective August 1, 1996, Mr. W. G. Davis
was appointed as the Lead Director of the Board. The Lead Director’s duties include representing the _
Corporation’s “outside” and “‘unrelated” directors in discussions with senior management on corporate
governance issues and related matters as contemplated by Guideline (12). See “Board of Directors — Board”
above. In addition, the Corporation believes that its current Board size facilitates direct and immediate
communication between “unrelated” directors and management and permits individual directors to directly
involve themselves in specific matters where their personal inclination or experience will assist the Board as a
whole and management in dealing with a specific issue.

The Board has not developed a formal position description or mandate for the Chief Executive Officer nor
specific written corporate objectives which the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for meeting as
recommended by Guideline (11); however, there is regular discussion between the Board, the Human
Resources and Compensation Committee, the Lead Director, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
with respect to the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and senior management in achieving the
Corporation’s strategic objectives as jointly determined by the Board and management. The Human
Resources and Compensation Committee also considers the performance of the Chief Executive Officer in
reviewing any changes to the Chief Executive Officer's employment terms and compensation and generally
reviews the performance of other senior managers with the Chief Executive Officer during each financial year.
See “Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers — Report on Executive Compensation” above.

In the past, members of the Board as well as committees of the Board have met independently of
management when considered necessary as recommended by Guideline (12). Committees are empowered
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to and bave previously engaged outside advisors at the expense of the Corporation as has the Lead Director
as recommended by Guideline (14); however, no situation has arisen to date in which an individual director
(other than the Lead Director) or committee member has expressed an interest in retaining, or has actually
retained, an outside advisor at the expense of the Corporation. The Board would consider each such request
on its merits at the time such request was made.

Directors who are not employees of the Corporation are currently paid certain annual retainer and per
meeting fees. Magna reviews the form and adequacy of these compensation levels every two years relative to
comparator companies of simflar size and global presence, both within and outside the automotive industry,
in order to ascertain the appropriate level of compensation which realistically reflects the responsibilities and
risks involved in serving as a Board member as recommended by Guideline (8). As a result of a review of such
compensation, the Corporation increased the amount of compensation payable to its outside directors
effective January 1, 2000 based on the recommendations of management and “inside” directors and the
Corporation’s shareholders approved the grant of options to “‘outside” directors at the Annual and Special
Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation on May 18, 2000. The bi-annual review of directors compensation
is currently underway. See “Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers — Directors’ Compensation”
above.

Responsibilities of the Board

Guideline (1} of the Guidelines emphasizes the “stewardship” responsibilities of a board to oversee the
conduct of the business and to supervise management {which is responsible for the day-to-day conduct of the
business) and specifically identifies the following five matters which are considered as the principal
responsibilities to be discharged by a board. These matters are in addition to the Board’s legal obligations
under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario). See “Board of Directors — Board” above.

Adoption of a Strategic Planning Process. The Corporation for many years has had a strategic planning
process which directly involves the Board. Prior to the commencement of, or in the first month of, each
financial year, the Board participates in a meeting with management devoted solely to strategic planning in
which future trends and risks in the automotive industry over a three to seven year horizon are jointly identified.
Specific product strategies and three-year business plans at both the corporate and group level are presented
by corporate and group management for discussion. Capital expenditure projections for the following
financial year are reviewed and a budget approved at the conclusion of the meeting. Updates on industry
trends, product strategies, new product developments, major new business, capital expenditures and specific
problem areas/action plans are presented by management and discussed as part of a management report at
each regular quarterly Board meeting.

Identification of and Managing Principal Risks. By means of both the annual strategic planning meeting
and quarterly updates by management, the Board identifies and reviews with management the principal
business risks and receives reports of management’s assessment of and proposed responses to those risks
as they develop in order to ensure that all risks are being appropriately managed. For example the Board and
management developed a corporate strategy to significantly expand its operations outside the United States
and Canada commencing in fiscal 1994 in response to the historical cyclicality of the North American auto
industry and the continued trend to the development of global automotive markets. More recently, following
the recommendation of a special committee, the Board approved the creation of two new giobal groups,
Magna Interiors (now called intier Automotive Inc.) and Magna Steyr, in order to meet the global requirements
of the Corporation’s OEM customers, approved the spinoff of Intier as a separate public company in
August 2001 and reviewed and approved the previously proposed merger of the Magna Steyr Group with
Tesma. In addition, both the Audit Committee and the Environmental Committee play a role in identifying and
implementing monitoring and other systems to deal with the risks which fall within their respective mandates.

Succession Planning, Including Appointing, Training and Monitoring Senior Management. Magna’s
long-established policy of profit-based compensation has continued to be implemented by the Human
Resources and Compensation Committee at the corporate level in order to attract, retain and motivate skilled
and entrepreneurial management and employees and to ensure that management performance (as
measured by the Corporation’s profitability) bears a direct relatlonshxp to their level of compensation. See
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“Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers — Report on Executive Compensation” above. Through
its review of all officer appointments, particularly that of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board and the
Committee is involved in management succession and manpower planning issues. The Chief Executive
Officer reviews management succession and development with the Committee as part of the annual
compensation review process, both of which remain key objectives for fiscal 2002. While the responsibility for
direct training has traditionally been left to senior management, the Board satisfies itself that the necessary
levels of skill and experience exist when reviewing and making appointments. '

Communications Policy. The Board has ensured that a program is in place to effectively communicate
with the Corporation’s stakeholders, including shareholders, employees and the general public. The
Corporation’s investor communications personnel are responsible for responding to all shareholder
communications and for the operation of Magna’s investor communications program. This program includes
quarterly open conference calls/webcasts to present the financial results for each quarter as well as the
complete financial year, industry analyst meetings and meetings with institutional shareholders. Extensive
presentations are made at each Annual Shareholders Meeting which explain the Corporation’s business
results for the prior financial year and business objectives and strategies for the future. Management reports
quarterly to the Board on the financial markets and major shareholder activity. The Board reviews and
approves all material investor communications, including press releases involving the dissemination of
quarterly financial information and all material regulatory disclosure documents. The Board and management
also place great emphasis on the Corporation’s employee communications program, which is administered
by Magna’s Employee Relations Department, particularly the management of its unique Employee Charter of
Rights. This program includes monthly employee communications meetings, the publication of a monthly
news letter (Magna People) and an employee annual report as well as the maintenance of an employee
hot line and divisional fairness committees to directly address individual employee concerns.

Integrity of Internal Control and Management Information Systems. The Board, through the Audit and
Environmental Committees, has ensured that effective systems are in place to monitor the integrity of the
Corporation’s internat control and management information systems in their delegated areas. Both the Audit
Committee and Environmental Committee meet quarterly prior to each quarterly Board meeting. See “Board
of Directors — Board Committees” above for a description of Committee mandates and membership.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

During fiscal 2001 the Corporation renewed for a three year period commencing August 1, 2001 through
July 31, 2004, an insurance policy which currently provides, amongst other coverages, for executive liability of
up to $255 million (per occurrence and in the aggregate for all claims made during the policy period) for _
officers and directors of the Corporation and its subsidiaries, subject to a $250,000 aggregate deductible for
executive indemnification. This policy does not provide coverage for losses arising from the breach of
fiduciary responsibilities under statutory or common law or from violations of or the enforcement of pollutant
laws and regulations. The premium payable in respect of the policy year August 1, 2001 to July 31, 2002 for
the executive indemnification portion of this insurance policy was approximately Cdn.$648,200.

RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR

At the Meeting the shareholders will be asked to re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as the Auditor of the
Corporation, and management, the Audit Committee and the Board recommend that the shareholders do so.
Ernst & Young LLP has been the Auditor of the Corporation since February 27, 1969. The persons named in
the accompanying form(s) of proxy will, in the case of a ballot and in the absence of specifications or
instructions to abstain from voting on the form of proxy, vote for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as
the Auditor of the Corporation to hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation
and to authorize the directors to fix the Auditor’s remuneration.

Representatives of Ernst & Young LLP are expected to attend the Meeting, will have an opportunity to
make a statement if they so desire and are expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions.
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A\.\ MAGNA CLASS B SHARES

PROXY

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED BY AND ON BEHALF OF
THE MANAGEMENT OF THE CORPORATION

The undersigned shareholder of Magna International inc. (the “Corporation”) hereby appoints
Frank Stronach, or failing him Belinda Stronach, or failing her Brian Colburn, or instead of any of them
as the proxyholder of the undersigned, with full power of substitution, in respect of all the Class B Shares of the
Corporation held by the undersigned, to attend at, and to act and vote on behalf of the undersigned in respect
of all matters that may come before, the Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of the Corporation on May 9,
2002 and any and all adjournments or postponements thereof, and, without limiting the general authority
conferred by this proxy, the undersigned hereby specifically directs such proxyholder as follows:

(@) To vote FOR [J or ABSTAIN [ in respect of the election of
William G. Davis, William H. Fike, Manfred Gingl, Edward C.
Lumley, Karlheinz Muhr, Gerhard Randa, Donald Resnick,
Royden R. Richardson, Belinda Stronach, Frank Stronach, Franz
Vranitzky and Siegfried Wolf as directors (to withhold your vote
from any individual nominee strike a line through the
nominee’s name),

(b) To vote FOR [J or ABSTAIN O in respect of the re-appointment of
the Auditor, and

(c) Tovote FOR ] or ABSTAIN ] from authorizing the directors to fix
the Auditor’s remuneration.

This proxy confers ‘discretionary authority to vote on
amendments or variations to the matters identified in the Notice of
Annual Meeting of Shareholders and on all other business or
matters as may properly come before the meeting or any
adjournments or postponements thereof.

The proxyholder will vote FOR the election of the management
nominees for the office of director, FOR the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young LLP as the Auditor of the Corporation and FOR
authorizing the directors to fix the Auditor’s remuneration, where a
choice for each such matter is not specified in this proxy.

The undersigned confirms the express wish that this document
and the documents relating hereto including the Management
Information Circular/Proxy Statement be in English only. Le
soussigné confirme sa volonté expresse que ce document et les
documents se rattachant a la presente, y compris la circulaire
d’information et de procuration de la direction soient rédigés en
anglais seulement.

The undersigned hereby revokes any proxy previously given.

Date . ... . . 2002

Signature . . ...

NOTES:

1. This proxy must be signed by the shareholder or his attorney duly authorized
in writing.

2. If the shareholder is a corporation, this proxy must be executed by an officer or
attorney thereof duly authorized in writing.

3. Please date this proxy. If not dated, it shall be deemed to be dated the day on which it
is mailed.

4. A shareholder has the right to appoint a person to attend and to act for him on
his behalf at the meeting other than the management nominees named above.
Such right may be exercised by striking out the names of Mr. Frank Stronach,
Ms. Belinda Stronach and Mr. Brian Colburn and inserting in the space provided the
name of the person to be appointed, who need not be a shareholder of the
Corporation, or by completing another proper form of proxy.

If your address as shown is incorrect please give your correct address when
returning this proxy.




Magna International Inc.
337 Magna Drive

@
Aurora, Ontario, Canada 14G 7K1
A Tel: (905) 726-2462
Fax: (905) 726-7173

NOTICE TO NON-REGISTERED SHAREHOLDERS

RE: INTERIM MAILINGS

Magna International Inc. (*‘Magna”) maintains a Supplemental Mailing List which includes the names of
certain shareholders each of whose shares are registered in the name of a broker, bank or other intermediary
rather than in the shareholder’'s own name. Magna mails interim financial material (e.g., quarterly reports)
directly to such non-registered shareholders on the Supplemental Mailing List. This list is in addition to, and
separate from, the Registered Shareholder Mailing List maintained by Magna'’s Registrar and Transfer Agent.

If you are a non-registered shareholder and wish to be added to our Supplemental Mailing List so
as to receive interim financial material (e.g. quarterly reports), please detach and return the reply
section of this notice with your completed proxy.

Registered shareholders will continue to receive interim mailings and need not reply.
For further information, please contact:

Ms. Yvonne Baillargeon-Klugmann

Office of the Corporate Secretary

Magna International inc.

337 Magna Drive

Aurora, Ontario, Canada L4G 7K1
Telefax: (905) 726-7173

Materials can be obtained through our website http://www.magna.com at any time.
PLEASE COMPLETE AND DETACH THE FORM BELOW

CUSIP #559222-40-1 April 4, 2002

To receive interim financial reports of Magna International Inc., please PRINT your name and address in
the space below and return this reply section of the notice with your completed proxy. Please note that interim
reports and annual reports are available on our website.

NAME OF NON-REGISTERED SHAREHOLDER

MAILING ADDRESS

Postal Code/Zip Code

SIGNATURE
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Magna International Inc.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in U.S. dollars following Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles [“Canadian GAAP”], which are in conformity, in all
material respects, with United States generally accepted accounting principles [“U.S. GAAP"],
except as described in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Magna International Inc. and its
subsidiaries [collectively “Magna” or the “Company”], some of which have a minority interest.
The Company accounts for its interests in jointly controlled entities using the proportionate
consolidation method. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated.

Foreign currency translation

Assets and liabilities of the Company’s operations having a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate in effect at the year end and
revenues and expenses are translated at the average rate during the year. Exchange gains or losses
on translation of the Company’s net equity investment in these operations are deferred as a
separate component of shareholders’ equity.

The appropriate amounts of exchange gains or losses accumulated in the separate component of
shareholders’ equity are reflected in income when there is a reduction in the Company’s net
investment in the operations that gave rise to such exchange gains and losses.

Foreign exchange gains and losses on transactions occurring in a currency other than an
operation’s functional currency are reflected in income except for gains and losses on foreign
exchange contracts used to hedge specific future commitments in foreign currencies. Gains and
losses on these contracts are accounted for as a component of the related hedged transaction.
Gains and losses on translation of foreign currency long-term monetary liabilities are deferred and
amortized over the period to maturity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on account, demand deposits and short-term investments
with remaining maturities of less than three months at acquisition.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, with cost being determined
substantially on a first-in, first-out basis. Cost includes the cost of materials plus direct [abour
applied to the product and the applicable share of manufacturing overhead.
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Magna International Inc.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments

The Company accounts for its investments in which it has significant influence on the equity
basis. Investments also include interest bearing marketable securities intended to be held to
maturity and are recorded at amortized cost.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are recorded at historical cost which inciudes acquisition and development costs.
Development costs include direct construction costs, interest capitalized on construction in
progress and land under development and indirect costs wholly attributable to development.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of fixed assets at
annual rates of 2 1/2% to 5% for buildings, 7% to 10% for general purpose equipment and 10% to
30% for special purpose equipment.

Costs incurred in establishing new facilities which require substantial time to reach commercial
production capability are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of the Company’s interest in subsidiary
companies over the fair value of the underlying net identifiable assets arising on acquisitions.
Goodwill is generally amortized over 20 years and in all cases amortization does not exceed
40 years. The Company reviews the valuation and amortization periods of goodwill whenever
events or changes in circumstances warrant such a review. In doing so, the Company evaluates
whether there has been a permanent impairment in the value of unamortized goodwill based on the
estimated undiscounted cash flows of each business to which the goodwill relates.

Other assets

Other assets include racing licenses. Racing licenses are recorded at cost less accumulated
amortization. Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over 20 years.

Other assets also include long-term receivables. The long-term receivables represent the
recognized sales value of design and engineering services provided to customers under certain
long-term contracts. The receivables will be paid in fixed amounts per vehicle forecasted to be
assembled over the period from 2003 to 2010. In the event that actual assembly volumes are less
than those forecasted a reimbursement for any shortfall will be made annually. The fixed
receivable amount per vehicle will include an interest component for extended payment terms that
will be accrued over time between the beginning of the production period and the collection date.

n
L




Magna International Inc.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Employee benefit plans

The cost of providing benefits through defined benefit pensions, lump sum termination and long
service payment arrangements, and post-retirement benefits other than pensions is actuarially
determined and recognized in income using the projected benefit method prorated on service and
management’s best estimate of expected plan investment performance, salary escalation and
retirement ages of employees. Differences arising from plan amendments, changes in assumptions
and experience gains and losses are recognized in income over the expected average remaining
service life of employees. Plan assets are valued at fair value. The cost of providing benefits
through defined contribution pension plans is charged to income in the period in respect of which
contributions become payable.

Subordinated debentures

The Company's subordinated debentures are recorded in part as debt and in part as shareholders’
equity.

The debt component consists of the present value of the future interest payments on the
subordinated debentures to maturity and is presented as debentures’ interest obligation. Interest
on the debt component is accrued over time and recognized as a charge against income.

The equity component includes the present value of the principal amount of the subordinated
debentures which can be satisfied by issuing Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of the Company
at the option of the Company. This amount will be accreted to the face value of the subordinated
debentures over the term to maturity through periodic charges, net of income taxes, to retained
earnings.

In addition, in the case of the convertible subordinated debentures, the equity component also
includes the value of the holders’ option to convert the convertible subordinated debentures into
Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of the Company. The holders’ conversion options are valued
using a residual value approach.

Each of the above equity components are included in other paid-in capital in shareholders’ equity

except for the equity component of subordinated debentures issued by the Company’s subsidiaries.
The equity component of subsidiary subordinated debentures is included in minority interest.

Preferred Securities

Preferred Securities are included in shareholders’ equity and financing charges, net of income
taxes, on the Preferred Securities are accrued over time and charged directly to retained earnings.
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Magna International Inc.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of manufactured products is recognized when the price is fixed or
determinable, collectability is reasonably assured and upon shipment to [or receipt by customers
depending on contractual terms], and acceptance by, customers.

Revenues from separately priced engineering service and tooling contracts are recognized on a
percentage of completion basis. In addition, revenues are recognized on a percentage of
completion basis in respect of design and engineering services provided to customers under certain
long-term contracts where a fixed amount per vehicle assembled is paid over a predefined period
[see “Other assets” under “Significant Accounting Policies”].

Revenue and cost of sales are presented on a gross basis in the consolidated statements of income
when the Company is acting as principal and is subject to significant risks and rewards of the
business. Otherwise, components of revenues and related costs are presented on a net basis.

Preproduction costs related to long-term supply agreements

Costs incurred [net of customer subsidies] related to design and engineering, which are reimbursed
as part of subsequent related parts production piece price amounts, are expensed as incurred unless
a contractual guarantee for reimbursement exists.

Costs incurred [net of customer subsidies] related to design and development costs for moulds,
dies and other tools that the Company does not own [and that will be used in, and reimbursed as
part of the piece price amount for, subsequent related parts production] are expensed as incurred
unless the supply agreement provides a contractual guarantee for reimbursement or the
non-cancelable right to use the moulds, dies and other tools during the supply agreement.

Government financing

The Company makes periodic applications for financial assistance under available government
assistance programs in the various jurisdictions in which the Company operates. Grants relating to
capital expenditures are reflected as a reduction of the cost of the related assets. Grants and tax
credits relating to current operating expenditures are generally recorded as a reduction of expense
at the time the eligible expenses are incurred. In the case of certain foreign subsidiaries, the
Company receives tax super allowances, which are accounted for as a reduction of income tax
expense. The Company also receives loans which are recorded as liabilities in amounts equal to
the cash received.

Research and development

The Company carries on various applied research and development programs, certain of which are
partially or fully funded by governments or by customers of the Company. Funding received is
accounted for using the cost reduction approach. Research costs are expensed as incurred and
development costs which meet certain criteria where future benefit is reasonably certain are
deferred to the extent of their estimated recovery.
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Magna International Inc.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Income taxes

The Company uses the liability method of tax allocation for accounting for income taxes. Under
the liability method of tax allocation, future tax assets and liabilities are determined based on
differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured
using the substantively enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are
expected to reverse.

Stock-based compensation

No compensation expense is recognized for stock options granted under the Company’s Incentive
Stock Option Plan. Consideration paid on the exercise of stock options is credited to capital stock.

Earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share

Basic earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share are calculated on net income less
financing charges on Preferred Securities and other paid-in capital, and the foreign exchange loss
on the redemption of the 5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures [see note 6] using the
weighted average number of Class A Subordinate Voting and Class B Shares outstanding during
the year.

Fully diluted earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share are calculated on the
weighted average number of Class A Subordinate Voting and Class B Shares that would have
been outstanding during the year had all the convertible subordinated debentures been exercised or
converted into Class A Subordinate Voting Shares at the beginning of the year, or date of
issuance, if later. In addition, the weighted average number of Class A Subordinate Voting and
Class B Shares used to determine diluted earnings per share includes an adjustment for stock
options outstanding using the treasury stock method. Under the treasury stock method:

e the exercise of options is assumed to be at the beginning of the period {or at the time of
issuance, if later];

¢ the proceeds from the exercise of options are assumed to be used to purchase Class A
Subordinate Voting Shares at the average market price during the period; and

¢ the incremental number of Class A Subordinate Voting Shares [the difference between the
number of shares assumed issued and the number of shares assumed purchased] are included
in the denominator of the diluted earnings per share computation. '

Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates that affect the amounts
reported and disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
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Magna International Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

{U.S. dollars in millions]

Years ended December 31,

Note 2001 2000 1999
[restated - note 2]
Sales
Automotive $ 10,507 $ 10,099 $ 9.260
Magna Entertainment Corp. 519 414 187
11,026 10,513 9,447
Automotive costs and expenses
Cost of goods sold 8,588 8,264 7,659
Depreciation and amortization 399 372 332
Selling, general and administrative 685 655 607
Interest expense, net 14 2 13 16
Equity income (16) (14) a7n
Magna Entertainment Corp. costs and expenses 496 412 183
Operating income - automotive 849 809 663
Operating income — Magna Entertainment Corp. 23 2 4
Operating income 872 811 667
Other income 3 46 161 —
Income before income taxes and minority interest 918 972 667
Income taxes 12 290 348 229
Minority interest 48 26 19
Net income for the year $ 580 $ 598 $ 419
Earnings per Class A Subordinate
Voting or Class B Share 4
Basic $ 657 $§ 704 $ 494
Diluted 2 $ 620 § o644 $ 465
Cash dividends paid per Class A
Subordinate Voting or Class B Share $ 136 $ 124 3 L1l
Average number of Class A Subordinate Voting and
Class B Shares outstanding during
the year [in millions}: 4
Basic 80.1 785 78.5
Diluted’ - 2 914 91.5 91.1

See accompanying notes
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Magna International Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

OF RETAINED EARNINGS

[U.S. dollars in millions]

Years ended December 31,

Note 2001 2000 1999
Retained earnings, beginning of year $1,789 §$ 1,446 $ 1,128
Net income for the year 580 598 419
Financing charges on Preferred Securities and

other paid-in capital 44) 45) 3D
Dividends on Class A Subordinate

Voting and Class B Shares 5 (109) (209) (70)
Foreign exchange loss on the redemption of the 5%

Convertible Subordinated Debentures 6 (10) —_ —_
Distribution on transfer of business to subsidiary 7 14 — —
Surrender of subsidiary stock options —_ )] —
Retained earnings, end of year $ 2,220 $ 1,789 $ 1,446

See accompanying notes
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Magna International Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{U.S. dollars in millions]

Years ended December 31,

Note 2001 2000 1999
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year $ 580 $ 598 $ 419
Items not involving current cash flows 8 443 393 373
1,023 991 792
Changes in non-cash working capital 8 6 (336) (79)
Cash provided from operating activities 1,029 655 713
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Fixed asset additions (525) (653) (859)
Purchase of subsidiaries 9 (40) (68) 211)
Increase in investments and other (46) (28) (26)
Proceeds from disposition of investments
and other 3 97 346 146
Cash used for investment activities (514) (403) (950)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issues of debt 14 34 67 217
Issues of shares by subsidiaries 3 184 4 1
Repayments of debt 14 an 147 (73)
Redemption of 5% Convertible
Subordinated Debentures 6 (121) — —
Redemption of Subordinated
Debentures by subsidiary 3,9 90) — —_
Repayments of debentures’
interest obligation 15 33) (33) (30)
Preferred Securities distributions 15 (28) (26) 3
Surrender of subsidiary stock options —_ (2) —
Issues of Preferred Securities 15 — — 274
Issues of subordinated debentures 15 _ —_ 104
Issues of Class A Subordinate
Voting Shares 17 27 — —
Dividends paid to minority interests 9) (6) 3)
Dividends (109) (97) (87)
Cash provided from (used for) financing activities (222) (240) 400
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
and cash equivalents 23) 24) (15)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents during the year 270 (12) 148
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 620 632 484
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 890 $ 620 $ 632

See accompanying notes
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Magna International Inc.
Incorporated under the laws of Ontario

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

[U.S. dollars in millions)

As at December 31

Note 2001 2000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8% $ 620
Accounts receivable 1,752 1,684
Inventories 10 842 767
Prepaid expenses and other ’ 74 66
3,558 3,137
Investments 16, 21 88 86
Fixed assets, net 11 3,595 3,589
Goodwill, net 9 259 295
Future tax assets 12 114 96
Other assets 13 292 205
$ 7,906 $ 7,408
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
Bank indebtedness 14 $ 308 $ 338
Accounts payable 21 1,451 1,314
Accrued salaries and wages 228 215
Other accrued liabilities 158 119
Income taxes payable 12 62 51
Long-term debt due within one year 14 54 46
2,261 2,083
Long-term debt 14 244 268
Debentures’ interest obligation 15 114 191
Other long-term liabilities 16 85 84
Future tax )iabilities 12 276 224
Minority interest 9.15 441 356
3,421 3,206
Shareholders’ equity
Capitai stock 17
Class A Subordinate Voting Shares
[issued: 2001 - 82,244,518; 2000 - 77,467,153) 1,682 1,442
Class B Shares

[convertible into Class A Subordinate Voting Shares]

{issued: 2001 - 1,097,009; 2000 - 1,097,905} 1 1
Preferred Securities 15 277 277
Other paid-in capital 15 463 734
Retained earnings 12,20 2,220 1.789
Currency translation adjustment 19 (158) (41)

4,485 4,202
$ 7,906 $ 7.408

Commitments and contingencies [notes 14 and 22}
See accompanying notes

On behalf of the Board:

Director

N

Chairman of the Bg




Magna International Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[all amounts in U.S. dollars and all tabular amounts in millions unless otherwise noted]

December 31, 200!

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies followed by the Company are set out under “Significant
Accounting Policies™ preceding these consolidated financial statements.

2. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

In December 2000, The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants [“CICA”] issued new
accounting recommendations for the presentation and disclosure of basic and diluted earnings per
share. Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted these new recommendations on a
retroactive basis. The most significant change under the new recommendations is the use of the
“treasury stock method” instead of the “imputed earnings approach” in computing diluted earnings
per share. Under the treasury stock method:

e exercise of options are assumed at the beginning of the period [or at the time of issuance, if
later];

e the proceeds from exercise are assumed to be used to purchase common stock at the average
market price during the period; and

e the incremental shares [the difference between the number of shares assumed issued and the
number of shares assumed purchased] are included in the denominator of the diluted earnings
per share computation. '

The retroactive impact of adopting the new recommendations for the years ended December 31,
2000 and 1999 was to increase diluted earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share
by $0.10 and $0.02, respectively, and to reduce the average number of diluted Class A
Subordinate Voting and Class B Shares outstanding by 1.8 million and 0.7 million, respectively.
The impact of adopting the new recommendations for the year ended December 31, 2001 was to
increase diluted earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share by $0.11, and to reduce
the average number of diluted Class A Subordinate Voting and Class B Shares outstanding by
2.4 million.
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Magna International Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[all amounts in U.S. dollars and all tabular amounts in millions unless otherwise noted]

December 31, 2001

3.
[a]

[b]

OTHER INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2001

In April 2001, Magna Entertainment Corp. [“MEC”], a publicly traded subsidiary of Magna,
issued 3.2 million shares of Class A Subordinate Voting Stock of MEC to complete the
acquisition of certain businesses [see note 9]. Magna incurred a loss of $7 million from its
ownership dilution on the issue. The loss incurred was not subject to income taxes as the
issue was completed on a primary basis by MEC.

In June 2001, Decoma International Inc. [“Decoma”], a publicly traded subsidiary of Magna,
completed a public offering by issuing 16.1 million Decoma Class A Subordinate Voting
Shares for aggregate cash consideration, net of share issue expenses, of $111 million. Magna
recognized a gain of $49 million from its ownership dilution arising from the issue. The gain
realized was not subject to income taxes as the issue was completed on a primary basis by
Decoma.

On August 9, 2001, Intier Automotive Inc. [“Intier”], a subsidiary of Magna, completed an
initial public offering by issuing 5.5 million Intier Class A Subordinate Voting Shares to third
parties for aggregate cash consideration, net of share issue expenses, of $72 million. Magna
recognized a gain of $6 million from its ownership dilution arising from the issue. The gain
realized was not subject to income taxes as the issue was completed on a primary basis by
Intier.

In October 2001, Decoma redeemed the outstanding amount of the Decoma Subordinated
Debentures. Magna incurred a loss of $2 million from its ownership dilution arising from the
redemption. The loss incurred was not subject to income taxes.

For the year ended December 31, 2000

During the year ended December 31, 2000, Magna recognized a gain before income taxes of
$36 million on the sale of 4.4 million Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Tesma
International Inc. [*Tesma™], a publicly traded subsidiary of Magna.

The Company also completed the sale of its 50% interest in Webasto Sunroofs Inc., a joint
venture, and related real estate and completed the sale of Invotronics, a wholly owned
manufacturing division. The Company recognized gains before income taxes of $94 million
and $31 million on these disposals, respectively.
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4. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share data are computed as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Basic earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting
or Class B Share:
Net income $ 580 $ 598 $ 419
Financing charges on Preferred Securities and
other paid-in capital (44) 45) 31
Foreign exchange loss on the redemption of the 5%
Convertible Subordinated Debentures (10) — —
Net income available to Class A Subordinate Voting
and Class B Shareholders $ 526 $ 553 $ 388
Average number of Class A Subordinate Voting and
Class B Shares outstanding during the year 80.1 78.5 78.5
Basic earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting
or Class B Share $ 6.57 $ 7.04 $ 494
Diluted earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting
or Class B Share:
Net income available to Class A Subordinate Voting
and Class B Shareholders ' $ 526 $ 553 $ 388
Adjustments [net of related tax effects]:
Interest, accretion, issue cost amortization and foreign
exchange on 5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures 20 15 15
Interest, accretion, issue cost amortization and foreign
exchange on 4.875% Convertible Subordinated Debentures 21 21 21
$ 567 5 589 $ 424
Average number of Class A Subordinate Voting and
Class B Shares outstanding during the year 80.1 78.5 78.5
5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures 44 6.5 6.3
4.875% Convertible Subordinated Debentures 6.5 6.5 6.3
Stock options 04 — —
914 91.5 91.1
Diluted earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting
or Class B Share $ 6.20 $ 6.44 $ 4.65
3
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Diluted earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share exclude Class A Subordinate
Voting Shares issuable, only at the Company’s option, to settle the 7.08% Subordinated
Debentures and Preferred Securities on redemption or maturity. The number of shares issuable is
dependent on the trading price of Class A Subordinate Voting Shares at redemption or maturity of
the 7.08% Subordinated Debentures and Preferred Securities.

Furthermore, for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, diluted earnings per Class A
Subordinate Voting or Class B Share exclude 1.8 million and 0.7 million Class A Subordinate
Voting Shares issuable under the Company’s Incentive Stock Option Plan, respectively, because
such options were not ‘in-the-money’ during these periods.

5. MEC SPECIAL DIVIDEND

On March 10, 2000, Magna paid a special stock dividend of approximately 20% of MEC’s equity
to Magna Class A Subordinate Voting and Class B shareholders of record on February 25, 2000
[the “special dividend”]. Dividends include $111 million related to the special dividend.

In connection with the special dividend, the holders’ conversion prices with respect 1o the
Company’s 4.875% and 5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures have been adjusted [see
note 15]. The conversion price with respect to the 4.875% Convertible Subordinated Debentures
was reduced to $74.27 from $76.17. Similarly, the conversion price with respect to the
5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures was reduced to $53.04 from $54.40.

6. FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS ON THE REDEMPTION OF THE
5% CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

In August 2001, the Company called for redemption of the $344 million principal amount
outstanding of the 5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures effective September 18, 2001. Prior
to September 18, 2001, an aggregate $224 million principal amount of such debentures was
converted into 4,216,682 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares. The balance of $121 million
principal amount that remained outstanding was redeemed in cash.

On redemption, the Company incurred a foreign exchange loss of $10 million related to the equity
component of the 5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures. Accordingly, such amount was
recorded as a charge to retained earnings. In accordance with the new recommendations of the
CICA, the foreign exchange Joss of $10 million was recorded as a charge to income available to
Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Shareholders and reflected in the calculation of basic and
diluted earnings per share.
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7. DISTRIBUTION ON TRANSFER OF BUSINESS TO SUBSIDIARY

In January 2001, Decoma purchased Magna Exterior Systems [“MES”] and the remaining 60% of
Decoma Exterior Trim [“DET”] owned by Magna. The aggregate purchase price paid by Decoma
was $203 million which was satisfied in cash by $3 million, through the issuance of 8.3 million
Decoma Class A Subordinate Voting Shares and 2 million 5.75% convertible, redeemable and
retractable Decoma Preferred Shares. In addition, Decoma assumed the debt of MES and DET
owing to the Company which totalled $220 million at the closing date. Given that the proceeds
received from Decoma exceeded the net book value of the Company’s investment in MES and
DET on the transaction date, the minority interest portion of such excess has been recorded as a
distribution on the transfer of MES and DET to Decoma. Such distribution also includes the effect
of the increase in Magna’s equity interest in Decoma as a result of this transaction, from
approximately 89% to approximately 91%. The distribution on the transfer of MES and DET to
Decoma has been recorded as an increase in the consolidated retained earnings of the Company.

8. DETAILS OF CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

[a] Items not involving current cash flows:

Years ended December 31

2001 2000 1999
Depreciation and amortization $ 399 $ 372 $ 332
MEC depreciation and amortization 26 20 8
Equity income and other 4 24 11
Minority interest 48 26 19
Future income taxes and non-cash portion of
current taxes 39 52 3
Net gains on sales and issues of shares by subsidiaries (73) (101) —

$ 443 $ 393 $ 373

[b] Changes in non-cash working capital:

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Accounts receivable N ' $ (116) $ (126) $ @4
Inventories (104) (135) (84)
Prepaid expenses and other 2 39) 8
Accounts payable, accrued salaries and wages
and other accrued liabilities 222 an 17
Income taxes payable 2 19) 24
$ 6 $ (336) 3 @9
5
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9. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

The following acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method:
Acquisitions in the year ended December 31, 2001

Autosystems

In September 2001, Decoma acquired the lighting components manufacturing business and related
fixed and working capital assets of Autosystems Manufacturing Inc. [“Autosystems”], an
automotive lighting manufacturer located in Ontario whose principal customers include General
Motors Corporation and Visteon Corporation. Total consideration paid in connection with the
acquisition amounted to $12 million.

MEC

In April 2001, MEC completed the acquisition of Ladbroke Racing Pennsylvania Inc. and Sport
Broadcasting, Inc. [collectively the “Ladbroke Companies™] for total consideration of $48 million
[net of cash acquired of $7 million]. In accordance with the terms of the agreement, $21 million
of the purchase price was paid in cash, $13 million was satisfied through the issuance of
3.2 million shares of Class A Subordinate Voting Stock of MEC and the balance was satisfied
through the issuance of two promissory notes that are payable on the first and second anniversaries
of closing, respectively. The promissory notes bear interest at 6% per annum. The Ladbroke
Companies include account wagering operations, The Meadows harness track and four off-track
betting facilities.

The following is a summary of the effect on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet of the
current year’s acquisitions, including the transactions described above:

Ladbroke
Autosystems  Companies Other Total
Non-cash working capital $ 2 $ SN $ (12)
Fixed assets 10 20 13 43
Other assets — 62 10 72
Long-term debt
[including portion due within one year] — — (6) (6)
Future tax liabilities —_ (28) 8 (20)
Minority interest — —_ 4) 4)
Total purchase price [net of cash acquired]) $1i2 $47 $14 $73
Comprised of:
Cash $12 $21 $7 $ 40
Notes payable — 13 5 18
MEC Class A Subordinate Voting Stock
presented as minority interest — 13 2 15
$12 $ 47 514 $73
6
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Acquisitions in the year ended December 31, 2000

Conix Group

In October 2000, Decoma acquired the remaining 49% minority interests in Conix Canada Inc.,
Conix Corporation, Conix U.K. Ltd. and Conix Belgium N.V. [collectively the “Conix Group”]
for a total purchase price of $133 million [net of $7 million of cash acquired}. The Conix Group
operates fascia moulding and finishing operations in Canada, the United States, England and
Belgium. Of the total consideration, $43 million was paid in cash and the balance was satisfied
through the issuance by Decoma of $90 million 9.5% Subordinated Debentures.

MEC

In February 2000, MEC acquired the assets and assumed certain liabilities of Great Lakes Downs,
Inc. racetrack in Muskegon, Michigan for a purchase price of $2 million, payable through the
issuance of shares of MEC Class A Subordinate Voting Stock. In November 2000, MEC acquired
all of the membership interest and capital stock in Bay Meadows Operating Company, LL.C and
Bay Meadows Catering, respectively, operators of the Bay Meadows racetrack in California for
cash consideration of $24 million.

Summary of acquisitions in the year ended December 31, 2000

Consideration paid for acquisitions, including the transactions described above, consisted of cash
of $67 million, the issuance by Decoma of $90 million 9.5% subordinated debentures and the
issuance by MEC of shares of its Class A Subordinate Voting Stock totalling $2 million. The net
effects on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet were increases in non-cash working capital
of $22 million, fixed assets of $90 million, goodwill of $68 million, other assets of $21 million,
bank indebtedness and long-term debt of $37 million and net future tax liabilities of $5 million.

Acquisitions in the year ended December 31, 1999

MATAG
In September 1999, the remaining 40% minority interest in Magna Automobiltechnik AG
["MATAG”] was purchased by the Company for total cash consideration of $45 million.

HACC

In January 1999, Tesma completed the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding shares of Hanwha
Automotive Components Corporation [“HACC”], a South Korean based manufacturer of oil and
water pump systems, for cash consideration of $5 million [net of cash acquired of $3 million].
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MEC

During the year ended December 31, 1999, MEC completed the acquisition of five racetracks. In
May 1999, the real estate assets of San Luis Rey Downs, a horse boarding and training center in
California, were acquired for cash consideration of $6 million. In September 1999, MEC acquired
Guifstream Park in Florida for cash consideration of $81 million [net of cash acquired of
$8 million]. In November 1999, MEC acquired the Thistledown and Remington Park racetracks
in Ohio and Oklahoma, respectively, for total consideration of $19 million [net of cash acquired of
$6 miilion]. Finally, in December 1999, the acquisition of Golden Gate Fields in California was
completed for total consideration of $84 million [net of cash acquired of $1 million]. Of the total
consideration, $161 million was paid in cash, $12 million was paid through the issuance of shares
of MEC Class A Subordinate Voting Stock and the balance was satisfied by way of a non-interest
bearing promissory note having a discounted value of $17 million.

Summary of acquisitions in the year ended December 31, 1999

Consideration paid for acquisitions, including the transactions described above, consisted of cash,
promissory notes and subsidiary share consideration of $211 million, $17 million and $12 million,
respectively. The net effects on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet were decreases in
non-cash working capital of $13 million and minority interest of $23 million, and increases in
fixed assets of $220 million, other assets of $102 million, goodwill of $21 million, bank
indebtedness and long-term debt of $29 million and net future tax liabilities of $85 million.

Proforma impact

If the acquisitions and disposals [see note 3] completed during the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000 occurred on January 1, 2000, the Company’s unaudited proforma consolidated
sales would have been $11.1 billion for the year ended December 31, 2001 [2000 - $10.8 billion)
and unaudited proforma net income of the Company would have been $569 million [2000 -
$600 million].
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10. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of:

2001 2000

Raw materials and supplies $ 243 $ 257
Work-in-process 106 98
Finished goods 125 - 116
Tooling and engineering 368 296
‘ $ 842 $ 767

Tooling and engineering inventory represents costs incurred on separately priced tooling and
engineering services contracts in excess of billed and unbilled amounts included in accounts
receivable. -

11. FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets consist of:

2001 2000
Cost'
Land $ 554 $ 536
Buildings . 1,276 1,208
Machinery and equipment 3,580 3,436
5,410 5,180
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings (248) (248)
Machinery and equipment (1,567) (1,343)
$ 3,595 $ 3,589

Included in fixed assets are real estate assets [land and buildings] held by MEC that include
properties available for sale with a net book value at December 31, 2001 of $38 million [2000 -
$64 million). Depreciation has ceased on these properties. Properties available for sale are valued
at the lower of cost, which includes acquisition and development costs, and estimated fair value
less costs of disposal. The Company evaluates the lower of cost and fair value whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate possible impairment.

Also included in the cost of fixed assets are construction in progress expenditures of $190 million
{2000 - $161 million].
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12. INCOME TAXES

{a] The provision for income taxes differs from the expense that would be obtained by applying

Canadian statutory rates as a result of the following:

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Canadian statutory income tax rate 41.7% 44.0% 44.6%
Manufacturing and processing profits deduction (4.8) 4.5) (5.8)
Foreign rate differentials (3.8) 4.9) (5.5)
Losses not benefited 14 1.9 0.9
Eamings of equity investees 0.7) 0.6) (1.1)
Gains on sales and issues of shares by subsidiaries 2.1) 1.1 —_
Reduction in enacted tax rates (1.3) — —
Other 1.1 1.0 1.2
Effective income tax rate 31.5% 35.8% 34.3%

[b] The details of income before income taxes and minority interest by jurisdiction are as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Canadian $ 610 $ 645 $ 499
Foreign 308 327 168
$ 918 $ 972 $ 667

[c] The details of the income tax provision are as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Current provision
Canadian federal taxes ‘ $ 1138 $ 132 $ 103
Provincial taxes 64 76 62
Foreign taxes 88 113 80
270 321 245
Future provision
Canadian federal taxes 5) 12 11
Provincial taxes ) 7 7
Foreign taxes 27 8 (34)
20 27 (16)
$ 290 $ 348 $ 229
10
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[d] Future income taxes have been provided on temporary differences which consist of the

[e]

(f]

following:
Years ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Tax depreciation in excess of book depreciation $ 48 $ 28 $ 17
Reduction in enacted tax rates 12) — —
Tax losses benefited (18) ) 27
Other . 2 6 (6)
$ 20 $ 27 $ (16)

Future tax assets and liabilities consist of the following temporary differences:

2001 2000
Assets
Tax benefit of loss carryforwards
Pre-acquisition $ 20 $ 24
Post acquisition 148 111
Share and convertible subordinated debenture issue costs 3 3
171 138
Valuation allowance against tax benefit of loss carryforwards
Pre-acquisition (18) (18)
Post acquisition (39) (24)
114 96
Liabilities
Tax depreciation in excess of book depreciation 184 177
Other assets book value in excess of tax value 63 37
Other 29 10
276 224
Net future tax liability $ 162 $ 128

Income taxes paid in cash were $252 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 (2000 -
$267 million; 1999 - $192 million].
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{g] At December 31, 2001, the Company has income tax loss carryforwards of approximately
$157 million which relate to certain foreign subsidiaries, including $49 million of losses
obtained on acquisitions, the tax benefits of which have not been recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. Of the total losses, $73 million expire between 2002 and
2008 and the remainder have no expiry date.

(h] Consolidated retained earnings include approximately $1.0 billion at December 31, 2001 of
undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries that may be subject to tax if remitted to the

Canadian parent company. No provision has been made for such taxes as these earnings are
considered to be reinvested for the foreseeable future.

13. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of:

2001 2000
Racing licenses

Cost $ 184 $ 114
Accumulated amortization (14) (6)

170 108

Long-term receivables 73 47

Other 49 50

$ 292 $ 205

14. DEBT AND COMMITMENTS

{a] The Company’s long-term debt, which is substantially uncollateralized, consists of the
following:

2001 2000

Loans from governments with a weighted average interest

rate of approximately 4%, denominated primarily in Euros $ 107 $ 97
Bank term debt at a weighted average interest rate

of approximately 4%, denominated primarily in

Euros and U.S. dollars 105 118
Other ' 86 99
298 314

Less due within one year 54 46
' $ 244 $ 268
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(b]

{c]

[e]

(f]

Future principal repayments on long-term debt are estimated to be as follows:

2002 $ 54
2003 46
2004 71
2005 13
2006 A 49
Thereafter 65

$298

At December 31, 2001, the Company has operating lines of credit totalling $444 million and
term lines of credit totalling $1 billion. The Company had outstanding letters of credit in the
amount of $85 million drawn primarily under its term lines of credit. In addition to cash
resources of $890 million, the Company had unused and available operating lines of credit of
approximately $227 million and term lines of credit of approximately $551 million.

Under the terms of the Company’s operating and term credit agreements, it is permitted to
make use of bankers’ acceptances and commercial paper to borrow at effective interest rates
which are, from time to time, lower than those charged under the bank lines of credit.

Net interest expense includes:

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Interest expense

Current $ 14 $ 20 $ 22
Long-term 21 25 28
35 45 50

Less interest capitalized — — (7)
35 45 43

Interest income (33) (32) 27
Interest expense, net $ 2 $ 13 $ 16

Interest paid in cash [including financing charges on Preferred Securities and other paid-in
capital] was $84 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 [2000 - $103 million; 1999 -
$84 million)].
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[g] At December 31, 2001, the Company had commitments under operating leases requiring

annual rental payments as follows:

2002 $ 54
2003 44
2004 35
2005 28
2006 23
Thereafter 66

$ 250

For the year ended December 31, 2001, operating lease expense amounted to approximately

$53 million [2000 - $60 million; 1999 - $59 million].

15. SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES AND PREFERRED SECURITIES

{a] The Company’s subordinated debentures and Preferred Securities are presented in the

consolidated balance sheets as follows:

2001 2000
Debentures’ interest obligation $ 114 $ 191
Minority interest —_ 69
Shareholders’ equity
Other paid-in capital
Present value of the face amount of the
subordinated debentures 421 662
Holders’ conversion options 46 79
Issue costs related to equity components (4) (7)
Total included in other paid-in capital 463 734
Preferred Securities, net of issue costs 277 277
Total included in shareholders’ equity $ 740 $ 1,011
14
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[b] The following is a summary of the issued and outstanding subordinated debentures,
convertible subordinated debentures and Preferred Securities:

Decoma 9.5% Subordinated Debentures

On October 16, 2000, Decoma issued $90 million of 9.5% subordinated debentures at par.
The subordinated debentures were unsecured, denominated in U.S. dollars and were
redeemable at any time at par plus accrued and unpaid interest. The subordinated debentures
were to mature on October 16, 2003. Interest on the obligation was payable in U.S. dollars on
a quarterly basis. These subordinated debentures were repaid during 2001.

The present value of the principal amount of these subordinated debentures was included in
Decoma’s equity. Accordingly, such amount was classified in minority interest in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2000.

7.08% Subordinated Debentures

On September 21, 1999, the Company issued Euros 100 million [$104 million on issue date]
of 7.08% junior subordinated debentures at par. The unsecured subordinated debentures,
which are denominated in Euros, mature on September 30, 2009. The debentures are not
redeemable except in the event of certain adverse changes in tax legislation. Upon maturity,
the Company may at its option satisfy the amounts payable by issuing to the holders Class A
Subordinate Voting Shares of the Company, based on a weighted average trading price of
Class A Subordinate Voting Shares, provided that there is no continuing event of default.

4.875% Convertible Subordinated Debentures

On February 13, 1998, the Company issued $480 million of 4.875% convertible subordinated
debentures at par. The unsecured debentures, which are denominated in U.S. dollars, are
convertible at any time at the option of the holders into Class A Subordinate Voting Shares at
a conversion price of $74.27 per share and mature on February 15, 2005. The debentures are
redeemable after February 16, 2001 or at any time in the event of certain changes affecting
Canadian withholding taxes, at par plus accrued and unpaid interest. Upon redemption or
maturity of the debentures, or repurchase in the event of certain changes in control of the
Company, the Company may at its option satisfy the amounts payable by issuing to the
holders Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of the Company, based on a weighted average
trading price of Class A Subordinate Voting Shares, provided that there is no continuing event
of default. At December 31, 2001, all debentures remained outstanding.
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5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures

On October 17, 1995, the Company issued $345 million of 5% convertible subordinated
debentures at par. The unsecured debentures, which were denominated in U.S. dollars, were
convertible at any time at the option of the holders into Class A Subordinate Voting Shares at
a conversion price of $53.04 per share and were to mature on October 15, 2002.

Prior to January 1, 2001, an aggregate $1 million principal amount of such debentures was
converted into 9,366 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares. In August 2001, the Company
called for redemption of the 5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures effective September
18, 2001. For the period from January 1, 2001 to September 18, 2001, an aggregate
$223 million principal amount of such debentures was converted into 4,207,316 Class A
Subordinate Voting Shares. On September 18, 2001, the balance of $121 million principal
amount that remained outstanding was redeemed in cash. '

8.65% Series A Preferred Securities and 8.875% Series B Preferred Securities

On September 21, 1999, the Company issued Cdn$165 million [$114 million on issue date] of
8.65% Series A Preferred Securities due September 30, 2048 and $170 million 8.875% Series
B Preferred Securities due September 21, 2048. The Series A Preferred Securities, which are
denominated in Canadian dollars, and the Series B Preferred Securities, which are
denominated in U.S. dollars, are redeemable on or afier September 30, 2004 and September
21, 2004, respectively, or in each case at any time in the event of certain adverse changes in
tax legislation. Hereafter, the Series A and B Preferred Securities are collectively referred to
as the “Preferred Securities”.

Upon redemption or maturity of the Preferred Securities, the Company may at its option pay
the outstanding principal amount plus any accrued and unpaid interest by delivering to the
Trustee Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of the Company in which event the holders of the
Preferred Securities shall be entitled to receive a cash payment equal to the amount payable
on redemption or maturity from the proceeds of sale of such Class A Subordinate Voting
Shares by the Trustee on behalf of the Company.

The Company also has the right to defer, at any time, and from time to time, subject to certain
conditions, payments of interest on the Preferred Securities by extending the interest payment
period for up to 20 consecutive quarterly interest periods. The Company cannot pay or
declare dividends on any of its capital stock when interest is being deferred. Interest
continues to accrue but does not compound during such deferral periods. The Company may
satisfy its obligation to pay deferred interest by delivering to the Trustee Class A Subordinate
Voting Shares of the Company in which event the holders of the Preferred Securities shail be
entitled to receive a cash payment equal to the deferred interest payable from the proceeds of
sale of such Class A Subordinate Voting Shares by the Trustee on behalf of the Company.

The Preferred Securities are unsecured junior subordinated debentures of the Company.
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16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Employee Equity and Profit Participation and Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Prior to 2001, the Company’s Corporate Constitution required that 10% of the employee pre-tax
profits before profit sharing [as defined in the Corporate Constitution) for any fiscal period be
allocated to an Employee Equity and Profit Participation Plan [“EPSP”] consisting of the Magna
(including Intier], Decoma and Tesma deferred profit sharing plans and a cash distribution to
eligible employees of the respective companies. During 2001, Magna, Decoma and Intier
amended their Corporate Constitutions to allow for the introduction of defined benefit pension
plans in addition to the EPSP. All employees that participate in the EPSP were, and all new
employees are, given the option of continuing in the EPSP, or receiving a reduced entitlement
under the EPSP plus a defined benefit pension. The defined benefit pension is payable to retirees
ages 65 or older and is based on years of service and compensation levels. Participants may take
early retirement after age 55 and receive a reduced pension benefit.

MEC, and a limited number of the Company’s European subsidiaries, sponsor defined benefit
pension and similar arrangements for their employees. European defined benefit pension plans,
other than in the United Kingdom, are unfunded.

Termination and Long Service Arrangements

Pursuant to labour laws and national labour agreements in certain European countries, the
Company is obligated to provide lump sum termination payments to employees on retirement or
involuntary termination, and long service payments contingent upon persons reaching a predefined
number of years of service.

All Austrian lump sum termination and long service payment arrangements are unfunded.
However, pursuant to local tax laws, Austrian subsidiaries hold long-term government securities
in connection with their unfunded obligations. Such assets amounted to $28 million and
$27 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and are included in investments in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Retirement Medical Benefits Plan

During the year ended December 31, 2000, the Company introduced a retirement medical benefits
plan covering eligible employees and retirees. Retirees age 60 or older with ten or more years of
service will be eligible for benefits. In addition, existing retirees as at August 1, 2000 that meet -
the above criteria are also eligible for benefits. Benefits are capped based on years of service. As
the projected benefit obligation and benefit cost associated with the retirement medical benefits
plan is not material, a separate reconciliation of the projected benefit obligation and benefit cost
has not been provided in the tables below.
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The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Company’s projected benefit
obligations are as follows:

Discount rate 5.5%to 7.5%
Rate of compensation increase 2.5% to 5.0%
Expected return on plan assets 7.5%

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Projected benefit obligation
Beginning of year $ 139 $ 122 $ 123
Past service obligation arising on plan introduction —_ 14 —
Current service and interest costs 20 15 9
Actuarial losses and changes in actuarial assumptions 9 2 3
Benefits paid 9 (5) 3
Acquisitions — — i
Currency transiation (8) 9) (11)
End of year $ 151 $ 139 $ 122
Plan assets at fair value
Beginning of year ' $ 43 $ 37 $ 34
Return on plan assets 3 5 2
Employer contributions 3 3 2
Benefits paid 3 — —
Currency translation (2) (2) (1)
End of year $ 38 $ 43 $ 37
Unfunded amount $ 113 $ 96 3 86
Unrecognized past service obligation 13) (13) —
Unrecognized actuarial gains (losses) (15) 1 n
Net amount recognized in the
consolidated balance sheets $ 85 $ 84 $ 85
Net periodic benefit cost
Current service and interest costs $ 20 $ 15 3 9
Past service cost amortization 1 1 —
Return on plan assets 3) 5) 2
Actuarial losses 1 1 2
$ 19 $ 12 $ 9
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17. CAPITAL STOCK

[a] The Company’s authorized, issued and outstanding capital stock is as follows:
Preference shares - issuable in series -

‘The Company’s authorized capital stock includes 99,760,000 preference shares, issuable
in series. None of these shares are currently issued or outstanding.

Class A Subordinate Voting Shares and Class B Shares —-

Class A Subordinate Voting Shares without par value [unlimited amount authorized]
have the following attributes:

[i] Each share is entitled to one vote per share at all meetings of shareholders.

[1i] Each share shall participate equally as to dividends with each Class B Sharc;,.

Class B Shares without par value [authorized — 1,412,341] have the following attributes:
{i] Each share is entitled to 500 votes per share at all meetings of shareholders.

[ii]] Each share shall participate equally as to dividends with each Class A Subordinate
Voting Share.

[1ii] Each share may be converted at any time into a fully-paid Class A Subordinate
Voting Share on a one-for-one basis.

In the event that either the Class A Subordinate Voting Shares or the Class B Shares are

subdivided or consolidated, the other class shall be similarly changed to preserve the relative
position of each class.
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[b] Changes in the Class A Subordinate Voting Shares and Class B Shares for the years ended

December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 are shown in the following table [number of shares in the
following table are expressed in whole numbers and have not been rounded to the nearest

million]:
Class A
Subordinate Voting Class B
Number of Stated Number of Stated
shares value shares value

Issued and outstanding

at December 31, 1998 77,256,183 $ 1,430 1,098,109 $1
Conversion of Class B Shares to

Class A Subordinate Voting Shares 200 _ (200) —
Issued to fund EPSP contributions 170,000 10
Issued for cash under the

Incentive Stock Option Plan 8,000 1
Issued under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan 3,807 —
Conversion of 5% Convertible

Subordinated Debentures 275 —
Issued and outstanding

at December 31, 1999 77,438,465 1,441 1,097,909 1
Issued under the Dividend

Reinvestment Plan 12,688 —
Issued for cash under the

Incentive Stock Option Plan 16,000 1
Issued and outstanding

" at December 31, 2000 77,467,153 1,442 1,097,909 i

Issued under the Dividend

Reinvestment Plan 5,749 —_
Issued for cash under the

Incentive Stock Option Plan 563,400 27
Conversion of 5% Convertible

Subordinated Debentures 4,207,316 213
Conversion of Class B Shares to

Class A Subordinate Voting Shares 900 — (900) —
Issued and outstanding

at December 31, 2001 82,244,518 $ 1,682 1,097,009 $ 1

n
-

20




Magna International Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{all amounts in U.S. dollars and all tabular amounts in millions unless otherwise noted]

December 31, 2001

[c] Under the amended and restated Incentive Stock Option Plan, the Company may grant options
to purchase Class A Subordinate Voting Shares to full-time employees, outside directors or
consultants of the Company. The maximum number of shares that can be reserved for
issuance under the plan is 6.0 million shares. The number of unoptioned shares available to
be reserved at December 31, 2001 was 2.8 million [2000 - 4.0 million]. All options granted
are for a term of ten years from the grant date. For periods up to and including December 31,
1998, options vested 12 1/2% on the date of the grant and 12 1/2% in each of the following
seven years. Options issued subsequent to 1998 generally vest 20% on the date of the grant
and 20% on each subsequent December 31 thereafter. All options allow the holder to
purchase Class A Subordinate Voting Shares at a price equal to or greater than the market
price of such shares at the date of the grant.

The following is a continuity schedule of options outstanding [number of options in the table
below are expressed in whole numbers and have not been rounded to the nearest million]:

Options outstanding

Weighted

average Number

Number exercise of options

of options price exercisable

Outstanding at December 31, 1998 290,400 Cdn$84.21 83,900
Granted 1,532,500 Cdn$77.75 —
Exercised (8,000) Cdn$62.75 (8,000)
Vested — — 400,250
Outstanding at December 31, 1999 1,814,900 Cdn$78.85 476,150
Granted 120,000 Cdn$75.00 —
Exercised (16,000) Cdn$62.75 (16,000)
Surrendered (10,000) Cdn$75.00 (2,000)
Vested [ —_ 425,250
Outstanding at December 31, 2000 1,908,900 Cdn$78.76 883,400
Granted ’ 1,207,500 Cdn$68.75 —
Exercised (563,400) Cdn$73.64 (563,400)
Vested - _— — 837,000
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 2,553,000 Cdn$75.16 1,157,000
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(d]

fe]

At December 31, 2001, the outstanding options consist of [number of options in the table
below are expressed in whole numbers and have not been rounded to the nearest million]:

Options outstanding

Remaining Number

Exercise Number contractual of options

price of options life [years] exercisable

Tranche | Cdn$62.75 12,500 43 —
Tranche 2 Cdn$92.45 150,000 5.6 93,750
Tranche 3 Cdn$92.35 50,000 5.6 31,250
Tranche 4 Cdn3$91.50 198,000 7.0 152,000
Tranche 5 Cdn$83.50 24,000 7.0 16,000
Tranche 6 Cdn$75.00 959,000 7.8 459,000
Tranche 7 - 9 Cdn$75.00 92,000 8.0 62,000
Tranche 10 Cdn$66.80 910,000 9.0 280,000
Tranche 11 Cdn$73.25 100,000 9.0 40,000
Tranche 12 - 13 Cdn3$96.50 57,500 9.0 23,000
2,553,000 8.0 1,157,000

Weighted average exercise price Cdn$75.16 Cdn$77.55

The Company has a Dividend Reinvestment Plan whereby shareholders have the option to
receive their dividends in the form of Class A Subordinate Voting Shares in lieu of cash.

The foliowing table presents the maximum number of shares that would be outstanding if all
the dilutive instruments outstanding at December 31, 2001 were exercised:

Class A Subordinate Voting Shares and Class B

Shares outstanding at December 31, 2001 83.3

4.875% Convertible Subordinated Debentures
[based on holders’ conversion option] 6.5
Stock options 2.6
92.4

The above amounts exclude Class ‘A Subordinate Voting Shares issuable, only at the

Company’s option, to settle the 7.08% Subordinated Debentures and Preferred Securities on

redemption or maturity. The number of shares issuable is dependent on the trading price of

Class A Subordinate Voting Shares at redemption or maturity of the 7.08% Subordinated -
Debentures and Preferred Securities.
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

[a] Foreign Exchange Contracts

The Company operates globally, which gives rise to a risk that its earnings and cash flows
may be adversely impacted by fluctuations in foreign exchange. The Company uses foreign
exchange contracts to manage foreign exchange risk from its underlying customer contracts.
In particular, the Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign exchange
range forward contracts for the sole purpose of hedging certain of the Company’s future
committed U.S. dollar and Euro [ "] outflows and inflows. Gains and Josses on these
hedging instruments are recognized in the same period as, and as part of, the hedged
transaction. In addition, in limited situations, the Company uses forward contracts to manage
foreign exchange risk arising from intercompany loans. The Company does not enter into
foreign exchange contracts for speculative purposes.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts
representing commitments to buy and sell foreign currencies in exchange for Canadian and
U.S. dollars as follows:

For Canadian dollars For U.S. dollars
U.S. Weighted Weighted Weighted
doltar average Euro average Euro average
Buy (Sell) amount rate amount rate amount rate
2002 $323 1.5441 69 1.4151 65 0.8983
2002 (544) 1.4973 (369) 1.4063 (177 0.8946
2003 73 1.4650 17 1.4789 29 0.9187
2003 (150) 1.4989 — — - —
2004 39 1.4716 19 1.4775 20 0.9317
2004 (114) 1.4883 — — — —
2005 16 1.4428 15 1.5308 3 0.9392
2005 (94) 1.4780 — — — —
2006 — — 9 1.6113 — —
2006 (16) 1.3862 — — — —
Thereafter — — 20 1.6712 — —
$(467) (220) (60)

Based on forward foreign exchange rates as at December 31, 2001 for contracts with similar
remaining terms to maturity, the unrecognized gains and losses relating to the Company’s
foreign exchange forward contracts are approximately $38 million and $84 million,
respectively. If the Company’s forward exchange contracts ceased to be effective as hedges,
for example, if projected net foreign cash inflows declined significantly, previously
unrecognized gains or losses pertaining 10 the portion of the hedging transactions in excess of
projected foreign currency denominated cash flows would be recognized in income at the time
this condition was identified.
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[b] Fair value

[e]

The Company has determined the estimated fair values of its financial instruments based on
appropriate valuation methodologies, however, considerable judgment is required to develop
these estimates. Accordingly, these estimated fair values are not necessarily indicative of the
amounts the Company could realize in a current market exchange. The estimated fair value
amounts can be materially affected by the use of different assumptions or methodologies. The
methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments are described
below.

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, bank indebtedness, accounts payable and
other accrued liabilities

Due to the short period to maturity of the instruments, the carrying values as presemed in the
consolidated balance sheets are reasonable estimates of fair values.

Investments

Fair value information is not readily available. However, management believes the market
value to be in excess of the carrying value of investments.

Long-term debt and debentures’ interest obligation

The fair values of the Company's long-term debt and debentures’ interest obligation, based on
current rates for debt with similar terms and maturities, are not materially different from their
carrying values.

Credit risk

The Company’s financial assets that are exposed to credit risk consist primarily of cash and
cash equivalents, accounts receivable and foreign exchange forward contracts with positive
fair values.

The Company, in the normal course of business, is exposed to credit risk from its customers,
substantially all of which are in the automotive industry. These accounts receivable are
“subject to normal industry credit risks.

Cash and cash equivalents which consists of short-term investments, including commercial
paper, is only invested in governments and corporations with an investment grade credit
rating. Credit risk is further reduced by limiting the amount which is invested in any one
government or corporation.
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The Company, in the normal course of business, is exposed to credit risk from its customers,
substantially all of which are in the automotive industry.

The Company is also exposed to credit risk from the potential default by any of its
counterparties on its foreign exchange forward contracts. The Company mitigates this credit
risk by dealing with counterparties who are major financial institutions and which the
Company anticipates will satisfy their obligations under the contracts.

[d] Interest rate risk

The Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk due to the short-term maturity of
its monetary current assets and current liabilities. In addition, the Company’s exposure to
interest rate risk on fixed rate long-term instruments is also reduced given the minimum
periods to redemption with respect to the convertible subordinated debentures and Preferred
Securities.

19. CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT

Unrealized currency translation adjustments, which arise on the translation to U.S. dollars of
assets and liabilities of the Company’s self-sustaining foreign operations, resulted in an unrealized
currency translation loss of $117 million during the year ended December 31, 2001 [2000 - loss of
$120 million; 1999 - loss of $96 million]. The 2001 and 2000 unrealized loss resulted primarily
from the weakening of the Euro, British Pound and Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar. The
1999 unrealized loss resulted primarily from the weakening of the Euro and British Pound
partially offset by the strengthening of the Canadian dollar, both against the U.S. dollar.

20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The following is the Company’s combined proportionate share of the major components of the
financial statements of the jointly controlied entities in which the Company has an interest [before
eliminations):

Balance Sheets

2001 2000

Current assets $100 $ 101
Long-term assets $ 43 $ 49
Current liabilities $ 51 $ 49
Long-term liabilities $ 46 $ 52
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Statements of Income

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Sales $ 356 $ 668 $671
Cost of goods sold, expenses and income taxes 337 634 638

Net income $ 19 $ 34 $ 33

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Cash provided from (used for): :
Operating activities $ 61 $ 74 $ 54
Investment activities $ (14) $ (67) $ (46)
Financing activities $ (38) $ (33) $ 6

The Company’s share of equity in jointly controlled entities includes undistributed earnings of
$45 million [2000 - $41 million).

21. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company has agreements with an affiliate of the Chairman of the Board for the provision of
business development and consulting services. In addition, the Company has an agreement with
the Chairman of the Board for the provision of business development and other services. The
aggregate amount expensed under these agreements with respect to the year ended December 31,
2001 was $33 million {2000 - $28 million; 1999 - $23 million].

During the year ended December 31, 2001, trusts, which exist to make orderly purchases of the
Company’s shares for employees either for transfer to the EPSP or to recipients of either bonuses
or rights to purchase such shares from the trusts, borrowed up to $51 million (2000 - $41 million;
1999 - $18 million] from the Company to facilitate the purchase of Class A Subordinate Voting
Shares of the Company. At December 31, 2001, the trusts’ indebtedness to the Company, which
is included in accounts payable, was $33 million [2000 - $26 million].

Investments include $2 million [2000 - $2 million], at cost, in respect of an investment in a
company that was established to acquire shares of the Company for sale to employees.
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During the year ended December 31, 2000, a subsidiary of the Company purchased from a
company associated with members of the family of Mr. F. Stronach, Ms. B. Stronach and Mr. A.
Stronach, the Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer, and Executive Vice-
President, Business Development, respectively of the Company, approximately 200 acres of land
and improvements in Aurora, Ontario for a purchase price of approximately $11.0 million. In
addition, during the year ended December 31, 2000, a subsidiary of the Company sold
approximately 3 acres of land and improvements in Aurora, Ontario to the same company
associated with members of the family of Mr. F. Stronach, Ms. B. Stronach and Mr. A. Stronach
for approximately $0.2 million. '

22. CONTINGENCIES

[a] In November 1997, the Company and two of its subsidiaries were sued by KS Centoco Ltd., an
Ontario-based steering wheel manufacturer in which the Company has a 23% equity interest,
and by Centoco Holdings Limited, the owner of the remaining 77% equity interest in KS
Centoco Ltd. On March 5, 1999, the plaintiffs were granted leave to make substantial
amendments to the original statement of claim, in order to add several new defendants and
claim additional remedies. The amended statement of claim alleges, among other things:

¢ breach of fiduciary duty by the Company and two of its subsidiaries;

e breach by the Company of its binding letter of intent with KS Centoco Ltd., including its
covenant not to have any interest, directly or indirectly, in any entity that carries on the
airbag business in North America, other than through MST Automotive Inc., a company to
be 77% owned by Magna and 23% owned by Centoco Holdings Limited;

e the plaintiff’s exclusive entitlement to certain airbag technologies in North America
pursuant to an exclusive licence agreement, together with an accounting of all revenues and
profits resulting from the alleged use by the Company, TRW Inc. {“TRW”] and other
unrelated third party automotive supplier defendants of such technology in North America;

e a conspiracy by the Company, TRW and others to deprive KS Centoco Ltd. of the benefits
of such airbag technology in North America and to cause Centoco Holdings Limited to sell
to TRW its interest in KS Centoco Ltd. in conjunction with the Company’s sale to TRW of
its interest in MST Automotive GmbH and TEMIC Bayern-Chemie Airbag GmbH.

The plaintiffs are seeking, amongst other things, damages of approximately $3.5 billion. The
Company has filed an amended statement of defence and counterclaim. The Company
intends to vigorously defend this case. At this time, notwithstanding the early stages of these
legal proceedings and the difficulty in predicting final outcomes, management believes that
the ultimate resolution of these claims will not have a material adverse effect on the
consolidated financial position of the Company.
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(b)

(c]

[d]

(€]

A customer of one of the Company’s publicly traded subsidiaries, Intier, is requesting
reimbursement for warranty costs as well as additional expenses which it expects to incur as a
result of a voluntary customer satisfaction-based recall of a product which forms part of a
module supplied by Intier to the customer. The product in question is supplied to Intier by
another large supplier that Intier was directed to use by its customer. The customer has
claimed that the warranty and future recall costs could aggregate up to $[42] million. Based
on Intier’s investigations to date, Intier does not believe that it has any liability for this claim
and that any liability that it may become subject to, if it is established that the product is
defective, will be recoverable from the supplier of the product, although Intier cannot provide
assurance that this will be the case.

The Company and/or one of its subsidiaries were previously named as defendants in a number
of class actions brought by plaintiffs claiming compensatory and punitive damages in relation
to unpaid work [forced/slave labour] performed by the plaintiffs during World War II. All of
these actions involved multiple named defendants. In November 2000, orders for Voluntary
Dismissal with Prejudice were entered in the District Court, District of New Jersey dismissing
most of the class actions, including nine of ten cases specifically naming the Company and/or
its subsidiary. The defendants have filed a motion to dismiss the final case in which the
Company and its subsidiary have been named and the U.S. Government has filed a Statement
of Interest based on the slave labour and property settlements with the Austrian Government.
As a result, the Company has assessed the current status of the legal proceedings and believes
the ultimate resolution will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position of the Company. :

In the ordinary course of business activities, the Company may be contingently liable for
litigation and claims with customers, suppliers and former employees. Management believes
that adequate provisions are recorded in the accounts where required and when estimable.
However, there can be no assurance that the Company will not incur additional expense.

MEC is currently considering a major redevelopment of its Gulfstream Park racetrack in
Florida [the “Gulfstream Development”]. Should it proceed as currently contemplated, the
Gulfstream Development would include a simulcast pavilion, sports and entertainment arena
and a new turf club and grandstand. In addition, there would be significant modifications and
enhancements to the racetracks and stable areas. If completed, the Gulfstream Development
would require the demolition of a substantial portion of the current buildings and related
structures, which include the grandstand, turf club and annex. The aggregate carrying value at
December 31, 2001 of the assets that would be demolished if the Gulfstream Development is
completed is approximately $23 million. If MEC decides to proceed with the Gulfstream
Development and obtains the approval of its board of directors, a reduction in the expected
life of the existing assets would occur and a write-down would be necessary.
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23. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

{a] Magna follows a corporate policy of functional and operational decentralization. It conducts

its automotive operations through divisions which function as autonomous operating units.

During 2001, the Company reorganized its automotive operations along global product lines.
Each automotive systems group provides full service systems integration in a specific vehicle
area.

The Company’s automotive operations are further segmented in the Company’s internal
financial reports along global product lines between publicly traded and wholly owned
operations. The segregation of automotive operations between publicly traded and wholly
owned recognizes the fact that in the case of wholly owned operations, the Company’s
President and Chief Executive Officer and executive management have direct responsibility
for the key operating, financing and resource allocation decisions , whereas in the case of
publicly traded operations, such responsibility has been delegated to the public company’s
separate board of directors and their executive management.

Accordingly, segment reporting has been restated to reflect the Company’s new structure as
follows:

Public Automotive Operations
The Company’s Public Automotive Operations include:

[il Decoma International Inc.

Decoma [including 100% of Bestop] designs, engineers and manufactures automotive
exterior components and systems which include fascias [bumpers], front and rear end
modules, plastic body panels, roof modules, exterior trim components, sealing and
greenhouse systems and lighting components for cars and light trucks [including sport
utility vehicles and mini-vans]. Decoma has 43 manufacturing, engineering and product
development facilities in Canada, the United States, Mexico, Germany, Belgium,
England and Japan.

[ii] Intier Automotive Inc.
Intier is a global full service supplier and integrator of automotive interior and closure
components, systems and modules. It directly supplies most of the major automobile
manufacturers in the world through 64 manufacturing facilities [including one joint
venture facility with Magna Steyr] and 19 product development, engineering and testing
centres [including one joint venture facility with Magna Steyr] in North America, Europe,
Brazil, China and Japan.
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[iii] Tesma International Inc.
Tesma is a global supplier of highly-engineered engine, transmission and fueling systems
and modules for the automotive industry. Tesma has 22 manufacturing facilities and two
research centres in North America, Europe and Asia.

Wholly Owned Automotive Operations
The Company’s Wholly Owned Automotive Operations include:

[i] Magna Steyr
Magna Steyr is an advanced developer and supplier of complete drivetrain technologies,
including four-wheel/all-wheel drive systems and axle modules, and is the automotive
industry’s leading independent assembler of low volume derivative and specialty
vehicles. Magna Steyr has 8 manufacturing and assembly facilities [including one joint
venture facility with Intier] and nine engineering and testing facilities [including one joint
venture facility with each of Intier and the Metals and Other Automotive Operations] in -
Europe, India, the United States and Mexico.

[ii] Metals and Other Automotive Operations
e Metals operations — The metals operations manufacture a comprehensive range of
metal body systems, components, assemblies and modules. The metals operations
have 34 manufacturing facilities and 8 engineering and testing facilities [including
one joint venture facility with Magna Steyr] in North America and Europe.

o Other Automotive operations — Other automotive operations include the Company’s
exterior and interior mirror systems divisions. The Company’s other automotive
operations have 9 manufacturing facilities and 2 engineering and testing facilities in
North America, South America and Europe.

Magna Entertainment Corp.

In addition to the Company’s Automotive Operating Segments, the Company has certain non-
automotive operations held through its subsidiary, MEC. MEC is the leading owner and
operator of thoroughbred racetracks in the United States, based on revenue, and a leading
supplier, via simulcasting, of live racing content to the inter-track, off-track and account
wagering markets. MEC currently operates eight thoroughbred racetracks, one standardbred
racetrack and one greyhound racetrack, as well as the simulcast wagering venues at these
tracks. In addition, MEC operates off-track betting facilities and a national account wagering
business named “XpressBetTM”, which permits customers to place wagers by telephone and
over the Internet on horse races at up to 65 racetracks in North America.
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Year ended December 31, 2001

Depreciation Interest Fixed Fixed
Total and amor- (income) Operating asset assets,
sales tization expense, net income additions net
Public Automotive Operations
Decoma International Inc. $ 1,885 $ 83 $ 28 $ 118 $ 68 $ 488
Intier Automotive Inc. 3,268 86 19 81 88 404
Tesma International Inc. 791 34 2 74 80 246
Wholly Owned Automotive Operations
Magna Steyr 1,510 52 21 31 91 344
Metals and Other
Automotive Operations 3,165 112 3) 365 98 813
Corporate and other (i), (iii) (112) 32 (65) 180 61 725
Total Automotive Operations 10,507 399 2 849 486 3,020
MEC (ii) 519 23 39 575
Total reportable segments $ 11,026 $ 399 $ 2 $ 872 $ 525 3,595
Current assets 3,558
Investments, goodwill and other assets 753
Consolidated total assets $ 7,906
Year ended December 31. 2000
Depreciation Interest Fixed Fixed
Total and amor-  (income) Operating asset assets,
sales tization expense, net income additions net
Public Automotive Operations
Decoma International Inc.  $ 1,648 $ 67 $ 24 $ 94 $ 79 $ 503
Intier Automotive Inc. 2971 83 25 67 105 403
Tesma International Inc. 785 30 1 94 58 212
Wholly Owned Automotive Operations
Magna Steyr 1,358 53 15 41 87 293
Metals and Other
Automotive Operations 3,479 110 4] 310 178 859
Corporate and other (i), (iii) (142) 29 (93) 203 94 750
Total Automotive Operations 10,099 372 13 809 601 3,020
MEC (ii) 414 2 52 569
Total reportable segments . $ 10,513 $ 372 513 § 811 $ 653 3,589
Current assets 3,137
Investments, goodwill and other assets 682
Consolidated total assets $ 7,408
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Year ended December 31, 1999

Depreciation Interest Fixed Fixed
Total and amor- (income) Operating asset assets,
sales tization expense,net income additions net
Public Automotive Operations
Decoma International Inc.  $ 1,490 $ 6l $ 18 $ 60 $ 108 $ 437
Intier Automotive Inc. 2,835 73 23 49 124 389
Tesma International Inc. 685 26 2 72 43 196
Wholly Owned Automotive Operations
Magna Steyr 1,403 53 16 60 117 287
Metals and Other )

Automotive Operations 2,997 98 17 275 285 883
Corporate and other (i), (iii) (150) 21 (60) 147 127 . 739
Total Automotive Operations 9,260 332 16 663 804 2,931
MEC (ii) 187 4 55 567
Total reportable segments $ 9,447 $ 332 $ 16 $ 667 $ 859 3,498
Current assets 2,905
Investments, goodwill and other assets 630
Consolidated total assets $7,033
Notes:

(i) Included in Corporate and other operating income are intercompany fees, rent and interest charged to the other
automotive segments.

(ii) Included in MEC operating income for the year ended December 31, 2001 is depreciation and amortization and
net interest expense (income) of $26 million and $3 million, respectively [2000 - $20 million and 3nil,
respectively; 1999 - $8 million and ($1) million, respectively).

(iii) During the year ended December 31, 2001, equity income of $16 million is included in the Corporate and other
segment {2000 - $16 million; 1999 - $15 million].

[b] In the year ended December 31, 2001, sales to the Company’s three largest customers

amounted to 29%, 24% and 19% [2000 - 28%, 22% and 20%; 1999 - 32%, 20% and 18%] of
total sales.
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[c] The following table shows certain information with respect to geographic segmentation:

Year ended December 31, 2001

Total Fixed assets, Goodwill,
sales net net
Canada $ 3,622 $ 1,042 $ 61
United States 3,007 1,182 70
Euroland (i) 2,997 848 85
Mexico 840 360 —_
Great Britain 468 107 43
Other 92 56 —
$11,026 $ 3,595 $ 259
Year ended December 31, 2000
Total Fixed assets, Goodwill,
sales net net
Canada $ 3,801 $ 1,031 $ 58
United States 2,836 1,147 70
Euroland (i) 2,770 202 119
Mexico 554 335 —
Great Britain 400 117 48
Other 152 57 —
$10,513 $ 3,589 $ 295
Year ended December 31, 1999
Total Fixed assets, Goodwill,
sales net net
Canada 35 3,376 $1,036 s 77
United States 2,469 1,058 61
Euroland (i) 2,802 954 74
Mexico 250 269 —
Great Britain 429 103 55
Other 121 78 —
$ 9,447 $ 3,498 $ 267

(i) For purposes of geographic segmentation, Euroland has been defined as those European countries that

have adopted the Euro as their common currency.
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24. UNITED STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The Company’s accounting policies as reflected in these consolidated financial statements do not
materially differ from U.S. GAAP except for:

(a]

(b]

[c]

td]

[e]

The gain or loss on translation of debt denominated in a currency other than the operation’s
functional currency is deferred and amortized over the remaining life of the debt. Under U.S.
GAAP, the gain or loss on translation is included in income when it arises.

The Company’s subordinated debentures are recorded in part as debt and in part as
shareholders’ equity. In addition, the Company’s Preferred Securities are recorded entirely as
shareholders’ equity. Under U.S. GAAP, the subordinated debentures and Preferred
Securities would be recorded entirely as debt.

The Company has certain interests in jointly controlled entities which have been
proportionately consolidated ‘in the Company’s financial statements. For purposes of U.S.
GAAP, these interests would be accounted for by the equity method. Net income, earnings
per share and shareholders’ equity under U.S. GAAP are not impacted by the proportionate
consolidation of these interests in jointly controlled entities.

Design and engineering costs reimbursed as part of subsequent related parts production piece
price amounts, are expensed as incurred unless a contractual guarantee for reimbursement
exists. Design and development costs for moulds, dies and other tools that the Company does
not own [and that will be used in, and reimbursed as part of the piece price amount for,
subsequent related parts production] are also expensed as incurred unless a contractual
guarantee for reimbursement exists or the supply agreement provides the non-cancelable right
to use the moulds, dies and other tools. These policies were adopted for Canadian GAAP in
the year ended December 31, 2000 on a retroactive basis. Under U.S. GAAP, the above
policies are applied through a cumulative catch-up adjustment as of January 1, 2000.

In December 1999, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements. Effective
January 1, 2000, the Company changed its method of accounting under U.S. GAAP for in-
house engineering service and tooling contracts provided in conjunction with subsequent
assembly or production activities which are regarded as a single arrangement. Previously, the
Company had recognized revenue from these engineering service and tooling contracts on a
percentage of completion basis. Under the new accounting method adopted effective January
1, 2000 for U.S. GAAP purposes, the Company recognizes revenue and related cost of sales
for these activities over the estimated life of the assembly or production arrangement. The
effect of the change for the year ended December 31, 2000 was to decrease net income by
$3 million [$0.03 per share].
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(1]

fgl

For the year ended December 31, 2001, revenues and expenses under U.S. GAAP are lower
by $142 million [2000 - $61 million]} and $133 million [2000 - $58 million], respectively, as a
result of this difference between Canadian and U.S. GAAP. The net revenue reduction for the
year ended December 31, 2001 includes $79 million [2000 - $102 million] in revenue that
was included in the cumulative effect adjustment as of January 1, 2000.

The Company continues to measure compensation cost related to awards of stock options
using the intrinsic value-based method of accounting as prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” as permitted by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” [“FAS 123”].
Under APB Opinion No. 25, when a stock option is repurchased by the Company for a cash
payment, the Company must record compensation expense. Under Canadian GAAP, the
payment is considered a capital transaction and recorded in retained earnings.

In addition, under FAS 123, when stock options are issued to non-employees other than
directors acting in their capacity as a director, the Company must record compensation
expense. Options issued to directors for services provided outside of their role as a director
are recorded as compensation expense by the Company. Under Canadian GAAP, no
compensation expense is recognized because the options have no intrinsic value at the time of
issuance.

In addition, under Emerging Issues Task Force 00-23 “Issues Related to the Accounting for
Stock Compensation under APB Opinion No. 25 and FASB Interpretation No. 44” when
stock options are issued after January 18, 2001 and are denominated in multiple currencies,
the Company must record compensation expense. Under Canadian GAAP, no compensation
expense is recognized.

The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts to manage foreign exchange risk from
its underlying customer contracts. In particular, the Company uses foreign exchange forward
contracts for the sole purpose of hedging certain of its future committed U.S. dollar, Canadian
dollar and Euro outflows and inflows. Under Canadian GAAP, gains and losses on these
contracts are accounted for as a component of the related hedged transaction. For periods up
to and including December 31, 2000, gains and losses on these contracts were also accounted
for as a component of the related hedged transaction under U.S. GAAP.

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 133 [“FAS 1337], “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities”, as amended, which establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for
hedging activities. FAS 133 requires a company to recognize all of its derivative instruments,
whether designated in hedging relationships or not, on the balance sheet at fair value. The
accounting for changes in the fair value [i.e., gains or losses] of a derivative instrument
depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship.
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(h]

FAS 133 establishes certain criteria to be met in order to designate a derivative instrument as
a hedge and to deem a hedge as effective.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company implemented a new treasury management system
that complies with the new documentation requirements for hedge accounting under FAS 133.
As a result, for the year ended December 31, 2001 the Company’s derivative portfolio is not
eligible for hedge accounting despite the fact that management considers its portfolio to be an
effective foreign currency risk management tool and an economic hedge of its future
committed U.S. dollar, Canadian dollar and Euro outflows and inflows.

Accordingly, the Company has recorded a charge to income of $26 million in the year ended
December 31, 2001 for purposes of reconciling to U.S. GAAP. For periods prior to and
including December 31, 2000, this amount would have been deferred and recorded as a
component of the related hedged transaction under U.S. GAAP. In addition, upon adoption of
FAS 133, the Company recorded a cumulative adjustment to other comprehensive income of
$9 miilion as of January 1, 2001 of which $5 million has reversed through income during
2001.

Under U.S. GAAP, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 52 “Foreign Currency
Translation” [*“FAS 527], the Company would only realize a gain or loss on the portion of the
currency translation adjustment included as a separate component of the net investment in a
foreign operation upon a sale or complete, or substantially complete, liquidation of the related
investment. Under FAS 52, no gains or losses are recognized as a result of capital
transactions, including the payment of dividends. Under Canadian GAAP, the Company is
required to realize a gain or loss equal to the appropriate portion of the cumulative translation
adjustment account when there is a reduction in the Company’s net investment in a foreign
subsidiary resulting from the payment of dividends.

Effective December 31, 1998, the Company adopted the U.S. dollar as its reporting currency.
Prior to this change the Canadian dollar had been used as the Company’s reporting currency.
Under Canadian GAAP, the Company’s consolidated financial statements for all periods
presented through December 31, 1998 were translated from Canadian dollars to U.S. dollars
using the exchange rate in effect at December 31, 1998. Under U.S. GAAP, the consolidated
financial statements for periods prior to the change in reporting currency were translated to
U.S. dollars using the current rate method, which method uses specific year end or specific
annual average exchange rates as appropriate.

36

n
=




Magna International Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[all amounts in U.S. dollars and all tabular amounts in millions unless otherwise noted)

December 31, 2001

i1 The following table presents net income and earnings per share information following U.S.

GAAP:
Years ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Net income under Canadian GAAP $ 580 $ 598 S 419
Adjustments [net of related tax effects]:
Deferred gains (losses) on foreign currency
denominated debt [net of amortization] {a] (25) amn 28
Additional interest expense on subordinated
debentures and Preferred Securities [b] 33) (32) (19)
Design and development costs [d] o — 5
In-house tooling and engineering [e] )] (3) —
Compensation expense [f] 13) (1) _
Derivative instruments [g] (26) — —
Translation loss realized on the reduction
of the net investment in a foreign subsidiary (h] (1) — —
Net income under U.S. GAAP before cumulative
catch-up adjustments 473 545 433
Cumulative adjustments for change in accounting
for design and development costs and in-house
tooling and engineering {d], [e] — (69) —
Net income under U.S. GAAP 473 476 433
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment 93) (109) (131)
Cumulative adjustment at January 1, 2001 for the change
in derivative instrument accounting [g] 9) — —
Derivative instruments realized in net income 5 — —
Comprehensive income under U.S. GAAP $ 376 ¥ 367 $ 302
Earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or
Class B Share under U.S. GAAP:
Basic '
Before cumuiative catch-up adjustments $591 $ 6.94 $ 5.52
Cumulative catch-up adjustments {d], [e] —_ (0.88) —
After cumulative catch-up adjustment $ 5.91 $6.06 $552
Diluted
Before cumulative catch-up adjustments $ 5.67 $6.39 $470
Cumulative catch-up adjustments [d], [e] —_ (0.75) —
After cumulative catch-up adjustment $5.67 $ 564 $ 470
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Proforma net income under U.S. GAAP before cumulative catch-up adjustments and related
diluted earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share under U.S. GAAP as if the
change in accounting policies for design and development costs and in-house tooling and
engineering had been applied during all periods presented are as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
" Net income under U.S. GAAP before
cumulative catch-up adjustments
As reported $473 $ 545 $ 433
Restatement for change in accounting policies for
design and development costs - — (5)
Restatement for in-house tooling and engineering — — 3)
Proforma $473 $ 545 $ 425
Earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting
or Class B Share under U.S. GAAP
Basic
As reported $591 $694 $ 552
Restatement for change in accounting
policies for design and development costs — — (0.06)
Restatement for in-house tooling and engineering —_ — (0.05)
Proforma $5.91 $ 6.94 $ 541
Diluted
As reported $5.67 $6.39 $ 470 -
Restatement for change in accounting
policies for design and development costs — — (0.05)
Restatement for in-house tooling and engineering — —_— (0.04)
Proforma $5.67 $6.39 $ 461
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Earnings per share data after cumulative catch-up adjustments were computed as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Basic earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting
or Class B Share — After cumulative catch-up

adjustments
Net income under U.S. GAAP $473 $476 $ 433

Average number of Class A Subordinate Voting and
Class B Shares outstanding during the year 80.1 78.5 78.5

Basic earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting
or Class B Share $5.91 $6.06 $552

Diluted earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting
or Class B Share — After cumulative catch-up
adjustments
Net income under U.S. GAAP $473 $ 476 $433
Adjustments [net of related tax effects]:
Interest, issue cost amortization and foreign
exchange on 5% Convertible Subordinated
Debentures 16 17 2
Interest, issue cost amortization and foreign
exchange on 4.875% Convertible Subordinated

Debentures 29 23 3)
$518 $516 $428

Average number of Class A Subordinate Voting and
Class B Shares outstanding during the year 80.1 78.5 78.5
5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures 44 6.5 6.3
4.875% Convertible Subordinated Debentures 6.5 6.5 6.3
Stock options 0.4 — —
914 915 91.1

Diluted earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting
or Class B Share $5.67 $5.64 $4.70
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(k] The following table indicates the significant items in the consolidated balance sheets that
would have been affected had the consolidated financial statements been prepared under U.S.
GAAP:

December 31, 2001
In-house
Canadian Financial tooling and  Derivative U.S.
GAAP instruments engineering instruments Other GAAP
Other assets $ 292 $ 7 $ — $ — $ — $ 299
Other accrued liabilities $ 158 $ 7 $ 42 $ 46 $ 1 $ 254
Future tax liabilities, net  $ 162 $ a7 $(15) $(16) § — $ 114
Subordinated debentures $ — $ 568 $ — $ — $ — $ 568
Debentures’ interest
obligation $ 114 $(114) $ — $ — $ — $ —
Preferred Securities $ — $ 282 $ — $ — $ — $ 282
Shareholders’ equity:
Capital stock $ 1,683 $ 11 $ — $ — $ 152 $ 1,846
Preferred Securities 277 277 —_ —_ —_ —_—
Other paid-in capital 463 (463) —_ - — —
Retained earmnings 2,220 _— 26) (26) 1158 2,283
Accumulated other
comprehensive 1oss (158) 10 1) 4) (268) (421)
Shareholders’ equity $4,485 $(719) $(227) $(30) $ ) $3,708
December 31, 2000
In-house
Canadian Financial tooling and U.S.
GAAP instruments engineering Other GAAP
Other assets $ 205 $ 12 $ — 5 — $ 217 .
Other accrued liabilities $ 119 $ 11 $ 29 $ — $ 159
.Future tax liabilities, net $ 128 $ (19 $(ID) $ — $ 98
Subordinated debentures 5 — $1,018 $ — $ — $1,0i8
Debentures’ interest obligation $ 191 $ (19D $ — $ — 5 —
Preferred Securities 5 — $ 282 $ — $ — $ 282
Minority interest $ 356 $ (69) $— $ — $ 287
Shareholders’ equity:
Capital stock $ 1,443 5§ — $— $ 140 $1.583
Preferred Securities 277 277) —_ — —
Other paid-in capital 734 (734) — — —_
Retained earnings 1,789 4 a7 129 1,905
Accumulated other
comprehensive loss (41) (13) (1) (269) (324)
Shareholders’ equity $4.,202 $(1,020) $(18) $ — $3,164
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{1] The Company does not recognize compensation expense for its outstanding fixed price stock
options. Under U.S. GAAP, the Company is required to disclose compensation expense
assuming compensation expense for the stock option plan had been determined based upon
the fair value at the grant date, consistent with the methodology prescribed under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”.

The fair value of stock options is estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

Risk free interest rate , 5%
Expected dividend yield 1.45%
Expected volatility 24%
Expected time until exercise 4 -7 years

The Black-Scholes option valuation model used by the Company to determine fair values was
developed for use in estimating the fair value of freely traded options which are fully
transferable and have no vesting restrictions. In addition, this model requires the input of
highly subjective assumptions, including future stock price volatility and expected time until
exercise. Because the Company’s outstanding stock options have characteristics which are
significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in any of the
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s opinion, the
existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its

stock options.

For purposes of proforma disclosures, the Company’s net income attributable to Class A
Subordinate Voting and Class B Shares and basic and diluted earnings per Class A
Subordinate Voting or Class B Shares would have been:

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Proforma net income after cumulative catch-up
adjustments attributable to Class A
Subordinate Voting and Class B Shares $ 469 $ 467 $426
Proforma earnings per Class A Subordinate
Voting or Class B Share after cumulative
catch-up adjustments
Basic $5.86 $5.94 $543
Diluted $5.63 $5.54 $4.62
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The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year are as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Weighted average fair value of options
granted during the year $ 9.93 $10.54 $9.85

{m] Under Staff Accounting Bulletin 74, the Company is required to disclose certain information
related to new accounting standards which have not yet been adopted due to delayed effective
dates.

Canadian GAAP standards:

In August 2001, the CICA issued Handbook Section 1581, “Business Combinations” [“CICA
1581"] and Handbook Section 3062, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” [“CICA 3062"].
CICA 1581 requires that all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be accounted
for using the purchase method of accounting. In addition, CICA 1581 provides new criteria to
determine when an acquired intangible asset should be recognized separately from goodwill.

CICA 3062 requires the application of the non-amortization and impairment rules for existing
goodwill and intangible assets, which meet the criteria for indefinite life, beginning with fiscal
years starting after December 15, 2001. In all cases, the standard must be adopted at the
beginning of a fiscal year.

In December 2001, the CICA amended Handbook Section 1650 “Foreign Currency
Translation” [“CICA 1650”]. The most significant change under the new recommendations is
to eliminate the deferral and amortization method for unrealized translation gains and losses
on non-current monetary assets and liabilities. The amendments to CICA 1650 are effective
for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2002,

In November 2001, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3870, “Stock Based Compensation
and Other Stock Based Payments” [“CICA 3870"]. CICA 3870 requires that certain types of
stock-based compensation arrangements be accounted for at fair value after January 1, 2002
giving rise to compensation expense.

Although the Company is currently reviewing the new CICA pronouncements, the impact, if

any, of these pronouncements on its consolidated financial statements has not been
determined.
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U.S. GAAP standards:

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board [“FASB™] issued Statements of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business Combinations” and No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets”. These standards reflect the same accounting requirements as
CICA 1581 and CICA 3062, respectively.

In addition, during 2001, FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No.
143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” [“FAS 143”] and No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” [“FAS 144™].

FAS 143 requires that legal obligations arising from the retirement of tangible long-lived
assets, including obligations identified by a company upon acquisition and construction and
during the operating life of a long-lived asset, be recorded and amortized over the asset’s
useful life using a systematic and rational allocation method. FAS 143 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2002.

FAS 144, which supersedes FAS 121, is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. FAS 144 provides guidance on differentiating between assets held for
sale and held for disposal other than by sale. Consistent with FAS 121, FAS 144 continues to
require the same approach for recognizing and measuring the impairment of assets to be held
and used.

Although the Company is currently reviewing the new FASB pronouncements, the impact, if
any, of these pronouncements on its consolidated financial statements has not been
determined.

25. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s method
of presentation.
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VisionN

Lean, decentralized operating structure that allows
Magna’'s operating groups to evolve continually to
meet anticipated changes in customer needs and
to respond rapidly to sudden changes in the
marketplace

B Strategic manufacturing expertise in all major
vehicle systems and key vehicle competencies that
range from design and engineering to testing and
vehicle assembly

B Ability to continually renew and grow by replicating
Magna through separate public companies with
the same entrepreneurial culture and clearly
defined operating principles

RESOURCES

ES

Proprietary, leading-edge technologies, proéesses
and products

World-class technical skills training and highly
automated state-of-the-art global facilities with
dedicated in-house engineering and tooling
capabilities '

One of the strongest balance sheets in the
automotive industry with approximately
$900 million in cash reserves




COMMITMERNT

A ldng-standing commitment and operating
philosophy of providing our customers with
a better product for a better price

Unique Corporate Constitution that leblicIy defines
the rights of investors, employees and managers
to share in the Company’s profits while also

Jimposing certain disciplines on management

Unique Employee’s Charter that guarantees a
number of principles, including profit and equity

E participation, fair treatment, competitive wages

and a safe and healthful workplace

SOLUTIONS

- B

Entrepreneurial corporate culture with strong
performance incentives ensures customer-driven

- product innovation

- Ap.plilc:atib-n. of new processes. and. tech:nologi‘es. for

the development of better quality products at
better prices

“Continuous supply of new products and services

to help our customers reduce costs, provide

superior products and become more competitive
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2001 net income and diluted earnings per share include the impact of other income (net of related taxes) of $46 million, and a future income tax recovery
of $12 million. 2001 diluted earnings per share also includes the impact of a $10 million charge to retained earnings related to foreign exchange on the
redemption of the 5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures. 2000 net income and diluted earnings per share include the impact of other income

(net of related taxes) of $101 million. Net income from operations and diluted earnings per share from operations exclude such amounts (see page 29).




THE CHAIRMARN'S MIESSAGE

Despite a turbulent year in the automotive industry, Magna
once again posted record-breaking financial results. Fiscal 2001
also saw the value of the Company’s stock rise on the strength
of our earnings and solid underlying fundamentals.

The past year highlighted many of the numerous changes
sweeping the automotive industry. The industry is in the midst
of fierce global competition, ongoing consolidation and the
continuous challenge of producing a better quality product at
a better price. In order to remain profitable and competitive,
Magna continues to refine its structure to meet changing
conditions in the global economy and within our industry.
Our operating structure has always evolved in anticipation of
the needs of our customers and to keep ahead of changes within
the industry. It will continue to do so. But our underlying core
principles — including the right of managers and employees to
participate in equity and profit participation — will never change.

I believe that Magna’s ability to constantly evolve constitutes
one of our core strengths. During the past two decades we
made numerous strategic changes. For example, Magna was
among the very first auto parts suppliers to anticipate the
trend towards systems and modules procurement and the
increased delegation of product design, engineering and
development by our customers. We reoriented our operations
along systems supply lines with in-house testing and engineering
resources. These changes enabled us to remain at the leading
edge 9f the automotive systems supply business.

More recently, in order to better meet the sourcing needs of
our customers, we strategically realigned our divisions by
product line into automotive systems groups responsible for
major vehicle systems areas. This change also enabled us to
accelerate the development of larger vehicle systems in order to
meet our customers’ desire to source fewer — but more complex
— vehicle modules. In addition, when we saw that our customers
would begin sourcing components and systems on a global
basis, we restructured our divisions into global operating groups.
And we foresaw the trend toward niche vehicle development
and the increased need of our customers to outsource the
engineering, development and assembly of low-volume and
niche vehicles. Qur early fecognition of this trend resulted in
the purchase of Steyr-Daimler-Puch, which is today our
Magna Steyr group, the world’s foremost independent supplier
of total vehicle engineering and niche vehicle development and
assembly.




However, some of the most significant changes of the past decade were the result of our strategy of spinning out our automotive
systems groups as separate public companies. Last year, we successfully spun out our interior systems subsidiary, Intier
Automotive Inc., as a separate public company — the third of our major automotive systems groups to go public. One of the
key benefits of this strategy is that it ensures that our systems groups remain focused on their core areas of automotive systems
expertise, enabling them to become the industry leader in each of their respective product categories. In each of these product
categories, our groups have a product breadth and range of automotive technologies and manufacturing expertise that I believe

is unsurpassed.

Another benefit of our “spinco” strategy is that it allows Magna to retain a very lean and decentralized operating structure -
one that is able to avoid the build-up of bureaucracy, which can stifle decision-making and choke product development at a
time when our customers require the rapid introduction of new and innovative products that perform better, cost less and
help them to differentiate their vehicles from the competition. Our decentralized structure also keeps our groups closer to the
needs of their customers and employees, and much more responsive to rapidly changing conditions in the marketplace.
Going forward, Magna will continue to examine opportunities to spin out certain of our other major automotive systems

groups.

In essence, while our corporate structure may vary over time, Magna’s core principles will remain constant. As we continue to
evolve our organizational structure, Magna will remain the custodian of those principles — principles that are enshrined in
our Corporate Constitution and Employee’s Charter and which are at the heart of our unique corporate culture.

These principles have long been the reason for our success and are the common link that holds together all of our various
automotive systems groups. These principles also demonstrate, in tangible terms, our commitment to the Company’s stakeholders
and our recognition that they are partners in our success. I strongly believe our core principles will continue to provide our

stakeholders even greater growth and profitability in the years ahead.

I am pleased to note that MEC, Magna’s publicly traded non-automotive subsidiary, also had a record year and is contributing
to Magna’s bottom line. MEC is aggressively leveraging new electronic technologies to transmit the thrill of live racing and
wagering entertainment into the homes of people around the world. As a result, MEC is in the early stages of building a global
customer base and is quickly emerging as a leading force in the rapidly growing leisure and entertainment industry.

I am confident that Magna’s investment in MEC will yield excellent returns over the long term.

In closing, I would like to thank our shareholders for their patience during the past few years when Magna’s stock was
significantly undervalued in spite of our strong underlying fundamentals and continued record financial performance.

‘We remain committed to creating increased shareholder value through growth in earnings per share. I would also like to
thank our customers, who continue to provide us with new contracts and new opportunities to demonstrate how our vehicle
technologies and automotive systems know-how can contribute to making their own businesses more profitable and competitive;
Although a number of our customers had a difficult year last year, intensifying competition within the industry creates a
tremendous opportunity for Magna to provide our customers with more value-added products and services. And lastly,

I wish to thank our employees and managers, who once again shared in the Company’s record profits. They continue to
produce a better product at a better price — an unbeatable formula for growth that has now spanned five decades.

oo o

Frank Stronach
Chairman of the Board




LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

2001 was Magna’s best year ever. The Company posted record
results in sales, operating income, diluted earnings per share
from operations and average content per vehicle. All this was
achieved despite a significant year-over-year decline in
automotive production.

The success of the past year — and over the course of Magna’s
history — is a direct result of the following key elements:

—~ We are committed to our stakeholders. Our commitment is
more than just words. It is contractual and clearly spelled out
in our Corporate Constitution. We all pull together —
management and employees — to meet the needs of our
customers, and we all share in the rewards of doing so.

~ We have demonstrated vision. Magna has a track record of
anticipating change, and moving quickly to capitalize on that
change. We have a clear idea of where the automotive industry
is headed, and how we can help our customers get there —
more quickly, more competitively, and more cost-effectively.

~ We have deep resources — technological and human.

—~ We provide solutions. Magna has a reputation for tackling any
customer challenge, and we have the know-how and desire to

continuously seek out innovative solutions.

It is my objective to ensure that the pillars of our success remain
strong, and to continue to grow our sales, earnings per share
and overall market share in order to deliver superior performance
to our shareholders. We have before us an exciting window of
opportunity to take Magna to a new level among automotive
systems suppliers. [ assure shareholders that we will seize this
opportunity to further strengthen and grow the Company.

Magna will seek out new technologies and strategic assets.

We have managed our affairs prudently and we stand today
with one of the strongest balance sheets in the industry and
cash reserves totaling close to $900 million. This places us in
an extremely advantageous position to capitalize on a number
of opportunities, including potential acquisitions that
complement our current portfolio of automotive technologies
and assets. However, when it comes to identifying potential
acquisitions, we will be discriminating and disciplined. One of
my primary objectives will be to carefully assess the potential
for such acquisitions to further our overall business strategy
and enhance our long-term earnings growth.




We will continue to invest in technical skills training as well as training for our managers and employees. We have one of the
most skilled labour pools in the industry, particularly in regard to tool and die makers — the backbone of our manufacturing
expertise — as well as automotive technicians and engineers. We intend to continue widening and deepening this pool of
skilled employees as a source of significant competitive advantage.

Magna’s growth continues to be largely technology-driven. Our focus on utilizing new technologies and processes in the
development of a wide range of proprietary products accounted for much of the Company’s strong financial performance
over the past number of years. Consolidated sales in 2001 increased to $11.0 billion, a five percent increase over the previous
year despite declines in both European and North American vehicle production levels. Net income from operations increased
five percent to $522 million, and diluted earnings per share from operations were a record $5.56.

Our prospects for continued growth remain strong, even in the event of a further decline in automotive production. It is also
important to point out that our growth over the last several years has been largely internally generated. We are now beginning
to witness the fruits of a decade of uninterrupted capital investment in our facilities, equipment and new technologies,

together with investments in our global expansion strategy and the training and skills development of our human resources.

Our highly flexible organizational structure positions us to optimally manage our business units in today's rapidly changing
automotive industry. Both our publicly traded automotive systems groups and our wholly owned subsidiaries are all
significant players within their respective product categories. They all have global scope as well as a global customer and
operations base. Each group is a full-service supplier and a leader in regard to supplying advanced modules and systems to
meet the needs of our customers for reduced costs and improved performance and styling. Most importantly, our groups are
regarded by our customers as among the top suppliers in their respective product categories.

Magna is much more than the sum of its parts. Going forward, my principal mission will be to help realize the enormous
value that resides in the synergy between our various automotive systems groups. As the world’s most diversified automotive
systems supplier, we possess the manufacturing capability and automotive expertise to develop and create an infinite number
of new automotive systems and modules. This unique capability holds great potential for Magna’s future growth — one we will
seek to further develop in the years ahead.

I wish to thank a number of people who helped to make 2001 a record-breaking year for Magna. First of all, I would like to
thank our customers for their continued confidence in our abilities as a supplier of advanced, high quality systems and modules.
Similarly, T would like to thank our shareholders for their strong vote of confidence in our performance and direction.

Most importantly, I would like to thank Magna’s employees worldwide for their dedication and hard work. And lastly, I wish
to thank our operations managers — the unsung heroes of Magna — who ensure the timely delivery of quality products to our
customers day in and day out. They represent Magna’s indomitable entrepreneurial, can-do spirit.

Pl

Belinda Stronach
President and Chief Executive Officer




EMPLOYEE EQUITY AND PROFIT PARTICIPATION
Ten percent of Magna’s profit before tax will be allocated to employees. These funds
will be used for the purchase of Magna shares in trust for employees and for cash

distributions to employees, recognizing length of service.

SHAREHOLDER PROFIT PARTICIPATION
Magna will distribute, on average, not less than 20 percent of its annual net profit

after tax to shareholders.

MANAGEMENT PROFIT PARTICIPATION
To obtain long-term contractual commitment from senior management, the Company
provides a compensation arrangement which, in addition to a base salary below

industry standards, allows for the distribution of up to six percent of Magna’s profit

before tax.

Employee

Equity & Profit RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

';30':)'/‘:""""’" Magna will allocate a minimum of seven percent of its profit before tax for research
and development to ensure the long-term viability of the Company.

Shareholder

Profit

;argcipation SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

0% The Company will allocate a maximum of two percent of its profit before tax for
;1’;::3:;;&"{ charitable, cultural, educational and political purposes to support the basic fabric of

55% society.

MINIMUM PROFIT PERFORMANCE
Management has an obligation to produce a profit. If Magna does not generate a

minimum after-tax return of four percent on share capital for two consecutive years,
the Class A shareholders, voting as a class, will have the right to elect additional
directors.

UNRELATED INVESTMENTS
Class A and Class B shareholders, with each class voting separately, will have the right

to approve any investment in an unrelated business in the event such investment

Sacial

e together with all other investments in unrelated businesses exceeds 20 percent of
Responsibility

2% Magna’s equity.
Research and
Develpment BOARD OF DIRECTORS
7% Magna believes that outside directors provide independent counsel and discipline.
yaff‘fégeme“‘ A majority of the members of Magna’s Board of Directors will be outsiders.
roii
Participation
6% Magna is a public company with two classes of shares: a Class B share which carries a multiple

vote, held primarily by management and their associates, and a Class A share for investors
and employees which carries a single vote. This share structure has been in place since 1978
and enables management to have operating control of the Company on a day-to-day basis,
provided it adheres to the Corporate Constitution.

Any change to Magna’s Corporate Constitution requires the approval of the Class A and Class B
shareholders, with each class voting separately.




Magna is committed to an operating philosophy which is based on fairness and concern
for people. It includes these principles:

JOB SECURITY

Being competitive by making a better product for a better price is the best way to
enhance job security. Magna is committed to working together with you to help
protect your job security.

To assist you, Magna will provide:
+ Job Counselling « Training « Employee Assistance Programs

A SAFE AND HEALTHFUL WORKPLACE

Magna strives to provide you with a working environment which is safe and healthful.

FAIR TREATMENT

Magna offers equal employment opportunities based on an individual’s qualifications
Magna Employee Equity . .. . s
and Profit Participation Program and performance, free from discrimination or favouritism.
Annual Profit Aflocation - U.S. $ Millions

COMPETITIVE WAGES AND BENEFITS

s100 Magna will provide you with information which will enable you to compare your

total compensation of total wages and total benefits with those earned by employees
of your competitors, as well as with other plants in your community. If your total
compensation is found not to be competitive, then your wages will be adjusted.

$80
EMPLOYEE EQUITY AND PROFIT PARTICIPATION

Magna believes that every employee should own a portion of the Company.

COMMUNICATION AND INFORMATION

$60 -
Through regular monthly meetings between management and employees and

through publications, Magna will provide you with information so that you will
know what is going on in your Company and within the industry.

540 THE HOTLINE

Should you have a problem, or feel the above principles are not being met,
we encourage you to call the Hotline or use the self-addressed Hotline Envelopes to
register your complaints. You do not have to give your name, but if you do, it will be

held in strict confidence. Hotline Counsellors, speaking several languages, will
answer your call. Your concern will then be forwarded to the Magna Corporate
Employee Relations Department. The Magna Corporate Employee Relations
Department is committed to investigate and resolve all concerns or complaints and

$20

must report the outcome to the Employee Relations Advisory Board.

2000 2001

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS ADVISORY BOARD

The Employee Relations Advisory Board is a group of people who have proven
recognition and credibility relating to humanitarian and social issues. This Board
will monitor, advise and ensure that Magna operates within the spirit of the Magna
Employee’s Charter and the principles of Magna’s Corporate Constitution.




EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Top photo from left to right:
J. Brian Colburn

Executive Vice-President, Special Projects and Secretary

Marc Neeb

Vice-President, Human Resources

Jeffrey O. Palmer

Executive Vice-President

William Biggar
Executive Vice-President, Office of the CEO

Werner Czernohorsky

Executive Vice-President, Capital Invesiments

and Chief Administrative Officer

Tom Skudutis
Executive Vice-President, Operations

Right photo from left to right:
David Carroll

Executive Vice-President,
Marketing and Corporate Planning

Vincent J. Galifi
Executive Vice-President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer




GLOBAL AUTOMOTIVE OPERATIONS

Magna’s global automotive operations are divided between its publicly traded automotive systemns groups,
Tesma International Inc., Decoma International Inc. and Intier Automotive Inc.,
and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Magna Steyr, Cosma International
and Magna Mirror Systems.

R

RRRAE |

MAGNA

INTERNATIONAL
INC.

Wholly Owned Subsidiaries

TESMA. . 2
INTERNATIONAL TERNATIONAL

OPERATING STRUCTURE

Automotive Systems Groups

Magna's automotive divisions are grouped along global
product lines. Each Automotive Systems Group provides
full service systems integration in their respective vehicle
areas.

Automotive Systems Group Management

The most experienced and successful division managers
advance to the ranks of Group management, which is
responsible for coordinating product development, finance,
marketing and maximizing manufacturing efficiencies in
the divisions which make up the Group. Group management
is paid a relatively low base salary and a pre-determined
portion of the Group's profits. When a Group’s management
and business is mature, the Company will consider whether
to spin the Group out as a separate public company.

Magna Executive Management

Executive management coordinates advanced systems
development and manufacturing, ensures customer
satisfaction and interfaces with the investment community.
In addition, executive management is responsible for the
long-term strategic planning and future growth of the
Company and monitoring Group management performance.
Members of executive management are paid a base salary
below industry standards and up to six per cent of Magna's
profit before tax.

Magna also has an agreement with Stronach & Co. to
provide business development and other management
services. These services include: facilitating the application
of the Company’s operating principles and philosophies,
coordinating strategic planning (including implemen’ation
through business acquisitions and the acquisition of new
products and technologies), recruiting and developing
new management and promoting corporate goodwill
with various stakeholder groups.

Operating Resources

Motivated and Involved Employees

B As part-owners working in an environment where
productivity is rewarded, Magna employees are
motivated to produce quality products at competitive
prices.

Entrepreneurial and Incentivized Managers

2 Entrepreneurial, hands-on managers with strong
tooling, engineering and manufacturing backgrounds
run Magna's divisions. Division managers are
responsible for ensuring profitability, achieving
customer satisfaction and upholding the principles of
the Magna Employee’s Charter. Their compensation
is tied to the performance of their division, with each
manager receiving a relatively low base salary and a
pre-determined portion of the division’s profits.

Technical Skills Training

B Magna operates a world-class Technical Training
Centre that provides hands-on learning in tool and
die making, mould making, robotics and pneumatics.
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V6 Front Engine Cover Module

Transfer Case with Insta-Loc™ Clutch

Tesma International Inc.
is Magna's global engine,
transmission and fueling systems
group.

Tesma manufactures
highly engineered products and
modules for vehicle engines,
transmissions and fuel systems.

Tesma is a separate
publicly traded company
and is listed on The
Toronto Stock Exchange: TSM.A
and
NASDAQ: TSMA
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“Unique automotive powertrain products
and processes provide Tesma with a secure
and profirable future by continuously
providing our customers with optimal
solutions. Our key to success is innovation.”

Manfred Gingl
President and CEO, Tesma International Inc.
Vice-Chairman, Magna International Inc.

RESOURCES

Proprietary Technologies and Processes

Bl Tesma owns a suite of proprietary powertrain and fueling systems
technologies, including a compact, high capacity one-way clutch
for automotive transmissions and transfer cases, variable capacity
oil pumps and water pumps, various capless refueling systems
that meet stringent new emission regulations, and a cost-effective
thermostat replacement that regulates the amount of engine
coolant flow to the radiator.

Engineering and Product Development

A dedicated engineering and product management group to
oversee development of new, technology-intensive products.

El Two R&D centres, as well as state-of-the-art “lead factories” within
each product group featuring the latest in engineering and testing
technology.

Manufacturing Depth

@ Expertise in a wide array of manufacturing processes, including
aluminum die-casting, metal roll forming, die-spline rolling,
machining, die & flow forming, fineblanking, steel tube bending,
hydroforming, end-forming, plastic injection molding, steel plasma
welding, precision-heavy stamping and automated assembly.




Stainless Steel Fuel Tank

One-Piece Flow y
Formed Clutch Housing




Cosma International
is Magna'’s wholly owned
metail body and
structural systems subsidiary
and the automotive industry’s
premier independent
metalforming supplier.

Cosma manufactures a
comprehensive range of
metal body systems,
components, assemblies and
modules.

Max Amtmann John Petroni Horst Prelog Manfred Bachem
Executive Executive Executive Vice-President,
Vice-President, Vice-President,  Vice-President, Cosma Europe
Cosma Technology, Cosma Body Cosma Structural

Engineering and Systems Systems

Tooling Systems

“We intend to continue developing and applying the industry’s most advanced
metalforming technologies to create new metal systems solutions for our
customers.”

RESOURCES

Design, Engineering and Tooling Capabilities

@ All of Cosma'’s divisions have in-house tool and die making
capabilities. In addition, Cosma can provide OEM customers with
complete modeling, styling and prototyping services.

Manufacturing Depth

1 Cosma has the automotive industry’'s most comprehensive range
of metalforming technologies. These include the group’s patented
IHV hydroforming technology, hydropiercing, roll forming,
conventional stamping and extrusion, tube-to-tube welding and
technically advanced laser-welding processes.
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DECOMA

Decoma International inc.
is Magna's global exterior
systems group and the world's

leading supplier of exterior vehicle

systems and modules.

Decoma designs, engineers and

manufactures a wide range of

products including plastic body
panels, exterior trim

components, lighting and fascias.

Decoma is a separate
publicly traded company
and is listed on The
Toronto Stock Exchange: DEC.A
and
NASDAQ: DECA
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“The skills of our people and the technologies
they bring allow our customers to build
better quality cars at more competitive prices.
This not only enhances our potential sales
growth and profitability, but also ensures
the long-term stability of our company.”

Al Power
President and CEQO

RESOURCES

Decoma helps define and enhance the exterior appearance of more
cars and trucks than any other Tier One supplier in the industry.
With a comprehensive range of exterior products and manufacturing
processes, Decoma is able to provide complete vehicle exterior
appearance packages.

Advanced Technologies and Manufacturing Processes

Decoma’s leading-edge technologies include next-generation
chrome plating, thermoplastic body panels and glass dynamic
sealing systems. In-house tooling and paint processes give
Decoma a competitive advantage in regard to quality and
speed-to-market.

Wide Range of Product Capabilities

Decoma has a greater product breadth than any supplier in the
automotive exteriors business. Decoma'’s product line includes
bumper systems, body panels, exterior trim, lighting, running
boards, greenhouse and sealing systems, tonneau covers,
hard tops and soft tops. Decoma’s wide range of exterior product
capabilities and processes also enable it to provide bumper-to-
bumper coverage.







INTICT?
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intier Automotive inc.
is an industry leader in the
deveiopment of complete vehicle
interiors and is one of the leading
suppliers of interior systems,
including cockpit modules,
modular door systems and paneis,
overhead systems, complete seat
systems, specialty seat
mechanisms, and closure systems.

Intier is a separate
publicly traded company and is
listed on The Toronto Stock
Exchange: [AlLA
and NASDAQ: [AIA
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“Intier Automotive expects to deliver growth
in both sales and earnings through the
introduction of innovative new products,
given the depth of our technical capability
and competitive operations.”

Don Walker
President and CEQ

RESOURCES

Intier is uniquely positioned within the industry to deliver highly
integrated interior and closure systems that provide total interior
solutions for its global customers.

World Class Styling and Design Capabilities

I Intier Automotive's industrial design group has proven styling,
design and graphics capabilities for producing interior concepts
that meet the highest standards of craftsmanship and quality.

Consumer-Driven Product Development

£3  Intier Automotive’s market research process is customer-driven
and centred on understanding the end consumer’s wants and
needs in regard to interior automotive design and functionality.
Through various research methodologies, Intier designers,
engineers and marketing professionals conduct field research to
gather first-hand consumer feedback. They then utilize that market
and consumer intelligence to develop innovative, first-to-market
products that add value to OEM customer vehicles. Such customer-
focused products include the automotive industry’s first integrated
child seat, first removable bench seat, and the first power liftgate
offered on a production vehicle.







Magna Mirror Systems
is one of the world's largest
suppliers of exterior and interior
mirror systems,

with fully integrated

manufacturing and engineering
centres in North America
and Europe.

The group is a global leader in
mirror technologies, including
actuators and positioning
systems.

20

“As a globally dedicated team, we
are proud to provide our customers
with unique products and innovative
technologies. This ensures our
continued success within a highly
competitive mirror industry.”

Volker Rudnitzki (left)
Vice-President, North American Group Office

Erwin WinKler (right)
Vice-President, European Group Office

RESOURCES

Magna Mirror Systems is at the forefront of providing OEM customers
with innovative mirror products that offer improved styling and
functionality and a wide range of safety features.

World Leading Technology

Magna Mirror Systems is one of the world's largest suppliers of

power actuator/powerfold technology - the electric brains of a

power mirror — and is developing leading-edge, next-generation
actuator technologies.

Fuli-Service Capabilities

Magna Mirror Systems is one of the industry’s most advanced
mirror manufacturers with in-house EC (electrochromatic) glass
development, powerpack and powerfold manufacturing capabilities,
and in-house paint capabilities.

Research and Development

Magna Mirror Systems opened a North American R&D centre in
Michigan last year with prototyping, engineering, design and
validation capabilities. The centre features state-of-the-art testing
equipment, including a wide range of environmental tests for
water, dust, salt and extreme temperature conditions.







Viagna Steyr
is the world's premier supplier of
total vehicle engineering for
OEM customers.

Magna Steyr is one of the world's
leading suppliiers of niche vehicle
production, assembly and
concept development, as well as
a leading supplier of powertrain
modules, inciuding
all-wheel-drive systems.

22

RESOURCES

“Magna Steyr’s overall vehicle competence
is based on 100 years of tradition and
experience in automobile technology.
Magna Steyr is unique among all
automotive suppliers in its ability ro offer
OEM customers a complete package of
vehicle competencies — everything from
engineering, design and development to
delivery of assembled vehicles."”

Siegfried Wolf
President and CEC, Magna Steyr
Vice-Chairman, Magna International Inc.

With total vehicle engineering competence, world-class manufacturing
technologies, and vehicle assembly capabilities, Magna Steyr provides
cost-effective engineering and automotive production solutions.

One-Stop Automotive Service Supplier

& Magna Steyr is able to offer OEM customers a complete range of
automative competencies from initial vehicle concept design to
final assembly and serial production, all under one roof.
with full-service capabilities and highly flexible production and
assembly facilities, Magna Steyr is solidly positioned as a strategic,
value-added partner to OEMs.

Technological and Engineering Sophistication

& Magna Steyr possesses world-calibre automotive engineering
know-how that is backed by a full range of vehicle technologies,
including automotive styling, prototype production, vehicle safety
testing, body-in-white assembly, drivetrain technologies and supply

chain management.







Magna Entertainment Corp. {MEC]}
is the largest operator
of thoroughbred racetracks
in North America,
based on revenue, and one of
the world's leading
simulcast providers of
live thoroughbred racing.

MEC operates a
growing off-track betting {OTB])
network in several states and a

national account wagering service,
XpressBet™, which permits
customers to wager on races by
telephone and over the [nternet,
where permitted by law.

MEC is a separate publicly traded
company and is listed on the
The Toronto Stock Exchange:

MIE.A
and
NASDAQC: MIEC
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“We will continue to grow our live racing
and racing-related businesses by focusing
squarely on exceeding the expectations of
our customers, and by using new electronic
media such as the Internet and interactive
TV to take the thrill of wagering and horse
racing entertainment to our customers in
their homes and on the road.”

Jim McAlpine
President and CEQ

RESOURCES

MEC acquired its first racetrack, Santa Anita Park near Los Angeles,
Cdlifarnia, in 1998 and is today the largest operator of thoroughbred -
racetracks in North America. MEC now operates 10 racetracks,
including four of the premier racetracks in North America, and is at
the forefront of transforming the horse racing and wagering business
into one of the world’s most dynamic entertainment businesses.

Economies of Scale

B MEC is utilizing best practices from across its racetrack network
and economies of scale to improve operating efficiency and
profitability. '

Racing Content and Distribution Ownership

3 MEC has a competitive advantage through its ownership of both
live racing content and live racing and wagering distribution
channels. MEC's national account wagering service, XpressBet™,
enables customers to wager on horseracing by telephone and
over the Internet at www.xpressbet.com. In addition, MEC has a
growing network of off-track betting (OTB) facilities.

Global Broadcast Reach

MEC is one of the world's leading simulcast suppliers of live horse
racing content to inter-track, off-track and account wagering markets.
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" Ford Mondeo - Magna manufactures the front and rear fasaas roof.
moldmg and hydroformed rear’ bumper reinforcements. .
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

All amounts in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of
Operations and Financial Position (“MD&A”) are in-U.S. dollars millions
unless otherwise noted. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with
Magna International Inc’s (“Magna” or the “Company”) audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2001.

OVERVIEW

Despite significant declines in North American vehicle production

volumes, Magna once again posted record-breaking financial

results, including:

°  Record automotive sales of $10.5 billion;

* Record average dollar content per vehicle in North America
of $403;

°  Record average dollar content per vehicle in Europe of $178;

° Record automotive operating income of $849 million;

¢ Record net income from operations"' of $522 million;

*  Record diluted earnings per share from operations'’ of $5.56;
and

° Record cash from operations of $1.0 billion.

Global Systems Groups

The past year highlighted the numerous changes sweeping the
automotive industry. The industry is in the midst of fierce
global competition, excess capacity, ongoing consolidation and
the continuous challenge of producing a better quality product
at a lower price. In order to remain profitable and competitive,
Magna continues to refine its corporate structure to meet
changing conditions in the global economy and within the
automotive industry. Magna’s operating structure will constantly
evolve to anticipate the needs of its customers and to keep
ahead of changes within the industry.

In an effort to remain at the leading edge of the automotive
system and module supply business and to better meet the
sourcing needs of its customers, over the past decade Magna
strategically realigned its operating divisions into vehicle systems
groups responsible for major vehicle systems areas. This change
enabled Magna to accelerate the development of larger vehicle
systems and modules in order to meet its customers’ desire to
source fewer, but more complex, vehicle modules.

In addition, when management anticipated that Magna’s
customers would begin sourcing components and systems on a
global basis, Magna’s manufacturing divisions were restructured
into global automotive systems groups. Pursuant to this strategy,
two significant transactions were completed during 2001.

In January 2001, Decoma International Inc. (“Decoma”),

a publicly traded subsidiary of Magna, purchased Magna Exterior
Systems and the remaining 60% of Decoma Exterior Trim
owned by Magna. Then, in February 2001, Intier Automotive Inc.
(“Intier”) was created, bringing together the product capabilities
and systems expertise of Magna’s interior, seating and closure
systems groups. In August 2001, Magna successfully spun out
Intier as a separate public company, the third of Magna’s major
automotive systems groups to go public.

One of the key benefits of this global automotive systems group
strategy is that it ensures that each group remains focused on

its core area of automotive systems expertise, enabling it to
become an industry leader in each of their respective product
categories.

Magna’s global product alignment is substantially complete.
Magna now supplies products and services through the following
global product groups:

Public Subsidiaries

¢ Decoma International Inc. — a variety of exterior
components and systems, including fascias (bumpers),
front and rear end modules and plastic body panels

» Intier Automotive Inc. — interior and closure components,
systems and modules, including complete seats,
instrument and door panel systems and sound insulation,
and closure systems

e Tesma International Inc. — highly engineered engine,
transmission and fueling systems and modules

Wholly Owned Subsidiaries

e Magna Steyr — complete drivetrain technologies and
complete vehicle engineering and assembly of low
volume derivative and niche vehicles .

°  Metals (operating as Cosma International) ~ stamped,
hydroformed and welded metal body systems,
components, assemblies and modules

¢ Magna Mirror Systems — exterior and interior mirror
systems

In addition to the Company’s automotive operations, Magna
has certain non-automotive operations held through its public
subsidiary, Magna Entertainment Corp. (“MEC”). MEC is the
leading owner and operator of thoroughbred racetracks in the
United States, based on revenue, and a leading supplier, via
simulcasting, of live racing content to the inter-track, off-track
and account wagering markets. MEC currently operates eight
thoroughbred racetracks, one standardbred racetrack and one
greyhound racetrack, as well as the simulcast wagering venues
at these tracks. In addition, MEC operates off-track betting
facilities and a national account wagering business named
“XpressBet™”, which permits customers to place wagers by
telephone and over the Internet on horse races at up to 65
racetracks in North America.

2002 Outlook

Given its operational and financial strengths, including one of
the strongest balance sheets in the industry, Magna enters 2002
in a solid position to meet the challenges of the year ahead.
Magna is well positioned to capitalize on industry trends and to
continue to grow its average content per vehicle in both North
America and Europe.

Although it is very difficult to predict the extent and duration
of future vehicle production declines and other economic
uncertainties, Magna’s results are expected to continue to be
impacted by the uncertain conditions that are affecting the
automotive industry generally, including production cut-backs,
OEM price concessions under long-term arrangements and
general economic uncertainty.

(1} The Company measures and presents net incoine front operations and diluted earnings per share from operations because they arc measures that are widely used by analysts
in evaluating the operating performance of the Company. In 2001, net income from operations and diluted carnings per share frons operations are based on net incone and
diluted carniigs per share, respectively, as disclosed in the consolidated financial statemeris, but exclude otleer fncone (net of velated taxes) of $46 suillion, and a future income
tax recovery of $12 sillion. 2001 dilured carnings per share front operations also excludes the impact of a $10 million charge to retained carnings related to Joreign exchange
on the redenption of the 5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures. However, et income from operations and dilured carnings per share from operations do not have any
standardized meaning under Canadian gencrally accepted accounting principles and are therefore unlikely 1o be comparable to sintilar meastres presented by other companics.
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For 2002, Magna is expecting production volurnes of approximately
15.3 million units (including medium and heavy trucks) in
North America and approximately 15.9 million units in Europe.
Magna expects 2002 average dollar content per vehicle to range
between $425 and $445 in North America and between $210
and $230 in Europe.

Based on the expected declines in production volumes, the
increases in average dollar content per vehicle in North America
and Europe, each compared to 2001, and anticipated tooling
and other automotive sales, Magna expects its automotive sales
for 2002 to range from $10.8 billion to $11.6 billion. In addition,
diluted earnings per share from operations for 2002 are expected
to be in the range of $5.25 to $5.90.

Magna expects that 2002 spending for fixed assets for its
automotive business will be in the range of $650 million to
$700 million. The majority of 2002 planned automotive capital
spending relates to the award of new production contracts, new
production facilities, maintenance improvements and planned
efficiency enhancements. Magna is in a position to meet all
2002 planned cash requirements from its cash balances on hand,
existing credit facilities and cash flow from operations.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Magna’s results are directly affected by the levels of North
American and European car and light truck production and its
ability to obtain new production contracts. Magna’s results are
also directly affected by the average exchange rate used to translate
the results of its operations having a functional currency other
than the U.S. dollar into U.S. dollars. Current factors impacting
the automotive industry and the ability to obtain new production
contracts from OEM customers include the requirement for
suppliers to manufacture and supply more complex systems,
including modular systems, maintain the financial strength to
expand, support and supply OEMs, provide increased engineering,
finance customer-owned tooling, effectively manage complete
programs, and have full service supplier capabilities, in each case
on a global basis. Management believes that Magna’s product
diversity and overall capabilities position it to benefit from
these factors. As a result of the continued globalization of the
automotive industry, increased outsourcing by OEM customers
of larger, more complex modules and systems to independent
Tier One suppliers and the continuing consolidation of the
supplier base, the Company expects continued customer
penetration in North America and Europe during 2002 and
beyond.

OEM production volumes in each of North America and
Europe may be impacted by a number of geographic factors,
including general economic conditions, interest rates, fuel prices
and availability, legislative changes, environmental emission
and safety issues and labour and/or trade relfations.

Magna’s reliance on its OEM customers makes it susceptible to
risks generally applicable to industry participants, including
the extent of OEM outsourcing in both North America and
Europe. The extent of OEM outsourcing is dependent on a
number of factors, including the cost, quality and timeliness of
external production relative to in-house production by OEMs,
technological capability, the degree of unutilized capacity at
OEM manufacturing facilities and OEM labour relations.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Foreign Exchange

2001 2000 Change
1 Canadian dollar equals U.S. dollars 0.6456 0.6731 -4%
1 Euro equals U.S. dollars 0.8951 0.9222 -3%
1 British Pound equals U.S. dollars 1.4397  1.5130 -5%

The preceding table reflects the average foreign exchange rates
between the most common currencies in which Magna conducts
business and its U.S. dollar reporting currency. Significant changes
in these foreign exchange rates impact the reported U.S. dollar
amounts of Magna’s sales, expenses and income. Throughout
this MD&A, reference is made to the impact of foreign exchange
on reported U.S. dollar amounts where relevant.

Total Sales

Total sales were a record $11.0 billion for 2001, reflecting record
sales levels at the Company’s automotive and non-automotive
operations of $10.5 billion and $519 million, respectively.

Automotive Sales

2001 2000 Change

Vehicle Production Volumes (Millions of Units)

North America 15.8 17.7 -11%

Europe 16.5 16.7 2%
Average Dollar Content Per Vehicle

North America $403 $344 +17%

Europe $178 $162 +10%
Automotive Sales

North American Production $ 6,366 $ 6,111 +4%

European Production and Assembly 2,926 2,710 +8%

Other Automotive 1,215 1,278 -5%

Total Autemotive Sales $10,507 $10,099 +4%

Automotive Sales Analysis [U.S. % Millions]

2001
Tooling, Engineering and
Other Automotive — 1,215

European Production
and Assembly — 2,926

North American Production - 6,366

2000

Tooling, Engineering and
Other Automotive - 1,278

European Production
and Assembly — 2,710

North American Production — 6,111
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Total automotive sales reached a record level in 2001, increasing Other Automotive

4% compared to 2000. Growth in total automotive sales in 2001
was achieved despite a substantial decline in North American
vehicle production volumes.

North America

North American production sales increased 4% or $255 million.
This increase in sales reflects an increase in the Company’s
North American average dollar content per vehicle offset in
part by an 11% decline in North American vehicle production
volumes from 2000.

In North America, the Company’s average dollar content per
vehicle grew to $403 for 2001 compared to $344 for 2000.

The increase in content relates primarily to a full year’s production
on programs that launched during 2000, including the Ford U204
(Ford Escape/Mazda Tribute), the DaimlerChrysler RS (minivan),
and certain models for the General Motors GMT 800 (full size
trucks and sport utilities), and the launch of other new programs,
including the Ford U152 (Explorer) program. Content was also
increased by the acquisition of the remaining 49% interest in
the Conix Group (October 2000) and the acquisition of
Autosystems (September 2001). These increases in content
were partially offset by the impact of lower volumes on other
long-running high content programs, including the
DaimlerChrysler LH (Concorde, Intrepid, 300M and LHS)
program, a reduction in reported U.S. dollar sales due to the
weakening of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar, and
the disposition in 2000 of Invotronics Manufacturing,
Powerlasers and Magna’s ownership interest in Webasto
Sunroofs Inc. (collectively the “North American Dispositions”).

Europe

European production and assembly sales increased approximately
8% or $216 million. This increase in sales reflects increases in
the Company’s European average dollar content per vehicle
offset in part by a 2% decline in European vehicle production
volumes from 2000.

In Europe, the Company’s average dollar content per vehicle
grew to $178 for 2001 compared to $162 for 2000. The increase
in content reflects increased assembly sales at the Company’s
Magna Steyr assembly operations in Austria, and additional
sales generated from the ramp-up of various programs, including
the BMW Mini and the Jaguar X400 programs. These increases
were partially offset by a decrease in reported U.S. dollar sales
due to the weakening of the Euro and British Pound, each against
the U.S. dollar.

Other automotive sales, which include tooling and engineering
sales, decreased $63 million in 2001 to $1.2 billion. The decrease
was primarily the result of reduced tooling sales at Magna Steyr
and the Metals and Other Automotive Operations. The lower
tooling sales at Magna Steyr reflect the substantial completion
of the General Motors GMT 250 (Aztek) and GMT 257
(Rendezvous) tooling programs in 2000 in addition to reduced
sales as a result of the disposal in 2000 of the only remaining
non-core business related to Magna's acquisition of Steyr-
Daimler-Puch in June 1998. The lower tooling sales at the
Metals and Other Automotive Operations reflect the substantial
completion of the General Motors GMT 800 and Ford U204
tooling programs in 2000.

Refer also to the automotive sales discussion in AUTOMOTIVE
SEGMENTS below.

Gross Margin

Gross margin as a percentage of total automotive sales for 2001
was 18.3% compared to 18.2% in 2000. Gross margins were
positively affected by improved performance at a number of
divisions, including facilities with new program launches, in
particular facilities producing for the DaimlerChrysler RS,

the Ford U204, and the General Motors GMT 800 programs.
These improvements were partially offset by the negative
impact of the substantial reduction in North American vehicle
production in 2001, customer pricing concessions, ramp-up
costs for new start-up operations and production inefficiencies
at certain divisions.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization costs increased to $399 million
(including goodwill amortization of $16 million) for 2001 from
$372 million (including goodwill amertization of $15 million)
for 2000. The increase in depreciation and amortization in
2001 was primarily due to Magna’s investment in capital
equipment to support new production programs and facilities,
and higher capital asset depreciation and goodwill amortization
related to the acquisition in October 2000 of the remaining 49%
interest in the Conix Group joint venture. These increases were
partially offset by a decrease in reported U.S. dollar depreciation
and amortization due to the weakening of the Euro, Canadian
dollar and British Pound, each against the U.S. dollar.
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Selling, General and Administrative (“SGe&A”)

SG&A expenses as a percent of total automotive sales for 2001
was unchanged at 6.5%. SG&A costs were $685 million for 2001,
up from $655 million for 2000. The increase was due in part to
additional spending to support major program launches and
start-up facilities and an $11 million long-service payment
made during the second quarter of 2001 to Magna’s former
President and Chief Executive Officer. These increases were
partially offset by a decrease in reported U.S. dollar SG&A due
to the weakening of the Euro, Canadian dollar and British
Pound, each against the U.S. dollar.

Interest Expense, net

Interest expense (net of interest income) decreased during 2001
to $2 million compared to $13 million for 2000. This decrease
reflects an increase in average net cash balances (excluding MEC)
and reduced interest expense as a result of the
conversion/redemption of the outstanding 5% Convertible
Subordinated Debentures during the third quarter of 2001.
These decreases were partially offset by interest expense on the
October 2000 issuance by Decoma of 9.5% Subordinated
Debentures in connection with the Conix Group acquisition.
The balance of these debentures was redeemed by Decoma in
November 2001.

Operating Income — Automotive

Automotive operating income was $849 million for 2001
compared to $809 million for 2000. The 5% increase in operating
income in 2001 is the result of a higher gross margin as a result
of increased sales and improved margin percentages, increased
equity income and lower interest expense, partially offset by an
increase in depreciation and amortization and higher SG&A
spending in 2001.

Operating Income — Magna Entertainment Corp.

Racetrack Real Estate

2001 Operations Operations Total
Revenues $460 $59 $519
Costs and expenses 458 38 496
Operating income - MEC $ 2 $21 $ 23
Racetrack Real Estate
2000 Operations Operations Total
Revenues $356 $58 $414
Costs and expenses 360 52 412
Operating income - MEC $ (4) $ 6 $ 2

Racetrack Operations

Revenues from racetrack operations were $460 million in 2001
compared to $356 million in 2000, an increase of $104 million
or 29%. The increase in revenues was primarily attributable to
the acquisitions of Ladbroke Racing Pennsylvania Inc. and
Sport Broadcasting, Inc. (collectively the “Ladbroke Companies”)
in April 2001 and Bay Meadows in November 2000, which
increased racetrack revenues in 2001 by $51 million and

$64 million, respectively.

Operating income from racetrack operations improved $6 million
to $2 million in 2001. The improved operating performance
was the result of cost savings at several racetracks and increased
contribution due to more live race days in 2001 (primarily
attributable to the acquisitions of the Ladbroke Companies and
Bay Meadows). Partially offsetting these improvements was an
increase in depreciation and amortization, primarily due to the
amortization of racing licenses at Bay Meadows and the
Ladbroke Companies, and an increase in net interest expense.

Real Estate Operations

Revenues from real estate operations were $59 million in 2001,
an increase of $1 million compared to $58 million in 2000.
Operating income from real estate operations increased to

$21 million in 2001 from $6 million in 2000. The increase was
primarily the result of higher gains realized on the sale of
excess real estate. Revenues and operating income in 2001 were
benefitted by $40 million and $19 million, respectively, as a
result of real estate dispositions, whereas in 2000, revenues and
operating income were benefitted by $38 million and $7 million,
respectively.

Other Income

2001 2000 Change
Dilution gains (losses):
MEC $ (7 $ -
Decoma 47 -
Intier 6 -
Tesma - 36
Gain on sale of Webasto Sunroots Inc. - 94
Gain on sale of Invotronics Manufacturing - 31
$ 46 $ 161 -71%

Other income is separately disclosed before income taxes.
Other income items are limited to gains and losses realized by
Magna on the disposal, or dilution, of investments that it holds
in both its automotive and non-automotive operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2001

In April 2001, MEC, a publicly traded subsidiary of Magna,
issued 3.2 million shares of Class A Subordinate Voting Stock
to complete the acquisition of certain businesses (see note 9 to
the Company’s consolidated financial statements). Magna
incurred a loss of $7 million from its ownership dilution on
the issue. The loss incurred was not subject to income taxes as
the issue was completed on a primary basis by MEC.

In June 2001, Decoma, a publicly traded subsidiary of Magna,
completed a public offering by issuing 16.1 million Decoma
Class A Subordinate Voting Shares for aggregate cash
consideration, net of share issue expenses, of $111 million.
Magna recognized a gain of $49 million from its ownership
dilution arising from the issue. The gain realized was not subject
to income taxes as the issue was completed on a primary basis
by Decoma. In addition, in October 2001, Decoma redeemed the
outstanding amount of the Decoma Subordinated Debentures.
Magna incurred a loss of $2 million from its ownership dilution
arising from the redemption. The loss incurred was not subject
to income taxes.




On August 9, 2001, Intier, a subsidiary of Magna, completed an
initial public offering by issuing 5.5 million Intier Class A
Subordinate Voting Shares to third parties for aggregate cash
consideration, net of share issue expenses, of $72 million.
Magna recognized a gain of $6 million from its ownership
dilution arising from the issue. The gain realized was not subject
to incomme taxes as the issue was completed on a primary basis
by Intier.

For the year ended December 31, 2000

During the year ended December 31, 2000, Magna recognized a
gain before income taxes of $36 million on the sale of 4.4 million
Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Tesma [nternational Inc.
(“Tesma”), a publicly traded subsidiary of Magna.

The Company also completed the sale of its 50% interest in
Webasto Sunroofs Inc., a joint venture, and related real estate
and completed the sale of Invotronics, a wholly owned
manufacturing division. The Company recognized gains before
income taxes of $94 million and $31 million on these disposals,
respectively.

Income Taxes

Magna’s effective income tax rate on operating income (excluding
equity and other income) for 2001 decreased to 33.9% from
36.1% for 2000. The decrease in the effective tax rate is primarily
the result of a future income tax recovery of $12 million related
to the reduction of enacted income tax rates in Canada and the
realization of tax refunds on the distribution of earnings from
certain German subsidiaries. Excluding these items, the effective
income tax rate was 36.1% for 2001, substantially unchanged
from 2000.

Minority interest

Minority interest expense increased $22 million over 2000 to
$48 million for 2001. The increase in minority interest expense
is primarily due to higher earnings at Decoma and MEC, and
an increase in minority interest entitlements at each of the
Company’s public subsidiaries, including Intier, which was
successtully spun-off as a separate public company in August 2001.

Net income

During 2001 net income from operations was a record $522
million, which excludes other income (net of related taxes) of
$46 million and a future income tax recovery of $12 million.
This represents a 5% increase over 2000 net income from
operations of $497 million, which excludes other income

(net of related taxes) of $101 million. The increase in net income
from operations of $25 million is primarily the result of the
$61 million increase in operating income, partially offset by
increases in income taxes (excluding the future income tax
recovery) and minority interest of $14 million and $22 million,
respectively. Including other income and the future income tax
recovery, net income for 2001 decreased to $580 million from
$598 million for 2000.

Earnings per Share

2001 2000 Change
Earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting
or Class B Share:
Basic $6.57 $7.04 -7%
Diluted $6.20 $6.44 -4%
Earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting
or Class B Share from operations:
Basic $6.52 $6.33 +3%
Diluted $5.56 $5.32 +5%

Average number of Class A Subordinate Voting

and Class B Shares outstanding:
Basic 80.1 78.5 +2%
Diluted 91.4 91.5 -

In December 2000, The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants (“CICA”) issued new accounting recommendations
for the presentation and disclosure of basic and diluted earnings
per share. See NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
below and note 2 to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

Diluted earnings per share from operations are calculated using
net income from operations. In addition, diluted earnings per
share from operations for 2001 excludes a $10 million charge to
retained earnings related to foreign exchange on the redemption
of the 5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures. For more
information see note 6 to the Company’s consolidated financial
staternents.

Diluted earnings per share from operations was $5.56 for 2001
compared to $5.32 for 2000. The increase in diluted earnings
per share from operations is due to higher net income from
operations, a decrease in financing charges on other paid-in
capital and a decrease in the weighted average number of
shares outstanding. The decrease in financing charges and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding is due to the
redemption of the outstanding 5% Convertible Subordinated
Debentures which were not converted to Class A Subordinate
Voting Shares prior to September 2001.
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AUTOMOTIVE SEGMENTS

During 2001, the Company reorganized its automotive
operations along global product lines. Each automotive systems
group provides full service systems integration in a specific
vehicle area.

The Company’s automotive operations are further segmented in
the Company’s internal financial reports along global product
lines between publicly traded and wholly owned operations.
The segregation of automotive operations between publicly
traded and wholly owned recognizes the fact that in the case of

wholly owned operations, the Company’s President and Chief
Executive Officer and executive management have direct
responsibility for the key operating, financing and resource
allocation decisions, whereas in the case of publicly traded
operations, such responsibility has been delegated to the public
company’s separate board of directors and their executive
management.

The sales amounts in the segmented discussion below are
before intersegment eliminations.

2001 2000
Total Operating Total Operating
sales income sales income
Public Automotive Operations
Decoma International Inc. $ 1,885 $118 $ 1,648 $ 94
Intier Automotive Inc. 3,268 81 2,971 67
Tesma International Inc. 791 74 . 785 94
Wholly Owned Automotive Operations
Magna Steyr 1,510 31 1,358 41
Metals and Other Automotive Operations 3,165 365 3,479 310
Corporate and other (112) 180 (142) - 203
$ 10,507 $ 849 $ 10,099 $ 809
Sales [U.S. § Millions]
PUBLIC OPERATIONS WHOLLY OWNED OPERATIONS
3,500 3,500
3,000 3,000
2,500 2,500
2,000 2,000
1,500 1.500
1,000 1,800
500 500
¢ o1 8 00 o ' o1
DECOMA ENTIER MAGNA METALS AND
STEYR OTHER AUTOMOTIVE
Operating Income [U.S. § Millions]
PUBLIC OPERATIONS WHOLLY CWNED OPERATIONS
400 400
350 350
300 300
25¢ 250
200 260
150 150
108 10¢
50 i : 50
o o1 99 00 o
DECOMA INTIER MIETALS AND

Decoma International Inc.

Sales

Decoma’s sales increased $237 million or 14% to $1,885 million
for 2001. The increase in sales reflects increases in Decoma’s
average dollar content per vehicle in both North America and
Europe partially offset by declines in vehicle production volumes,
both in North America and Europe.

OTHER AUTOMOTIVE

In North America, the increase in Decoma’s dollar content per
vehicle relates primarily to the additional sales recorded due to
the full consolidation of the Conix Group, which was acquired
in October 2000. The increase in content was also driven by the
acquisition of Autosystems in September 2001, strong volumes
for the DaimlerChrysler PT44 (PT Cruiser), the launch of the
General Motors GMT 805 (Avalanche) program, the recent




launch of other new programs, including the Ford U152
(Explorer) program, and a full year’s product:lon on programs
that launched during 2000, including the DaimlerChrysler RS
{minivan) and JR (Cirrus, Stratus and Sebring) programs.
These increases were partially offset by lower volumes on other
long-running high content programs including the
DaimlerChrysler LH (Concorde, Intrepid, 300M and LHS)
program and a reduction in reported U.S. dollar sales due to
the weakening of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar.

In Europe, the increase in Decoma’s dollar content per vehicle
reflects the acquisition of the remaining 49% interest in the
Conix Group, additional sales generated from the ramp-up of
the Ford Mondeo program and the start of production on the
Jaguar X400 program. These increases were partially offset by a
reduction in reported U.S. dollar sales due to the weakening of
the Euro and British Pound, each against the U.S. dollar.

Operating Income

Decoma’s operating income increased $24 million or 26% to
$118 million for 2001. This increase was the result of the addition
of the 49% portion of the Conix Group’s operating income,
significant improvements at Decoma’s Mexican operations,
contributions from recent new program launches in North
America and Europe, and improved performance at a new
exterior trim facility that experienced significant start-up
difficulties in 2000. These improvements were partially offset
by operating losses of $23 million at Decoma’s Merplas facility
in the United Kingdom, OEM price concessions effective
January 1, 2001, lower vehicle production volumes including
lower volumes on the high content DaimlerChrysler LH program
and operating inefficiencies at a facility in Belgium.

Intier Automotive Inc.

Sales

Intier’s sales increased $297 million or 10% to $3,268 million
for 2001. The increase in sales reflects increases in Intier’s average
dollar content per vehicle in both North America and Europe
partially offset by declines in vehicle production volumes, both
in North America and Europe.

In North America, the increase in Intier’s dollar content per .
vehicle relates primarily to a full year’s production on programs
that launched during 2000, including the DaimlerChrysler RS
(minivan) and the Ford U204 (Ford Escape and Mazda Tribute)
programs, and the recent launch of other new programs,
including the DaimlerChrysler DR (Dodge Ram Pickup),

the GMT 315 (Saturn VUE) and the GMX 320 (Cadillac CTS)
programs. These increases were partially offset by a reduction
in reported U.S. dollar sales due to the weakening of the
Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar.

In Europe, the increase in Intier’s dollar content per vehicle
reflects additional sales generated from the ramp-up of the Opel
Vivaro/Renault Trafic and Ford Transit programs and the start
of production on the BMW Mini program. These increases
were partially offset by a reduction in reported U.S. dollar sales
due to the weakening of the Euro and British Pound, each
against the U.S. dollar.

Operating Income

Intier’s operating income increased $14 million or 21% to

$81 million for 2001. This increase was a result of significant
improvements at certain of Intier’s operations, in both North
America and Europe and contributions from recent new program
launches in North America and Europe, including the Ford
U204, DaimlerChrysler RS and BMW Mini programs.

These improvements were partially offset by higher engineering
costs associated with new programs, lower production volumes
in North America and Europe, an increase in fees paid to Magna,
and other public company costs that were not incurred during
2000.

Tesma International Inc.
Sales

Tesma’s sales increased $6 million or 1% to $791 million for
2001. This increase in sales reflects a $14 million increase in
tooling sales offset by an $8 million decrease in production
sales. The increase in tooling sales reflects Tesma’s ongoing
involvement in new customer programs and product launches
and the continued expansion of its product offerings.

The decrease in production sales was the result of an 11% decline
in North American production volumes and the modest 2%
decline in European production volumes. Partially offsetting
the production volume declines was an increase in Tesma’s
average dollar content per vehicle in North America. Tesma’s
European dollar content per vehicle was substantially
unchanged.

In North America, the increase in Tesma’s dollar content per
vehicle relates primarily to the recent launch of new programs,
including the General Motors Vortec 4200 engine (SUV Family)
and GM L850 and Line 6 engine, and Ford’s V8 engine programs.
Also increasing content per vehicle in North America was the
ramp-up of the Allison LCT transmission program, the ramp-up
of a number of water management programs, the GM 1-2
accumulator cover business, new content on General Motors’
4L60E transmission, and increased volumes on certain tensioner
and alternator decoupler programs. These increases were
partially offset by a reduction in reported U.S. dollar sales due
to the weakening of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar.

Operating Income

Tesma’s operating incone decreased $20 million or 21% to
$74 million for 2001. This decrease was a result of the substantial
decline in North American production volumes, high operating
costs at facilities which are launching several new programs,
increased engineering and development activities at Tesma’s
European fuel divisions in preparation of new fuel tank and
filler pipe programs, customer pricing concessions, increased
depreciation and amortization expense, higher interest costs,
increased fees paid to Magna, and costs associated with the
proposed merger of Tesma and Magna Steyr. These decreases
were partially offset by contributions from new programs,
including those described above and improved operating
efficiencies at certain facilities.

35




36

Magna Steyr
Sales

Magna Steyr’s sales increased $152 million or 11% to

$1,510 mitlion for 2001. The increase in sales reflects increases
in Magna Steyr’s average dollar content per vehicle in both
North America and Europe.

During 2001, Magna Steyr commenced operations in North
America, growing total sales to $359 million. This increase in
sales relates primarily to the ramp-up of the General Motors
GMT 250 (Aztek) and GMT 257 (Rendezvous) programs at
Magna Steyr’s powertrain facilities in the United States and
Mexico.

In Europe, Magna Steyr currently assembles the Mercedes E-Class
4AMATIC (“4MATIC”), the Mercedes G-Class (“G-Class™),

the Mercedes M-Class (“M-Class”) and the Chrysler Jeep
Grand Cherokee (“Jeep”) vehicles. Magna Steyr’s vehicle
assembly volumes for 2001 and 2000 were as follows:

2001 2000 Change

AMATIC 17,972 17,869 +1%
G-Class 6,020 4,470 +35%
M-Class 24,462 26,327 -7%
Jeep 24,931 37,007 -33%
73,385 85,673 -14%

Assembly sales increased $92 million in 2001 despite the negative
impact of a reduction in the number of vehicles assembled by
Magna Steyr during 2001. The increase in assembly sales reflects
higher volumes in 2001 over 2000 on 4MATIC and G-Class
vehicles, both of which are accounted for on a full-cost basis
(see below), offset in part by reduced sales that resulted from
the decline in volume during 2001 on M-Class and Jeep vehicles,
both of which are accounted for on a value-added basis

(see below). Also reducing assembly sales was a reduction in
reported U.S. dollar sales due to the weakening of the Buro
against the U.S. dollar.

The terms of Magna Steyr’s various vehicle assembly contracts
differ with respect to the ownership of components and supplies
related to the assembly process and the method of determining
the selling price to the OEM customer. Under certain contracts,
Magna Steyr is acting as principal, and purchased components
and systems in assembled vehicles are included in its inventory
and cost of sales. These costs are reflected on a full-cost basis in
the selling price of the final assembled vehicle to the OEM
customer. Contracts to assemble 4MATIC and G-Class vehicles
are accounted for in this manner. Other contracts provide that
third party components and systems are held on consignment
by Magna Steyr, and the selling price to the OEM customer
reflects a value-added assembly fee only. Contracts to assemble
M-Class and Jeep vehicles are accounted for in this manner.

Production levels of the various vehicles assembled by Magna
Steyr have an impact on the level of its sales and profitability.
In addition, the relative proportion of programs accounted for
on a full-cost basis and programs accounted for on a value-added
basis also impact Magna Steyr’s levels of sales and operating
margin percentage, but may not necessarily affect its overall
level of profitability.

Assuming no change in total vehicles assembled, a relative
increase in the assembly of vehicles accounted for on a full-cost
basis has the effect of increasing the level of total sales and,
because purchased components are included in cost of sales,
profitability as a percentage of total sales is negatively impacted.
Conversely, a relative increase in the assembly of vehicles
accounted for on a value-added basis has the effect of reducing
the level of total sales and increasing profitability as a percentage
of total sales.

In addition to higher sales at its assembly operations, sales at
Magna Steyr’s European powertrain operations also improved,
increasing $28 million to $293 million for 2001. The increase
relates primarily to the ramp-up of the General Motors GMT 250
and GMT 257 programs partially offset by a decrease in tooling
sales, reflecting the substantial completion of the General Motors
GMT 250 and GMT 257 tooling programs during 2000 and a
reduction in reported U.S. dollar sales due to the weakening of
the Euro against the U.S. dollar.

Operating Income

Magna Steyr’s operating income decreased $10 million or 24%
to $31 million for 2001. Operating income was negatively
impacted by start-up costs incurred in connection with the
development contract with BMW, relocation costs associated
with the new powertrain production facilities in Austria,
increased fees and interest paid to Magna’s corporate office,
and a decrease in reported U.S. dollar operating income due to
the weakening of the Euro against the U.S. dollar.

Metals and Other Automotive Operations
Sales

Magna’s Metals and Other Automotive Operations sales decreased
$314 million or 9% to $3,165 million for 2001. The decrease in
total automotive sales reflects lower tooling sales in 2001 and
declines in vehicle production volumes, in both North America
and Europe, partially offset by an increase in average dollar
content per vehicle in North America.

In North America, the increase in dollar content per vehicle

relates primarily to a full year’s production on programs that
launched during 2000, including certain models for the
General Motors GMT 800 (full size trucks and sport utilities)
program and the Ford U204 (Ford Escape and Mazda Tribute)
program. These improvements were partially offset by the
negative impact of the North American Dispositions, lower
volumes on other long-running high content programs including
the DaimlerChrysler LH {Concorde, Intrepid, 300M and LHS)
program and a reduction in reported U.S. dollar sales due to
the weakening of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar.

In Europe, average dollar content per vehicle was substantially
unchanged.

Also reducing the Metals and Other Automotive Operations
sales was a decrease in tooling sales. The lower tooling sales
reflect the substantial completion of the General Motors
GMT 800 and Ford U204 tooling programs during 2000.




Operating Income

Magna’s Metals and Other Automotive Operations operating
income increased $55 million or 18% to $365 million for 2001.
This increase was the result of contributions from program
launches in North America including the Ford U204 and the
General Motors GMT 800 programs, lower interest and fees paid
to Magna’s corporate office and improved performance at certain
facilities in North America and Europe. These improvements
were partially offset by lower vehicle production volumes,
including lower volumes on the high content DaimlerChrysler
LH program, start-up costs incurred in connection with the
new DaimlerChrysler HB (Durango) program, OEM price
concessions and operating inefficiencies at certain
underperforming divisions in North America and Europe.

Corporate and Other

Corporate and other operating income of $180 million for 2001
decreased $23 million from 2000. The decrease in operating
income was primarily due to a decrease in interest income, an
$11 million long-service payment made to the former President
and Chief Executive Officer and increased incentive based
compensation as a result of higher earnings. Partially offsetting
these decreases in operating income were increased affiliation
and other fees.

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY
AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flow from Operations

2001 2000 Change

Net income $ 580 $ 598

[tems not involving current cash flows 443 393
$1,023 $ 991 +3%
Changes in non-cash working capital 6 (336)

Cash provided from operating activities $1,029 $ 655  +57%

During 2001, cash flow from operations before changes in
non-cash working capital increased $32 million over 2000 to
$1,023 million. The increase was attributable to an increase in
other non-cash items of $50 million representing increased
depreciation and amortization, minority interest expense and
other non-cash charges, partially offset by net dilution gains
and a decrease in net income of $18 million. Cash generated
from non-cash working capital during 2001 amounted to

$6 million. Overall cash flow from operations for 2001 was
$1,029 million, representing an increase of $374 million or
57% over 2000.

Capital and Investment Spending

2001 2000 Change

Fixed assets, investiments

and other additions $(571) $(681)
Purchases of subsidiaries (40) (68)
Proceeds from disposals 97 346
$ (514) $(403) -28%

Cash used in investing activities

The Company invested $525 million in fixed assets and

$46 million in investments and other assets during 2001.

Of the total fixed asset spending, $486 million was related to
the Company’s automotive operations. Investment and other
asset spending includes a $24 million increase in long-term
design and engineering receivables at Magna Steyr and other
capitalized amounts totalling $22 million.

Purchases of subsidiaries in 2001 reflects MEC’s acquisition of
the Ladbroke Companies for cash consideration of $21 million
and its acquisition of Multnomah Greyhound Park for cash
consideration of $4 million. Also included in 2001 purchases of
subsidiaries is Decoma’s acquisition of the lighting components
manufacturing business and related fixed and working capital
assets of Autosystems. Total consideration paid in connection
with the acquisition amounted to $12 million. Purchases of
subsidiaries in 2000 reflects Decoma’s acquisition of the remaining
49% interest in the Conix Group for $43 million (the total
purchase price, net of cash acquired, was $133 million, however,
the issuance by Decoma of $90 million 9.5% subordinated
debentures to the vendor represents a non-cash item and has
been excluded from the statement of cash flows) and MEC’s
acquisition of Bay Meadows for $24 million.

For 2001, proceeds from disposals were $97 million, reflecting
proceeds on disposal of MEC real estate and proceeds from
normal course fixed and other asset dispositions. For 2000,
proceeds from asset disposals include proceeds on Magna’s sale
of Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of Tesma, proceeds from
the North American Dispositions, MEC real estate and proceeds
from normal course fixed and other asset dispositions.

Financing
2001 2000 Change

Net issue of debt $(43) $(80)
Redemption of 5% Convertible

Subordinated Debentures (121) —
Redemption of Subordinated Debentures

by subsidiary (90) —
Repayments of debentures’

interest obligations (33) (33)
Preferred Securities distributions (28) (26)
Issues of Class A Subordinate Voting Shares 27 -
Issues of shares by subsidiaries 184 4
Surrender of subsidiary stock options - (2)
Dividends paid to minority interests (9) (6)
Dividends (109) (97)

Cash used in financing activities $(222)  $(240) +8%

In August 2001, the Company called for redemption of the 5%
Convertible Subordinated Debentures effective September 18,
2001. Prior to September 18, 2001, an aggregate $224 million
principal amount of such debentures was converted into

4.2 million Class A Subordinate Voting Shares. The balance of
$121 million principal amount that remained outstanding was
redeemed in cash.
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The issues of shares by subsidiaries is comprised primarily of
the Decoma public offering in June 2001 and the Intier initial
public offering in August 2001. In June 2001, Decoma issued
Class A Subordinate Voting Shares for aggregate cash
consideration, net of share issue expenses, of $111 million;

and in August 2001, Intier completed an initial public offering
by issuing Class A Subordinate Voting Shares for aggregate cash
consideration, net of share issue expenses, of $72 million.

Dividends
2001 2000 Change
Dividends paid per Class A Subordinate
Voting and Class B Share $1.36 $1.24  +10%

Dividends paid during 2001 were $1.36 per Class A Subordinate
Voting and Class B Share, totalling $109 million. This represents
a 10% increase over 2000. These payments relate to dividends
declared in respect of the three-month periods ended September
30, June 30, and March 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000.

Financing Resources

Magna’s wholly owned operations had cash of $631 million at
December 31, 2001. Magna’s wholly owned operations also had
unused and available operating and term credit facilities of
$190 million. The Company’s non-wholly owned operations
had cash of $259 million and unused and available operating
and term credit facilities of $588 million at December 31, 2001.

In addition to the above unused and available financing resources,
the Company sponsors a tooling finance program for tooling
suppliers to finance tooling under construction for the Company.
The maximum facility amount is $100 million. As at December 31,
2001, $17 million had been advanced to tooling suppliers under
this facility. This amount is included in accounts payable on
the Company’s December 31, 2001 consolidated balance sheet.

Off Balance Sheet Financing

The Company’s off balance sheet financing arrangements are
limited to operating lease contracts.

A number of the Company’s facilities are subject to operating
leases. Total operating lease payments for these facilities totalled
$31 million for 2001, and are expected to total $31 million in
2002.

Most of the Company’s existing manufacturing facilities can be
adapted to a variety of manufacturing processes without
significant capital expenditures, other than for new equipment.

The Company also has operating lease commitments for
equipment. These leases are generally of shorter duration.
Operating lease payments for equipment totalled $22 million
for 2001, and are expected to total $23 million in 2002.

Although the Company’s consolidated contractual annual lease
commitments decline year by year, existing leases will either be
renewed or replaced resulting in lease commitments being
sustained at current levels, or the Company will incur capital
expenditures to acquire equivalent capacity.

Foreign Currency Activities

Magna’s North Ainerican operations negotiate sales contracts
with North American OEMs for payment in both U.S. and
Canadian dollars. Materials and equipment are purchased in
various currencies depending upon competitive factors, including
relative currency values. The North American operations use
labour and materials, which are paid for in both U.S. and
Canadian dollars.

Magna’s European operations negotiate sales contracts with
European OEMs for payment principally in Euros and the
British Pound. The European operations’ material, equipment
and labour are paid for principally in Buros and the British
Pound.

Magna employs hedging programs, primarily through the use
of foreign exchange forward contracts, in an effort to manage
the foreign exchange exposure, which arises when manufacturing
facilities have committed to the delivery of products for which
the selling price has been quoted in foreign currencies.

These commitments represent contractual obligations by Magna
to deliver products over the duration of the product programs,
which can last for a number of years. The amount and timing
of the forward contracts will be dependent upon a number of
factors, including anticipated production delivery schedules
and anticipated production costs, which may be paid in the
foreign currency. Despite these measures, significant long-term
fluctuations in relative currency values, in particular a significant
change in the relative values of the U.S. dollar, Canadian dollar,
Euro, or the British Pound, could affect Magna’s results of
operations.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2000, the CICA issued new accounting
recommendations for the presentation and disclosure of basic
and diluted earnings per share. Effective January 1, 2001,

the Company adopted these new recommendations on a
retroactive basis. The most significant change under the new {
recommendations is the use of the “treasury stock method”
instead of the “imputed earnings approach” in computing
diluted earnings per share. Under the treasury stock method:

+  exercise of options are assumed at the beginning of the
period (or at the time of issuance, if later);

= the proceeds from exercise are assumed to be used to
purchase common shares at the average market price during
the period; and

« the incremental shares (the difference between the number
of shares assumed issued and the number of shares assumed
purchased) are included in the denominator of the diluted
earnings per share computation.

The retroactive impact of adopting the new recommendations
on the year ended December 31, 2000 was to increase diluted
earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share by
$0.10 and to reduce the average number of diluted Class A
Subordinate Voting and Class B Shares outstanding by 1.8 million.




In August 2001, the CICA issued Handbook Section 1581,
“Business Combinations” (“CICA 1581”) and Handbook
Section 3062, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“CICA
3062”). CICA 1581 requires that all business combinations
initiated after June 30, 2001 be accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting. In addition, CICA 1581 provides new
criteria to determine when an acquired intangible asset should
be recognized separately from goodwill.

CICA 3062 requires the application of the non-amortization
and impairment rules for existing goodwill and intangible
assets, which meet the criteria for indefinite life, beginning
with fiscal years starting after December 15, 2001. In all cases,
the standard must be adopted at the beginning of a fiscal year.

During 2001, the Company reported goodwill amortization of
$24 million (including $8 million at MEC in respect of indefinite
life intangibles). Commencing January 1, 2002, the Company
will cease recording goodwill and indefinite life intangibles
amortization. Goodwill and indefinite life intangibles will be
measured for impairment on an annual basis. Under CICA 3062,
an initial measurement for goodwill impairment must be
completed by June 30, 2002. In addition, under CICA 3062, a
transitional measurement for indefinite life intangibles
(recorded at MEC) must be completed by March 31, 2002.

In December 2001, the CICA amended Handbook Section
1650 “Foreign Currency Translation” (“CICA 16507). The most
significant change under the new recommendations is to eliminate
the deferral and amortization method for unrealized translation
gains and losses on non-current monetary assets and liabilities.
The amendments to CICA 1650 are effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after January 1, 2002. If the amendments to
CICA 1650 described above had been adopted on January 1, 2001,
automotive operating income and net income would have
decreased by $3 million and $2 million, respectively.

In November 2001, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3870,
“Stock Based Compensation and Other Stock Based Payments”
(“CICA 3870”). CICA 3870 requires that certain types of
stock-based compensation arrangements be accounted for at
fair value after January 1, 2002 giving rise to compensation
expense.

Although the Company is currently reviewing the new CICA
pronouncements, the impact, in addition to those described
above, of these pronouncements on its consolidated financial
statements has not been determined.

CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, the Company may be contingently liable for
litigation and other claims. Refer to note 22 of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This MD&A contains “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of Section 21E of the United States Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statements may
include financial and other projections, as well as statements
regarding (a) Magna’s future plans or objectives, (b) Magna’s
future economic performance, or (¢) the assumptions underlying

g

any of the foregoing. Words such as “may”, “would”, “could”,

» o« » »

“will”, “likely”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “intend”, “plan”,
“forecast”, “project” and “estimate”, are used to identify
forward-looking statements. Any such forward-looking statements
are based on assumptions and analyses made by Magna in light
of its experience and its perception of historical trends, current
conditions and expected future developments, as well as other
factors Magna believes are appropriate in the circumstances.
However, whether actual results and developments will conform
with Magna’s expectations and predictions is subject to a number
of risks and uncertainties. These risks, assumptions and
uncertainties include, but are not limited to, global economic
conditions, price reduction pressures, pressure to absorb certain
fixed costs, increased product warranty and product liability
risk, dependence on outsourcing by automobile manufacturers,
rapid technological and regulatory changes, unstable energy
prices, dependence on certain vehicle product lines, fluctuations
in relative currency values, unionization activity, threat of work
stoppages, the competitive nature of the auto parts supply market,
delays in launching new programs, delays in constructing new
facilities, changes in governmental regulations and the impact

of environmental regulations. In evaluating any forward-looking:

statements, readers of this MD&A should specifically consider
the various factors which could cause actual events or results to
differ materially from those indicated by such forward-looking
statements.
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AUDITORS” REPORT

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

To the Sharcholders of
Magna International Inc.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Magna
International Inc. as at December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the
consolidated statements of income, retained earnings and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards and United States generally accepted
auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and
perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2001 in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

W o ?6&1977 ALP
Ernst & Young LLP
Chartered Accountants

Toronto, Canada,
February 11, 2002.

Magna’s management is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements and all the
information in this Annual Report. The consolidated financial
staternents were prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Where alternative accounting methods exist, management has
selected those it considered to be most appropriate in the
circumstances. Financial statements include certain amounts
based on estimates and judgements. Management has determined
such amounts on a reasonable basis designed to ensure that the
consolidated financial statements are presented fairly, in all
material respects. Financial information presented elsewhere in
this Annual Report has been prepared by management to
ensure consistency with that in the consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board
of Directors of Magna.

Management is responsible for the development and maintenance
of systems of internal accounting and administrative cost controls
of high quality, consistent with reasonable cost. Such systems
are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
information is accurate, relevant and reliable and that the
Company’s assets are appropriately accounted for and
adequately safeguarded.

The Company’s Audit Committee is appointed by its Board of
Directors annually and is comprised solely of outside directors.
The Committee meets pertodically with management, as well
as with the independent auditors, to satisfy itself that each is
properly discharging its responsibilities, to review the
consolidated financial statements and the independent auditors’
report and to discuss significant financial reporting issues and
auditing matters. The Audit Committee reports its findings to
the Board of Directors for consideration when approving the
consolidated financial statements for issuance to the shareholders.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Ernst & Young LLP, the independent auditors, in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and
United States generally accepted auditing standards on behalf
of the shareholders. The Auditors’ Report outlines the nature of
their examination and their opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company. The independent auditors have

full and unrestricted access to the Audit Committee.

Vincent J. Galifi
Executive Vice-President, Finance
& Chief Financial Officer

Toronto, Canada,
February 11, 2002.




- The consolidated financial statements have been prepared -
in US. dollars following Canadian generally-accepted accounting
prmc1ples [“Canadlan GAAP”], which are in conformity, in all
* ‘material respects, with United States generally accepted accounting
prmcrples [*U.S: GAAP ]; except as descrlbed in note 24 to ‘the
consohdated financial statements -

The consohdated ﬁnancml statements include the accounts
" oof Magna Intérnational Inc. and its subsidiaries [collectively

) Magna or the-“Company” 1 some-of which have a minority

. interest. The Company accounts for its interests in jointly

) controlled entities-using the proportionate consolidation method.

functronal currency other than the U.S.'dollar.are translated.into:
US- dollars -using the-exchange rate in effect at the year énd and "
- 1evenues and- -expenses are translated at theé averdge rate: ‘during

- ‘net equity investment in these operatrons are: deferred as a separate '
S component of shareholdels equity. - Do e
s The appropuate amounts of - exchange gains.or losses )
accumulated in'the separate ¢component-of’ shareholders equity’.

gains ¢ “and 10sses.*

' “Forergn exchange gdins and losses on tr ansactxons oceurrmg
" in a;currency other than'an operation’s functional cyrrency are

currencres “Gains and losses on'these confracts are accounted for,
as a component of the related hedged transaction. Gains and losses

- 'ar'e deferted and amortized over the period to matarity. -

: deposrts and shorttertn investments with remarmng maturmes
" of. less than three months at, acqursmon

ﬂvalue wrth cost being determined substantrally on a first-in, .
first-out basis. Cost includss the cost. of materials plus dlrect
labour applied to the product and the apphcable share of

. manufacturma overhead

“The Company accounts for its investments in which it has

interest, bearmg marketable securities intended to be held to
.maturity and are recorded at amortized cost.

_Fixed assets are recorded at historical cost which includes
acquisition and development costs, Development costs include
direct construction costs, interest capitalized on construction in
progress and land under development and indirect costs wholly
attributable to development.

Al srgmﬁcant lntercompany balances and transactions have been. -

Assets and llablhtles of the Company s operat1ons h'lvmg a

; -the'year. Exchanoe gains ‘or losses on translation of the Companys"

are reﬂected~1n inconie when there is a reduction in the Company’s ::
. netinvestriient i the operatlons that gave rise’ to such exchange S

refleéted in income except for gains and losses on fqrergn ‘exchange
: contracts used to Hedge specific future commitments in foreign .= -~

on translation of forelgn currency long-term monetary liabilities -, .

-Cash,and cash equivalents include cash on account, demand’

Inventorres are valued at the lower of cost and net. reahzableg‘)

significant influence on the equity basis. Investments also include. . .

Deprecxauon is provrded ona strarght -line b"lSiS over the

"estimated useful lives of fixed assets at annual rates of 2.1/29% to

5% for buildings, 7% to 10% for general purpose equrpment and
10% to 30% for special purpose equipment.
_Costs ihcurred in.establishing new facilities WlllCl’l requrre

_substantral time to reach commercxal productlon capabrhty are
_‘expensed as incurred.

‘Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of the

‘Company’s interest in subsidiary companies over the fair value of
“‘the'underlying net ideritifiable assets arising on acquisitions.
‘. .Goodwill is generally amortized over 20 years-and in-all cases - -.
“amortization does not exceed 40 years: The Company reviews the,
:‘valuatron and amortization per1ods of goodwill whenever. events :

or changes m- Clrcumstances warrant-such a review. In domg 80,

«~the: Company*evaluates whether thére-has been a permanent

impairment in the value of unamortized goodwrll based on the .

7 . estlmated undrscounted cash ﬂows of each busmess t6 which the
"coodwﬂl relates. -

- Other 1ssets mclude racmg hcenses Racmg llcenses are -

~ “recorded at cost less'accumulated 1mort1zat10n Amoxtxzatxon is
: provrded ona strarght line basis over 20 years.

“Other assets also'incliade long-term recéivables. The lonc term

.- réceivables represent the recognized sales value of design and -
' ehgineering services provided to customers under certain long-term
" contracts. The receivables will be paid in fixed amcunts per vehicle ; .

forecasted to be assemb_led over the periQd from 2003 to 2010,

. 'Inithe event that actual.assembly volumes are less than those -

L ‘forecasted a reimbursement for any shortfall will be made annually.

"I The fixed receivable amount per vehicle will include an interest’
” component for extended payment terms that will be’ accrued

over time between the beginning of the productlon penod and

: the collect1on date.

i.The cest of pr‘oviding benefits 'through deﬁned beneﬁt

“pensions, lump sum termination’and long service payment
.arrangements, and post- retxrement beneﬁts other than pensions -
is'actuarially determined and’ recogmzed in income using thé

- projected benefit method. prorated on service and management s

best estimate of expected plan investment perfornnnce, salary;

' escalatlon and retirement ages of.- employees Differences arising
. ‘from planamendritents, changes iri assumptions and“experlence

gains and losses are recognized in income over thé expected average

’remammg service life of employees, Plan assets are valued at fair
Value The cost of providing benefits' through defined ‘contribution

pension plans is charged fo income in the period in respect of

- which contrrbutlons become payable

The Company’s subordinated debentures are recorded in
part as debt. and in part as shareholders equity.

The debt component consists of the present value of the
future interest payments on the subordinated debentures to,

" maturity and is presented as debentures’ interest obligation.:

Interest on the debt component is accrued over tlme and
recognized as a charge against income. :

The equity component includes the present value of the
principal amount of the subordinated debentures which can be
satisfied by issuing Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of the
Company at the option of the Company. This amount will be
accreted to the face value of the subordinated debentures over
the term to maturity through periodic charges, net of i income
taxes, to retained earnings.
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. Inaddition, in the case of the convertible subordinated
debentures, the equity component also includes the value of the

info Class A Subordinate Voting Shares of the Company. .
The holders’ conversion optrons are valued using a resrdual value .
approach

- Each of the above equity components are rncluded in- other
paid-in capital in shareholders’ equity except for the equity .

~:¥ component of subordinated debentures issued by the Company’s

. subsidiaries. The equity component of subsidiary subordinated
debentures is included in mmority interest.

- Préferred Securities are included in shareholders’ equity and
‘ﬁnancmg charges, net-of income taxes, on the' Preferred: Securrtres
. are accrued over time and charged drrectly to retained earmngs

Revenue from the sale of manufactured products is recogmzed
o whiri-the price is fixed-or determmable, collectrbllrty is reasonably -
" assured and: upon shlpment to! [or receipt! by customers dependmg
- .on contractual terms] and. acceptance by, customers :

e Reventies ﬂom separately priced engineering service and

. ‘tooling contracts are recognized on a percentage of completidn

“basis. In addition; revenues are recognized on a percentage of

" .completion basis in respect of desrgn and engineering services

* provided'to customers under certain long-term contracts where

. tafixéd amount per vehicle assembled is paid over a predefined
o '.perrod [$ee’ Other assets” under. “Signiﬁcan't Accounting Policies”].

‘Révenue ‘and cost of sales are presented on.a gross basisin ..

; the consolidated statements of income when the Company is actrng

-..as prmcrpal and is subjectto significant risks and reéwards of the
,‘busmess ‘Otherwise, components of revenues and related costs

.are presented on a net basrs

Costs 1ncurred [net of .customer subsrdresl related to desrgn

: iand engineering, which are reimbursed as part of subsequent ~

" related parts production piecé price amounts, are expensedas

inéurred unléss a contractual guarantee for reimbursérienit exists.
. Costs incurred [net of customeér subsidies] related to° desrgn

'and development costs for moulds, dies and other tools that the

" -as part of the piece price:amount for, subsequent related parts
L productlon] are expensed as incurred unless the supply agreement
; 'provrdes a contractual guarantee for reimbursement or the -

" non-cancelable rrght to use the. moulds, dles and other tools durmg
_the supply agreement )

The Company makes periodic appllcatrons for financial

various jurisdictions in which the Company operates. Grants relating
- 1o capital expenditures are reflected as a reduction of the cost of the
related assets. Grants and tax credits relating to current operating
-expenditures are generally recorded as‘a reduction of expense at
the time the eligible expenses are incurred. In the case of certain
foreign subsidiaries, the Company receives tax super allowances,
which are accounted for as a reduction of income tax expense.
The Company also receives loans which are recorded as liabilities
- in amounts equal to the cash received.

holders’ option to convert the convertible subordinated debentures’

if'Company does not own [and that-will be used in, and reimbursed -

assistance under available governmént assistande programs in the. .

The Company carries on various applied research and
development programs, certain of which are partially or fully
funded by.governments or by customers of the Company.
Funding received is accounted for using the cost reduction approach.’
Research costs are expensed.as incurred and development costs

. which meet certain criteria where future benefit is reasonably
. _certam are deferred to the extent of therr estrmated recovery

~The Company uses the liability method of tax allocation for

* accounting for income taxes. Under the liability method of tax

allocation, future tax assets and liabilities are determined based
on'différences betweeri the financial reporting and tax bases of

~assets and liabilities and are: ‘measured using the substantlvely
‘enacted tax rates and laws that w1_ll be in effect when the dlfferences
"are expected to reverse. i

No compensatron expense i3 recognrzed for stock optrons .
" granted under thé'Company’s Incentive Stock Option Plan. .

" Consideration’ pald on the exercrse of stock options is credrted to

capital stock S

_Basic earnings per Class A Subérdinate Voting or Class B

"Share-are calculated on net income less financing chargeson
-Preférred Securities and other paid-in capital, and the foreign‘
‘éxchange loss on the redemptron of the 5% ‘Convertible.
.‘Subordinated Debentures [see riote 6] using the werghted average

- number of Class A Subordmate Voting and Class B Shares
'outstandmg during the year.

Fully diluted earnings-per Class A Subordlnate Votmg or

o Class B Share are calculated on the werghted average nimber of .

Class .A Subordinate Voting and Class® B ‘Shares that wotld have been -

~0utstand1n0 during the year had all the convertlble subordinated -
. debentures been-exercised or converted into Class A Subordmate

Voting Shares at the beglnnmg of the year,’or datelof i issuance, if
later. In addition, the werghted average number of Class-A

‘Subordrnate Votmg and’Class B Shares used to determme dlluted
_earnings per share includes an adjustment for stock optidns
- outstanding usmg ‘the treasury stock method Under the treasury

stock method
the exercrse of optrons is’ assumed to be at’ the begmnmg of
-the- perlod [or at the time of i issuance, 1flater} .
s the proceeds from the exercise of options'are assumed to be
used'to putchase Class A Subordinate Voting Shares at’ the

'. " average markét pricé during the period; and
_+_ the incrémentsl number of Class A Subordinate Vonng Shares.

[the’ chfference betvween thé number of shares assumed issued
. and ‘the number of shares asstimed purchased] are included in
the denominator of the diluted earnings per share computation.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements.in
conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates that affect the amounts
reported and disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.




Years ended December 31,
Note 2001 2000 1999
[restated - note 2]

Sales
Automotive ) $10,507 $10,099 $9,260° .
Magna Entertainment Corp. o o 519 . 414 ©a87. o
o ' 11,026 . 10,513 9447 L. .d
Automotive costs and expenses k
Cost of goods sold 8,588 8,264 7,659
Depreciation and amortization : 399 372 332
Selling, general and administrative 685 : 655 607
Interest expense, net ) - 14 2 13 6 7
Equity income ‘ - . B (16) o (14) an -
Magna Entertainment Corp. costs and expenses ] o 496 412 - - 183 T
Operating income - automotive s : : ) . s 849 809 - 663
Operating income — Magna Entertainment Corp. - L - 23 - L2 4
Operating income ) . : N ' : 872 811" . 667
- ‘Other income - ) . 3 46 161 - R
Income before income taxes and minority interest E . 918 . 972 667 }»
Income taxes ‘ 12 290 348 229
Minority interest - , ' 48 26 19
Net income for the year L $ 580  $ 598 $ 419
* Earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting-or Class B Share . - 4 - ) ; i
. Basic ; ‘ IR ) $ 657 $ 706 - $494 7!
" Diluted _ - ‘ ’ - 2 $_6.20 $ 644 $465 7|
Cash dividends paid per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share . $ 1.36 $ 1.24 $ 1.11
Average number of Class A Subordinate Voting and .
Class B Shares outstanding during,thé year {in millions]: 4 ]
Basic - , ' 80.1 78.5 78.5

Diluted ‘ 2 91.4 91.5 91.1

See accompanying notes

Years ended December 31,

Note 2001 2000 . . 1999 . oo

Retained earnings, beginning of year $ 1,789 $ 1,446 $1,128 !
Net income for the year. e 580 598 419
Financing chaiges on Preferred Securities and other paid-in capital - (44) (45) (31)
Dividends on Class A Subordinate Voting and Class B Shares 5 (109) (209) (70)
Foreign exchange loss on the redemption of the N ‘

5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures 6 (10) - -
‘Distribution on transfer of business to subsidiary 7 14 - -
Surrender of subsidiary stock options - (1) —
Retained earnings, end of year $ 2,220 $ 1,789 $1,446

See accompanying notes
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Note 2001 2000 1999
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year $ 580 $ 598 $ 419
[tems not involving current cash flows 8 443 393 373
1,023 991 792
Changes in non-cash working capital 8 6 (336) (79)
Cash provided from operating activities 1,029 655 713
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES ]
Fixed asset additions (525) (653) (859) ..
Purchase of subsidiaries 9 (40) (68) - (211) -
Increase in investments and other ’ (46) (28) (26) .
" Proceeds fronm disposition of investments and other 3 97 346 146 -
1 - Cash used for investment activities (514) o (403) -
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issues of debt 14 34 67 217
Issues of shares by subsidiaries 3 184 4 1
Repayments of debt 14 77) (147) (73) ‘
Redemption of 5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures 6 (121) - -
Redemption of Subordinated Debentures by subsidiary 3, 9 (90) .= -
‘Repayments of debentures’ interest 6bligat~ion ] 15 (33) (33) ~(30)_
Preferred Securities distributions 15 (28) (26) (3)
Surrender of subsidiary stock options - (2) -
Issues of Preferred Securities 15 - - 274
Issues of subordinated debentures 15 - - 104
Issues of Class A Subordinate Voting Shares 17 27 - -
Dividends paid to mihority interests ' (€)) (6)
Dividends ’ (109) (97) (87)
Cash provided from (used for) financing activities (222) (240) 400
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash équivalents (23) (24) - (15)
Net increase (decrease) in-cash and cash equivalents during the year 270 (12) 148
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year : 620 632 484
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 890 $ 620 $. 632
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As at December 31,

Note 2001 2000
ASSETS
Current assets - -
Cash and cash equivalents $ 890 $ 620
Accounts receivable 1,752 1,684
' . Inventories - 10 842 767
Prepaid expenses and other 74 66
3,558 3,137
Investments 116,21 88 . 86
Fixed assets, net 11 3,595 v 3,589
Goodwill, net 9 259 295
Future tax assets 127 114 . 96
. Other assets 13 292 205
' o $ 7,906 $_7.408 -
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities . P
Bank indebtedness 14 $ 308 $ 338
Accounts payable 21 1,451 1,314
Accrued salaries and wages 228 215
Other accrued liabilities 158 ‘119
Income taxes payable 12 62 51
Long-term debt due within one year 14 54 : B 46
, 2,261 - 2,083
Long-term debt 14 244 268
Debentures’ interest obligation 15 114 ‘ 191
Other long-term liabilities 16 85 ) 84
Future tax liabilities 12 276 224
Minority interest 9,15 441 356
) 3,421 : 3,206
Shareholders' equity
Capital stock 17
Class A Subordinate Voting Shares

[issued: 2001 ~ 82,244,518; 2000 — 77,467,153] 1,682 : 1,442

Class B Shares k
i [convertible into Class A Subordinate Voting Shares]

[issued: 2001 - 1,097,009; 2000 — 1,097,909 1 -1
Preferred Securities 15 277 . ‘ 277
Other paid-in capital 15 463 ] 734
Retained earnings 12,20 2,220 o : 1,789
Currency translation adjustment 19 (158) . (41)

4,485 4202 ¢
$ 7,906 $ 7,408

Commitments and contingencies [notes 14 and 22]

See accompanying notes

On behalf of the Board:

Director

NRTIE A

A

Chairman of the Board




The srgmﬁcant accounting policies’ followed by the Company are set out under “ngmﬁcant Acco untmg Pohcres precedmg these
consohdated ﬁnancral statements. , ) } : : : : E -

In December 2000, The Lanadran lnstltute of Chartered Accountants [“CICA | issued new accountmg recommendations for the
presentatron and drsclosure of basic and diluted earnings per share. Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted thesée new:. .
recommendatrons on a retroactive basis. The most significant change under the new recommendatrons is the use-of the “treasury
(\"stock method” instead of the lmputed earnings approach” in ¢ computlng diluted earnings per share. Under the treasury stock method:

s exercise of optrons are assumed at the beginning of the perlod [of at the time of issuance, if later];

o the proceeds from exercise are assumed to be used to purchase common stock at the average market price during the period;:and.
.. the incremental sharés: [the difference between the number of shares' assumed rssued and the number of shares assumecl purchased]
" aré‘included in the denommator of the-diluted earnrngs per. share computation.

The 1etroact1ve 1mpact of, adoptmg the new recommendatlons for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 was:to.increase

“diluted earnings per Class.A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share by $0.10 and $0.02, respectively, and to reduce the averaoe number

- of diluted Class A Subordinate Votmg and Class B Shares outstandmg by 1.8 millien'and 0.7 million, respectrvely The 1mpact of

T :adopting the new. recommendatrons for the year ended December 31,2001 was to increase diluted earnings per Class A Subordinate

" ‘Voting or Class B Share, by $0. 11, and to reduce the average number of drluted Class A Subordmate Votrng and Class B Shares e
outstandmg by 24 mrlhon i : :

For the year ended Deccmber 31 2001 -

In; Aprrl 20015 l\/Iagna Entertamment Coxp [“MEC”] a pubhcly traded subs1d1ary of Magna 1ssucd 3 2 mrlhon share‘ -

" Class A Subordmare Voting’ Stock of MEC. to complete the acqulsmon of certam busmesses [see note 9] Magna 1ncurred a loss W i _
of $7° mrlhon ﬁom 1ts ownershm drlutron on the i issue. The ‘oss mcurred was not sub)ect to income taxes as the issue was

' completed on a prlmary basrs by MEC: : :

In June 2001 Deroma lnternatronal Inc. [“Decoma” ] a pubhcly traded subsrdrary of Magna, completed a public offermo by
issuing 16.1 million Decorna Class'A Subordinate Voting Shares-for aggregate cash consideration, net of share issue- expenses,
of $111. mrlhon Magna recognized a gain of $49 million from its ownership, dilution arising from the issue. Thé gain reahzed

" was not sub)ect to 1ncome taxes as the issue was completed on a primary basis by Decoma

- On Auvust 9,2001, Intrer Automotrve Inc. {¢ Intler I;a subsrdrary of Magna completed an initial pubhc offermo by issuing

+ 5.5 million Intier Class A Subordrnate Voting Shares to third parties for aggregate cash consideration, nét of share issue

- expenses, of $72 million. Magna recognrzed a gain of $6.million from its ownershrp dilution arising from the issue. The gain ~
. reahzed was not sub)ect to income taxes as the i 1ssue was completed on a primary basrs by Intier.

In October 2001, Decoma redeemed the outstandmg amount of the- Decoma Subordrnated Debentures. Magna mcurred a loss
of $2. mllhon from its ownershrp dilution arlsmg from the: redemptron The loss mcurred was not sub)ect to mcome taxes o

‘ [b] ‘.For the ‘year ended December 31 2000

N ’Durlng the. year ended. December 31, 2000; Macna recognrzed a gam before income taxes of $36- mllhon onthe sale of 4, 4 mllhon o
" . Class'A. Subordmate Voting Shares of Tesma lnternatronal Inc: [“Tesma’}, a pubhcly traded subsrchary of Magna ‘

"The Company also completed the sale of its 50% rnterest in Webasto.Sunroofs Inc a ]ornt venture and related real estate and
completed the sale of Invotronics, a wholly owned manufacturrng division. The Company recognized gams before mcome taxes
of $94 milhon and $31 million on these chsposals respectrvelv
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‘ Earnings per share data are computed as follows: . -

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Basic earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share:
Net income $ 580 $ 598 $ 419
Financing charges on Preferred Securities and other paid-in capital (44) (45) (31)
Foreign exchange loss on the redemption of the 5% :

Convertible Subordinated Debentures ) (10) — —
Net income available to Class A Subordinate Voting . :

and Class B Shareholders : $ 526 $ 553 $ 388
Average number of Class A Subordinate Voting .

and Class B Shares outstanding during the year 80.1 78.5 78.5
Basic earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting :

or Class B Share $ 6.57 $ 7.04 $-4.94

Diluted earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share:
Net income available to Class A Subordinate Voting .

and Class B Shareholders ) $ 526 $§ 553 $ 388
Adjustments {net of related tax effects]:

Interest, accretion, issue cost amortization and foreign

exchange on 5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures . 20 15 15
Interest, accretion, issue cost amortization and foreign - . B o
exchange on 4.875% Convertible Subordinated Debentures : 21 : 21 21
$_567 $ 589 $ 424

Average number of Class A Subordinate Voting -
and Class B Shares-outstanding during the year : - 80.1 - - 785 - 785

5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures 44 6.5 63
4.875% Convertible Subordinated Debentures 6.5 6.5 63
Stock options 0.4 - _
91.4 91.5 91.1
Diluted earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share $ 6.20 $ 6.44 $ 4.65

Dlluted earmncs per Class A Subordmate Votmg or Class B Share exclude Class A Subordmate Voting Shares 1ssuable only at ‘the -
Company s option, fo settle the 7. 08% Subordmated Debentures and Preferred Sécurities on redemptlon or maturlty “The humber .
of shares.issuable is dependent on the tradmc price of Class A Subordmate Votmg Shares at redempt1on or maturlty of the 7. 08%

Subordmated Debentures and Preferred Securmes Lot :

Furthermore, for the years ended Decembeér 31, 2000 and 1999 diluted earnings per. Class A Subordinate Votmg or Class B Share 3

exclide 1.8 millior and 0.7 million Class A Subordinate Votmg Shares issuable under the Companys Incentwe Stock Opnon Plany . "

respectively, because such’ opt1ons were not ‘in-the- money during these perlods

‘On March 10, 2000, Magna paid a special stock dmdend of apprommately 20% of MEC’s equlty to Magna Class A Subordinate Votmg
and Class B shareholders of record on February 25 2000 [the “ specml dividend”]. Dividends include $111 million related to the :
‘specml dividend.

In connection with the special dividend, the holders’ conversion prices with respect to the Company’s 4.875% and 5% Convertlble
Subordinated Debentures have been adjusted {see note 15]. The conversion price with respect to the 4.875% Convertible Subordinated
Debentures was reduced to $74.27 from $76.17. Similarly, the conversion price with respect to the 5% Convertible Subordinated
Debentures was reduced to $53.04 from $54.40.
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In August 2001, the Company called for redempnon of the $344 million principal amount: outstandmo of the 5% Convertible

\:‘Subordrnated Debentures effectwe September 18,2001. Prior to September 18,2001, an aggregate $224 mllhon prlncrpal amount of -

. that rernarned outstandrng was redeemied in-cash.

f"such debentures was converted into 4,216,682 Class A Suborchnate Votmg Shares. The balance of $121 rmlhon prmcrpal amount’

L \On redempuon, the Company 1ncurred a forergn exchange loss of $10 mrlhon related to the equlty component of the 5% Convertrbl
: Subordrnated Debentures. Accordxnoly, such amount was recorded asa charoe to retained earnings. ‘In accordance with the new .
o r_ecommendatlons of the CICA, the foreign exchange loss of $10 million was recorded as a charge to income available to Class ‘A
"S_ubofdinate Voting or Class B Shareholders and reflected in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share.

o In Ianuary 2001 Decorna purchased Magna Exterior Systems [“MES”] and the remaining 60% of Decoma Exterlor Trim [ DET”]
. ‘owned by Magna: The aUgregate purchase price paid by Decoma was $203 million which was satisfied in cash by $3 million, =

through ‘the issuance of 8.3 million Decoma C]ass A Subordlnate Votrn0 ‘Shares and 2 million 5. 75% convertrble, redeemable and
retractable Decoma Preferred- Shares In addition; Decoma assumed the debt'of MES and DET. owmg to'the Company which totalled
$220 mllhon at the closmg date Given that thé. proceeds recelved from Decoma exceeded: the net book value of the Companys

= mvestrnent in- MES and DET on the transactlon date, the. mlnorlty interest portion’of such excess has been recorded as a chstrrbutron
5 ont the transfer ‘of MES and DET to Decoma Such distributior also includes the effect of the'increase in Magna's equlty interest in

a8

: ;Decoma as a result of this transaction, from approxrmately 89% to approxrmately 91%. The ‘distribution on the transfer of MES -
' 'and DET to Decoma has been recorded as an increase in the consolidated retained earnings of the Cornpany ‘

Years ended December 3 1,

2001 2000 1999

'Depreciation and amortrzetion $ 399 $ 372 k $ : 332
-MEC depreciation and amortization 26 20 . 8
Equity income and other . 4 24 11

'Minority interest 48 26 19
Future income taxes and non-cash portion of current taxes 39 52 © 3

Net gains on sales and issues of shares by subsidiaries (73) (101) ' —

i : $ 443 $ 393  $ 373

|..Changés in non-cash working caplit:a]:;‘

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Accounts receivable

$ (116) $ (l126) $ (44) -

Inventories - (104) (135) (84)
Prepaid expenses and other 2 (39) 8
Accounts payble, accrued salaries and wages and other accrued liabilities 222 17) 17
Income taxes payable ’ 2 (19) 24

$ 6 $ (336) $ (79)




The followrng acqutsmons were accounted for ustng the purchase method

I ‘AqullSltIOI’lS in the year ended December 31 2001

R »Autosystems ,
In September 2001, Decoma acqulred the ltghttnU components manufacturmg busmess and related fixed and workmg capttal assets =

.. of Autosystems Manufacturtng Inc. [“Autesystems”], an automotive lighting manufacturer located in Ontario whose, prrnctpal
o 'customers include General Motors Corporatton and Vlsteon Corporatron Total consrderatton patd in connection with the acqutsrtton
: amounted fo $12 ‘million.” ’
' MEC ' : ~
S In April 2001, MEC completed the acqutsrtlon of. Ladbroke Racrng Pennsylvama Inc. and Sport Broadcasting, Inc. [collectwely the -
“Tadbroke: Compames ] fortotal consideration of $48 million [net of cash acquired of $7 million]. In accordance with the.terms of

- _"fthe agreement, $21 rntlhon of the purchase- price was patd in cash, $13 million- was satlsﬁed through the i 1ssuance of 3.2 million shares .

¢ of Class A Subordmate Vottng Stock of MEC and the balance was 'satisfied through the i issuance of two promtssory notes that are .
,payable on ‘the first ind second anniversaries of closing, respectwely Thé promissory notes bear interest at’ 6% ‘per annum.:
...The Ladbroke Compames 1nclude account wagermg operattons The Meadows harness track and four, off- track betttng fac1ht1es

Theé followmg isa summary of the effect on the Company s consohdated balance sheet of the ‘current year ’s. acqutsttrons 1ncludmg
5 ‘the transactlons descrtbed above ST B " N

Ladbroke

Autosystems  Companies “Other Total
Non-cash working capital : $ 2 $ (7) $ (7) s (2)
Fixed assets ‘ 10 20 13 43
Other assets Co— 62 10 72
Long-term debt [including portion due within one year] - - (6) (6). .
) Future tax liabilities » - (28) 8 (20)
~ Minority interest. - ' - ‘ - O @
. Totdl purchase price [net of cash acquired] ) $ 12 $ - 47 $ 14 $ - 73
'Cornpri'sejd of: . - . -
. Cash o ' c $ 12 $ 2l $ 7 $ - 40 -
Notes payable - 13 5 18
MEC Class A Subordinate Voting Stock presented as minority interest - 13 2 15
$ 12 $ 47 $ 14 $ 73

) i'Acqursmons in the year ended December 31 2000 .

k. 'Comx Group . . : : ¢ .

- I October 2000, Decoma acquired the remammg 49% minority mterests in Conix Canada Inc, Comx Corporatton, Conix UK Ltd
“and Contx Belglum NV. {collectively the “Conix Group”] for a total purchase price of $133 million {net of $7° million of cash acqun’edl
B .vThe Conix Group operates fascia moulding and finishing operattons in Canada, the Umted States, England and Belgium, Of the total

"con51deratton, $43 mlllton was patd in cash and the balance was sattsﬁed through the tssuance by Decoma of $9O mrlhon 9. 5% o
= Subordtnated Debentures . o S BN . -

“In. February 2000, MEC acquired the assets-and assumed certain’ habrltttes of Great Lakes Downs, Inc. racetrack in Muskegon, It
Wthchtgan fora purchase price of $2 million, payable through thé issiiance of shares’of MEC Class’A Subordinate Voting Stock..

~In November 2000, MEC acquired all of the membership interest and capxtal stock in Bay Meadows. Operattng Cornpany, LLC and”
“Bay Meadows Catermg, respectively, operators of the Bay Meadows racetrack in California for cash consideration of $24 million.

'S‘ummary,of‘acquisitions' in the year ended December 31, 2000 °

Consideration paid for acquisitions, including the transactions described above, consisted of cash of $67 million, the issuance by

- Decoma of $90 million 9.5% subordinated debentures and the issuance by MEC of shares of its Class A Subordinate Voting Stock
totalling $2 million. The net effects on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet were increases in non- cash working capital of
$22 million, fixed assets of $90 million, goodwill of $68 million, other assets of $21 million, bank mdebtedness and long-term debt
of $37 million and net future tax liabilities of $5 million.
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Acquisitions in the year ended December 31, 1999

MATAG
Iix September 1999, the remaining 40% mmonty interest.in Macna Automobl]techml\ AG [“MATAG ] was purchased by the Company
for total. cash consrderatlon of $45 m11hon . : » ‘ :

“ HACC . .
In January-1999, Tesma completed the acqursmon of 100% of the outstanding shares of Hanwha Automotive Components
Corporatlon [“HACC?”], a South Korean based manufacturer of oil and water pump systemns, tor cash consideration of $5 million
- [net of cash acquired of $3 million]. :
MEC: ' : S
During the year ended December 31,1999, MEC completed the acquisition of five racetracks. In May 1999, the real estate assets of
San Luis Rey Downs, a horse boarding and training center in California; were acquired for cash consideration of $6 million.
In September 1999, MEC acquired Guifstream Park in Florida for cash consideration of $81 million [net of cash acquired of $8 million].
- In November 1999, MEC acquired the Thistledown and Remmgton Park racetracks in Ohio and Oklahoma, respectively, for total )
* consideration of $19 million [net of cish acquired of $6 million]. Finally, in Décember 1999, the acquisition of Golden Gate Fields
" . in California was completed for total consideration of $84 million [net of cash acqurred of $l million]. Of the total consideration, :
$l61 mrlhon was paid in cash, $12 million was paid through the issuance of sharés of MEC Class A Subordinate Voting Stock and the
"balance was satisfied by way of anon- mterest bearing promrssory note having a discounted value of $17 million. )

) Summary of acqursmons in'the year ‘ended December 31, 1999 )

~Consideration pard for acquisitions, mcludmg the transactlons descrlbed above, consisted of cash, promrssory notes and subsrdrary
"s‘lare consideration of $211 million, $17 million and $12 million; respectively. The net effects on the Companys consolidated balance’
_sheet were decreases in nori-cash- workmc capital of $13 million and minority interest of $23 million; and increases in fixed assets of

..-$220 million, other assets of $102 ‘million, goodwrll of $21 rmlhon bank mdebtedness and long-term debt of $29: mrlhon and net

: future tax liabilities of $85 m1lhon

] Proforma impact

i If the acquisitions and drsposals [5ee note 3] completed. durmg the years ended December 31,2001 and 2000, occurred on ]muary 1, 2000,
. the Company’s unaudited proforma consolidated sales would have been $11.1 billion for the year ended Decernber 31, 2001
[2000 $10.8: brlhon] and unaudrted proforma net.income of the. Company would have been $569 mrlhon [2000 - $600 mlllron]

- Inventories consist of:

2001 2000

Raw materials and supplies $ 243 $ 257
Work-in-process 106 ) 98
Finished goods 125 116
Tooling and engineering 368 : 296

$ 842 $ 767

. Toolmg and engineering mventory represents costs mcurred on separately prrced toolmv and engmeermv servrces contracts iri excess

of brlled and unbrlled amounts 1ncluded in accounts recelvable

Fixed assets consist of:

2001 2000

Cost

Land $ 554 $ 536
Buildings 1,276 1,208
Machinery and equipment 3,580 3,436
5,410 5,180

Accumulated depreciation
Buildings (248) (248)
Machinery and equipment (1,567) (1,343)
$ 3,595 $ 3,589
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Included in fixed assets are real estate assets [land and buildings] held by MEC that include properties available for sale with a net
book value at December 31, 2001 of $38 million {2000 - $64 million]. Depreciation has ceased on these properties. Properties available
for sale are valued at'the lower of cost, which includes acquisition and development costs;and estimated fair value less costs of d]sposal
The Company evaluates the lower of cost and fair value whenever events or changes in cxrcumstances indicate possible impair ment

.Also included in the cost of fixed assets are construction in progress expénditures of $190 million {2000 - $161 million].

[a‘] The prowsxon for income taxes differs from the expense that would be obtamed by applymg Canadian statutory rates as a 1esult
of the following:

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Canadian statutory income tax rate 41.7% | 44.0% 44.6%

. ) Manufacturing and processing profits deduction (4.8) (4.5) (5.8) _ 7
. o Foreign rate differentials (3.8) o (4.9) (5.5) ;. Y
- - Losses not benefited 1.4 1.9 0.9 -

Earnings of equity investees ) (0.7) (0.6) (1.1) " K
Gains on sales and issues of shares by subsidiaries (2.1) (L.1) - )
Reduction in enacted tax rates (1.3) — - i
Other 1.1 1.0 1.2

Effective income tax rate 31.5% 35.8% 34.3% o
[b] - The details of income before income taxes.and minority interest by jurisdiction are as follows:

Years ended December 31,

. S . : 2001 2000 1999
Canadian _ $ 610 $ 645 $ 499 S
Foreign ) ’ 308 327 168 e e

$ 918 $ 972 $ 667

{c] The details of the.income tax provisi_on ar“e as follows: : - o S v i ) E B

Years ended December 31,

2001 5 2000 1999
Current provision ‘ . i
.~ Canadian federal taxes ' $ 118 $ 132 - $ 103 .
R " Provincial taxes ; ) 64 76 . 62
Foreign taxes » 88 113 30
] 270 321 245 i
Future provision
Canadian federal taxes (5) 12 11
Provincial taxes (2) 7 7
Foreign taxes - : 27 : 8 (34) -
20 - 27 - (16) -
$ 290 $ 348 $ 229

[d] Future income taxes have been provided on temporary differences which consist of the following:

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Tax depreciation in excess of book depreciation $ 48 $ 28 $ 17
Reduction in enacted tax rates (12) - -
Tax losses benefited (18) (7) (27)
‘Other 2 6 (6)
$ 20 $ 27 $ (16)
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[e] Future tax dssets and liabiiities consist of the folloWing temporargf differences:

2001

2000

Assets
Tax benefit of loss carryforwards
Pre-acquisition ' $ 20 $ 24
Post acquisition 148 111
Share and convertible subordinated debenture issue costs 3 3
. ' 171 138
Valuation allowance against tax benefit of loss carryforwards
Pre-acquisition (18) (18)
" Post acquisition (39) (24)
114 96
S Llablhtles
Tax deprecratron in excess of book depreaatlon 184 177
~~ Other assets book value in excess of tax value 63 37
_ Other ) 29 ‘10
: : 276 224
' Net future tax liability $ 162 $ 128

gl At December 31, 2001, the Company has income tax loss carryforwards of approxrmately $157 rmlhon whrch relate to certam e
- foreign subsidiaries,- includirig $49, mﬂhon of losses obtained on acquisitions, the tax benefits of whxeh have not been recognized

in the consolidated: ﬁnancral statements. Of the total losses $73 mrlhon exprre between 2002 and 2008 and- the rernalnder have

.' no exprry date

" [h] ,ﬂConsohdated retalned earnmgs mclude approxmlately $1.0 brlhon at- December 31, 2001 of undrstrrbuted earmnos of forergn

_subsrdlarres that may be subject to tax if remitted to- ‘the Canadran parent company No prowSlon has been ‘made for such taxes

as; these earnrngs are consrdered to be remvested for: the foreseeable future

‘Other assets consist of:

2000

(6) =

i

: [f] ‘ Income taxes pard in cash were $252 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 [2000 $267 mlllron, 1999 $192 mxlhon]

Racing licenses
Cost $ 184 $ 1i4
Accumulated amortization (14)
. - 170 108..
- Long-term receivables 73 47 - °
' Other 49 50
' $_ 292 $ 205
[a] - The Company's leng—term debt, which is substantially uncollateralized, consists of the following: ‘
2001 2000
Loans from governments with a weighted average interest
rate of approximately 4%, denominated primarily in Euros $ 107 $ 97
Bank term debt at a weighted average interest rate
of approximately 4%, denominated primarily in
Euros and - U.S. dollars 105 118
Other 86 99
298 314
Less due within one year 54 46
$ 244 $ 2068




- Futire principal repayments on long-term debt are estimated-to be as follows:

" 2002 o o R ‘ ' ’ . . ‘ i i ) .$ .54

2003 ' : C . 46
2004 ' ‘ ‘ ' 71
2005- 13
2006 49
Thereafter 65

) . $ 298

[el At December 31, 2001 the Company has operatmo hnes of cred1t totaJh_no $444 mﬂhon and term lines of credit totalling $1 billion.”’
7».} < The’ Company had outstandmg letters of credit.in the amount of $85 million’ drawn prlmanly under its term lines of credit.
S -In addition- to cash resources of $890 million, the Cornpany had unused and avallable operatmg hnes of credit of approxxrnately
. $227 million and term hnes of credlt of appr0x1mately $551 mdhon :

{d) Under the terms of the Company s operatmg and term credit agreements 1t is permxtted to rnal\e use of bankers’ acceptances
" and. commerc1al paper to borrow at effectwe mterest rates whrch are, from t1me to time, lower than those charged under the
s bank hnes of credlt \ N

: J.Net mterest expense mcludes

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Interest expense -
Current - $ 14 $ 20 $ 22
Long-term - : ) 21 25 28
. ) ) 35 . 45 50
Less interest capitalized . o - : - (7) -
: ‘ . 35 45 43
Interest income - : - : - (33) (32) Q7). =
Interest expense, net - ' $ 2 $ 13 $ 16

'.,I"Interest pald in cash [mdudmg ﬁnancmg charges o Preferred Secur1t1es and other paxd in capltal] was $84 mllhon for the b
g year ended December 31 2001 [2000 $103 m]lhon, 1999 $84 mllhon] : :

. At December 31 2001 the Company had comm1trnents under operatmg Ieases requxrmg annual rental payments as follows

2002 T , L : $ 54
12003 - : ‘ S . , : - ‘ 44
- 2004 o ‘ - . : 35
2006 : ‘ ‘ o3
Thereafter B ‘ SEE _ 66

' : $ 250

) For the year ended December 31 2001 operatmg lease expense amounted to apprommately $53 mllhon {2000 $60 mdhon, X
11999 - $59 mllhon] ) ; R




L lal The Company’s,subordinated debentures and Prreferred Sectirities are presented in.the"'consohdated balance sheets as followsr

2001 2000

Debentures” interest obligation : : : - $ 114 - $ 191
Minority interest . — 69
Shareholders’ equity
Other paid-in capital ] )
Present value of the face amount of the subordinated debentures 421 662
) Holders’ conversion options 46 79
g e Issue costs related to equity components . (4) (7)
SN - Total included in other paid-in'capital 463 734
Preferred Securities, net of issue costs . 277 277
Total included.in shareholders’ equrty ‘ . : : : $ 740 $ 1,011

[b] The 'followmo isa summarv of the 1ssued and outstandmg subordmated debentures convertlble subordmated debentures and .

“Preferred Securities: Coe

Decoma95% Subordmated Debentures A S

“On. October 16, 2000, Decoma 1ssued $90 million of 9. 5% subordrnated debentures at par. The subordinated debentures were

- unsecured, denommated in U.S. dollars and were redeemable -atany, urne at par plus accrued and. unpaid interest. The subordmated
debentures were. to_ mature orl October 16, 2003 Interest on the obhgatron was payable in'U. S dollars ona quarterly basm )

" These subordmated debentures were repaid durrng 2001. ‘

The present value of the prlncrpal amount of these. subordmated debentures was mcluded in Decomas equrty Accordrngly, such :
: : - arnount was classrﬁed in mmorrty 1nterest in the Companys consohdated balance sheet 4s at December 31, 2000 - o

708% Subordmated Debentures Lo T e

On September 21, 1999, the Cornpany xssued Euros 100 mrlhon {$104 rnrlhon on rssue ddte] of 7 08% )umor subordmated
debentures at par. The unsetured subordmated debentures, whrch are denommated in Euros, mature on September 30, 2009

" The- debentures are rot’ redeernable except in the event of certain adverse changes in'tax legrslanon Upon maturity, the Cornpany
) ) inay at its opnon satlsfy the amounts. payable by i 1ssu1ng to the holders Class A Subordinate Votmg Shares of the Company,
el ‘ ~based on'a welghted average tradm prlce ‘of Class A gubordmate Votmg Shares prov1ded that there is no contlnuxncr event of
W T default . ; '

’ 4 875% Convertlble Subordmated Debentures

"On. February 13, 1998, the Company issued $480 million of 4. 875% convertrble subordinated debentures at par The unsecured"" a
. débentures, which are denommated in U:S:dollars, are convertible at any time at the option of the holders into Class A o
Subordinate Voting Shares at a conversion pnce of $74. 27 per share and mature on February 15, 2005. The debentures are
redeemable after February 16, 2001 or at any.time in-the event of Certain: “changes affecting Canadian’ w1thh01d1ng taxes, at par
R ; plus accrued and unpaid i 1nterest Upon redemptron or rnaturlty of the debentures, or repurchase in-the event of certain chanoes
1o . Co “in control of the Company, the Company may.at its option satisfy the amounts payable by i issuing to.the holders Class A

; Subordlnate Votmg Shares of the’ Company, based on a weighted-dverage trading price’of Class A Subordinate Voting Shares,
provrded that there is no continuing evenit of default. At December 31, 2001 all debenttres remamed outstanding.

5% Convertlble Subordinated Debentures o T

On October 17, 1995 the Cornpany 1ssued $345 mllhon of 5% convertlble subordmated debentures at par The unsecured
debentures, which were denomrnated in U.S. dollars, were convertlble at any-time at the option of the holders into Class A
Subordrnate Voting Shares at a conversion price of $53.04 per share and were to mature on October 15, 2002

Prior to ]anuary 1, 2001, an ag ggregate $1 mrlhon principal amount of such debentures was converted into 9,366 Class A
Subordinate Voting Shares. In August 2001, the Company called for redemption of the 5% Convertible Subordinated
Debentures effective September 18,2001, For the period from January 1, 2001 to September 18, 2001, an aggregate $223 million
principal amount of such debentures was converted into 4,207,316 Class A Subordinate Voting Shares. On September 18, 2001,
the balance of $121 million principal amount that remained outstanding was redeemed in cash.
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.. 8. 65% Serles A Preferred Securmes and 8. 875% Series B Preferred Securities

. -On Septembe1 21,.1999, the Company. 1s>ued Cdn$165 million [$114 million on issue date] of 8.65% Series A Preferred

. Securities due September 30, 2048 and $170 million 8.875% Series B Preferred Securities due September 21, 2048. The Series A
) Preferred Securities, which are denominated in Canadian dollars, and the Series B Preferred S Securities, which are denommated
in U.S. dollars, are redeemable on or after Septémber 30, 2004 and September 21, 2004, respectively, or in:€ach case at any time,

- in the event of certain adverse changes in tax- legrslatlon Hereifter, the Series A and B Preferred Securmes are collecuvely o
“referred to as ‘the “Preferred Securities.” ‘

Upon redernptlon or maturrty of the Preferred Securmes the Company may at 1ts optron pay the outstandmg prmapal amount
‘plus’any accrued and unpaid interest by delivering to the Trustee Class A Subordmate Voting Shares of the Company in whrch
event the holders of the Preferred Securities shall be'entitled to receive a cash payment equal to the amount payable on
ﬁ.redempnon or maturity from the proceeds of sale of such Class A Subordinate Voting Shares by the Trustee on behalf of the
,Company ) : i :
. Aj The Companv also has the rrght to defer, at any time, and from time to time, subject to certain conditions, payments of mterest
on the Preferred Securities by extending the interest payment period for up to 20 consecutive quarterly 1nterest_ periods.
The Company cannot pay or declare dividends on any of its‘eapr’tal stock when interest is being deferred. Interest continues to
“~accrue but does not compound durmg such deferral periods. The Company may satrsfy its obhgauon to pay deferred interest
. 'by delwermg to the Trustee Class A Subordinate Voting Shares-of the Company in which event the holders of the Preferred -
-Securities shall be entitled to receive a cash payment equal to thé deferred 1nterest payable from the proceeds of bale of such
Class ‘A Subordinate Voting Shares by the Trustee on behalf of the Company. -

R, : s The Preferred Securmes are unsecured Jumor subordxnated debentures of the Company

Employee Eqmty and Proﬁt Participation and Defined Benefit Pension Plans
* Prior to 2001, the Company’s Corporate Constitution required that 10%-of the employee pre-tax proﬁts before profit sharmg )
:"ds defined-in the Corporate Constitution} for any fiscal period be allocated to-an Employee Equity and Profit Participation Plan . —
i [“EPSP”] consisting of the Magna [mcludmg Intier], Decoma and Tesma deferred profit sharing plans and a cash'distribution'to -~ 7 i
%+ ~eligiblé.employees of the respective companies. During-2001, Magna, Decoma and Intier amended their Corporate Consntutlons to - i
allow for the introduction of defined benefit' pension plans in -addition to. the EPSPE. All employees that part1c1pate in the EPSP were,
‘» and all new employees are, given the option of continuing in the EPSP, or receiving a reduced entitlement under the EPSP plus a’
_defined benefit pension. The defined benefit pension is payable to retirees ages 65 or older and is based on years of service and
) compensatmn levels. Participants may take early retlrement after age 55 and receive a reduced pensron benefit. ‘ .

~-MEC, and a. llmlted number of the Companys European subsidiaries, sponsor. deﬁned behefit pension-and similar arranaements
" for thelr employees. European defined benefit pens1on plans other than in the United Kingdom, are unfunded.

Termmatxon and Long Serv1ce Arrangements
“Plrsuant tolabour laws and national labour agreements in certain European countries; the Company is obhgated to provide lump

sum termmat1on payments to employees on retirement or mvoluntary terrnmatlon, and long service payments contingent upon
persons reaclung a predeﬁned nuraber of years of service. . B

- ;' <All- Austrlan lump sum termination-and long service payment arrancrements are unfunded However, pursuant to. local tax laws,.
Austfian subsidiaries hold long-term government securities in connection with their unfunded obligations. Such'assets amounted
1o $28 million and $27 million at December 31,2001 and 2000, respecnvely, and are mcluded in 1nvestrnents in the Comp1ny s
consohdated balance sheets.: s

Retlrement ‘Medical Benefits Plan : NN

During the year ended December 31, 2000, the Company introduced a retirement medrcal benefits plan covermg eligible employees
and retirees. Retirees age 60 or older with ten or more years of service will bé el101ble for benefits. In addition, existing retirees as at’’
ugust-1,2000 that meet the above criteria are also ¢ligible for benefits. Benefits are-capped based on years of service. As the projected
enefit obligation and benefit cost assoc1ated with the retirement medical benefits plan is not material, a separate reconciliation of -
the pro;ected benefit obhoatlon and- oeneﬁt cost has not been provrded in the tables below. : Co

. The significant- actuanal assumpt1ons adopted in measurmg the Cornpanys pro;ec’(ed beneﬁt oblxganons are as follows:

A Discount rate : 5.5% to 7.5%
Rate of compensation increase 2.5% to 5.0%
Expected return on plan assets ) ) ) 7.5%
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Years ended December 31,

2001 . 2000 1999
'_ : Projected benefit obliga“tion
Beginning of year i $ 139 $ 122 $ 123
Past service obligation arising on plan introduction - - 14 -
Current service and interest costs : 20 15 9
: Actuarial losses and changes in actuarial assumptions 9 2 3
L Benefits paid 9) (5) (3)
Acquisitions ) ) ) - - 1
___Currency translation . ) ‘ . ) (8) . (9) (11) .
End of year ) $ 151 . § 139 $ 122 .
Plan assets at fair value
Beginning of year : $ 43 - % 37 $ 34
Retuirn on plan assets . . ) ) : (3) 5 2
: Ernployer contributions : ) 3 3 2
. Beneﬁts paid : . (3) - - _
.Currency translation - . ) . (2) i (2) (D)
End of year - - r $ 38 $ - 43 $ 37
) Unfunded amount $ 113 $ 96 $ 86
o - Unrecognized past service obligation (13) - (13) -
‘ Unrecognized actuarial gains (losses) (15) 1 (1)
Net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets » . $ 85 $ 84 $ 85
Net periodic benefit cost o ) :
. Current'service and interest costs : ) i ‘ $ 20 $ 15 % 9
Past service cost amortization e - 1 ’ ' 1 o=
" Return on plan assets ' (3) - {5) 2y
" Actuarial losses o 1 1 2
‘ ‘ $ 19 s 12 $ 9

: "'la]’ The Companys authorlzed 1ssuecl and outstanchng capltal stock is as follows

Preferenceshares—1ssuablemser1es—--- R L R ST s e

The Company s authorlzed capltal stock mcludes 99 760 000 preference shares, 1ssuable in series. None of these shares are

currently 1ssued or outstandmg Sl R A T

3 Class A Subordmate Votmg Shares and Class B Shares

e Class A Subordmate Vot1n0 Shares wrthout par value [unhm1ted amount authorlzed] have the followmg attrrbutes.
’ _[i] Each share is entltled to one vote per share at “all rneetmgs of shareholders '

’ A.»».:[il] " Each. share shall part1c1pate equally as to d1v1dends Wlth each Class B Share

‘ 'i‘Class B Shares without par value [authorlzed =1 412 341] have the followrng attnbutes

} '[il Each share is enutled o 500 votes per share at all meetmgs of shareholders

“lii]  Each share shall partrcrpate equally as to dividends with each Class A Subordrnate Votrng Share.

[iii} Each share may be _converted at any time into a fully—pald Class A Subordmate Votlng Share on‘ a one—for—one basis.

In the event that either the Class A Subordmate Votmg Shares or the Class B Shares are- subd1v1ded or consohdated the other
class shall be similarly changed to preserve the relative position of each class." -
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[b] Changes inthe Class A Subordinate Voting Shares.and Class B Shares for the years ended December 31, 2001 2000 and
"1999, are shown in the following table {number of shares in the followrng table are expressed in whole numbers and have not
been rounded to the nearest mrlhon] : ‘

Class A Subordinate Voting " Class B

Number of Stated Number of Stated
B shares value ’ shares "~ value
Issued and outstanding at December 31, 1998 77,256,183 $ 1,430 1,098,109 $ 1
Conversion of Class B Shares to ‘ ‘ ' .
Class A Subordinate Voting Shares 200 - (200) -
Issued to fund EPSP contributions 170,000 10
Issued for cash under the Incentive Stock Option Plan ' 8,000 1
! Issued under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan . 3,807 -
i Conversion of 5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures 275 =
’ Issued and outstanding at December 31, 1999 : 77,438,465 ©1,441 1,097,909 : 1
. Issued under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan : . 12,688 =
N Issued for cash under the Incentive Stock Option Plan 16,000 1
a { Issued and outstanding at December 31, 2000. B 77,467,153 1,442 1,097,909 - 1
Issued under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan . 5,749 - '
Issued for cash under the Incentive Stock Option Plan 563,400 ) 27
Conversion of 5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures 4,207,316 213
Conversion of Class B Shares : '
to Class A Subordinate Voting Shares v . 9200 — . (900) -
Issued and outstanding at December 31, 2001 82,244,518 $ 1,682 1,097,009 5 1

Under the amended and restated Inceritive Stock OPUOH Plan, the: Company may grant: optrons to- purchase Class A Subordmate
- Voting Shares to full-time employees, outsrde directors or consultants of the Company The maximum number of shares that *
f-‘can Be reserved fori issuange under the- plan is 6.0 millior shares. The number of unoptloned shares availableé to be reserved ‘at

) ‘December 31, 2001 was 2 .8 million [2000 4. O mrlhon] All ¢ optrons granted’are for'a term of ten years from ‘the grant date.
. For periods up to’ ‘and including December 31,1998, options vésted 1271/2% on the date of the’ grant and 12 1/2% in each of
“the. following seven years. Optlons issued: subsequent to 1998 generally vest 20% on the date of the grant-and 20% on each- -

y subsequent December 31 thereafter. All options allow the holder to purchase Class A Subordrnate Votmg Shares at a prrce equal
“. toor greater than the market price.¢ of such shares at the date of the grant

. The following.is.a contmurty schedule of optrons outstandmc [number of optrons in. the table below are expr essed in whole e
o numbers 1nd have not been 10L1nded to the nearest mllhon] B

Optlons outstanding

Weighted

average Number

" Number exercise of options

of options price  exercisable

Outstanding at December 31, 1998 ’ 290,400  Cdn$84.21 83,900
Granted : 1,532,500 Cdn$77.75 —
Exercised . (8,000) Cdn$62.75 (8,000)
Vested ) } — — 400,250
Outstanding at December 31, 1999 1,814,900 Cdn$78.85 476,150
Granted 120,000 Cdn$75.00 -
Exercised (16,000) Cdn$62.75 (16,000)
Surrendered . (10,000) Cdn$75.00 (2,000)
Vested - — 425,250
Outstanding at December 31, 2000 1,908,900 Cdn$78.76 883,400
Granted ‘ 1,207,500 Cdn$68.75 -
Exercised (563,400) Cdn$73.64 (563,400)
Vested - - 837,000
Qutstanding at December 31, 2001 2,553,000 Cdn$75.16 1,157,000
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. At December 31, 2001, the outstariding optigns consist of {[number of options in the table below are expressed in-whole numbers
-and have not been:rounded to the nearest millionj: : ‘ :

Options outstanding

Remaining Number

Exercise Number contractual of options

price of options life [years] L exercisable

Tranche 1 ] ) Cdn$62.75 12,500 4.3 -
Tranche 2 Cdn$92.45 150,000 . 5.6 93,750
Tranche 3 Cdn$92.35 50,000 5.6 31,250
Tranche 4 . Cdn$91.50 198,000 7.0 152,000
Tranche 5 - Cdn$83.50 24,000 7.0 16,000
Tranche 6 Cdn$75.00 959,000 7.8 459,000
Tranche 7 - 9 Cdn$75.00 92,000 8.0 62,000
Tranche 10 Cdn$66.80 910,000 9.0 280,000
Tranche 11 Cdn$73.25 100,000 9.0 40,000
Tranche 12 - 13 Cdn$96.50 ‘ 57,500 . 9.0 23,000
: ) : ) 2,553,000 8.0 ) 1,157,000
Weighted'ave'rage exercise price ) a Cdn$75,16 - o ‘ Cdn$77.55

- The Company has a D1v1dend Remvestment Plan wherebv shareholders have the opnon to recewe theu dlvrdends i the form :
’ of Class A Subordlnate Votm0 Shares in lieu of cash. ‘ : ’

" The- tollowmg table presents the fiaximurm number of shares that would be outstandmo 1f all thé dllutlve mstruments outstandma -
',atDecember.'ﬁl 2001 weleexerased R LT e U S

Class A Subordinate Voting Shares and Class B Shares outstanding at December 31, 2001 : 83.3

4.875% Convertible Subordinated Debentures [based on holders’ conversion option] 6.5
Stock options : 2.6 .
‘ 92.4

) ‘.The '1b0ve amounts exclude Class A Subordmate Voting Shares rssuable, only at the Company s optlon, to settle the 7. 08%

Subordmated Debentures and Preferred Securities.on redemptlon ot ‘maturity. The number of shares issuable is dependent on

.the'trading pr1ce of Class A Subordmate Votmg Shares at redempt]on or maturity of the 7.089 /o Subordmated Debenfures and

B Prefel réd Securmes




. -lal Fore1gn Exchange Contracts

. ‘The Company operates globally, whrch glves rise to:a risk that its earnmgs and cash flows may be adversely 1mpacted by flactuations
- in foreign exchange The Company uses foreign exchange contracts to manage foreign exchange risk from its underlying, customer
. contracts. In partrcular, the Comipany uses foreign exchange forward contracts and forewn exchange._ranoe forward contracts

. .for the sole purpose of hedging celtam of the Company’s future commrtted U.s. dollar and Euro [“€”] outflows and inflows,
"Gains and losses on these hedg1n<7 instr uments are reconnlzed in the same period as, and as part of; the hedged transaction.

. In addrtron, in lurnted srtuatrons the Company uses forward contracts to manage foreign exchange risk arising from 1ntercompanv

'loans The Company does not enter mto foreign’ exchange contracts for specul'mve purposes

AL December 31 2001 the Company had outstandmc foretgn excha'xge forward contracts representmg comm1tments to buy
S and sell forelgn furrencres in exchanoe for Canachan and U. S dollars as follows

R 4 e Do e L R e

For Canadran dollars : : For U.S. dollars

u.s. Weighted Weighted Weighted

T dollar average Euro average Euro average
Buy (Sell) - . B amount : rate amount . rate amount rate
2002 $323 . 1.5441 € 69 1.4151 € 65 0.8983
2002 (544) 1.4973 (369) 1.4063 (177) - 0.8946
2003. ’ 73 -1.4650 17 1.4789° 29 . 0.9187
2003 {150) 1.4989 - - - : -
2004 ! 39 1.4716 19 1.4775 20 0.9317
2004 (114)- 1.4883 - - - -

¢ 2005 : 16 1.4428 15 1.5308 3 £ 0.9392
©.2005 (94) 1.4780 - Lo - -
2006 ‘ - - ) 1.6113 - -
2006 , (16)  1.3862 - - = -
Thereafter ] ~ — 20 1.6712 = = : -

$(467) : €(220) . € (60)

- iBased on forward forergn exchange rates as-at December 31 2001 for contracts with sn‘nllar lemalnmg terrns to, maturrty, the
-unrecognized gains and losses relating to the Company s forergn exchanve forward contracts are approxnnately $38 million and
.. $84 million, respectlvely If the Company’s forward exchange contracts ceased 10 be eftectwe as hedges for example) if pro;ected
‘,'net forelcn cash mflows decllned 51gn1ﬁcantly, prevrously unrecogmzed gains or losses pertam.no to the portion of the: hedgxng '
g transactrons in’ excess ‘of pro;ected foreign currency deno*mnated cash flows would be recogmzed in‘income 4t the time thrs -
s condmon was 1dem1ﬁed : ’ ' :

'V'Falr value -

f‘»; “The’ ‘Company, has determrned the estrmated fair va.lues of its ﬁnancral instruments based on apploprrate valuanon methodologres,
-however, considerable )udgment is requuecl to develop these estimates. Accordirigly, these estlmated fair values are not necessarily.

: materrally affected by the use of different assumptrons or methodoloares The methods and as<umptlons used o estlmate the.

fa1r value of ﬁnancral instruments are descrlbed below C i :
- Cash and cash. equwalents, accoum‘s recewable, bank mdebtedness, accounts payable and other ‘accrued lzabzlzt1e5 o

: "Due to the short perrod to- matunty of the mstruments the’ carrymg values as presented in the consohdated balance sheets are " -

reasonable estxmates of fair values. . :

Investments ‘ ; .

- Fair value 1nformat1on is not readlly available. However, manaaement beheves the market value to be in excess of the carrymU

. value.of investments: i

- Long- term debt and debentures interest obligation

The falr values of the Company’s long-term debt and debentures’ interest obllgatlon, based on current rates. for debt w1th srmxlar :

terms and maturities, are not materially different from their carrying values. i ’ ‘

Credit risk

The Company’s financial assets that are exposed to credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable

and foreign exchange forward contracts wrth positive fair values.

The Company, in the norrnal course of busmess is exposed to credit risk from its customers, substantially all of which are in
the automotwe industry. These accounts receivable are subject to normal industry credit risks.

k"‘mchcanve of the ‘amounts.the Company, could reahze in'a current market exchange. The estunatecl fair value amounts can be i



““im any one government or corporauon '

Cash and cash equlvalents which consists of short-term 'investments, including commerc1al paper, is only mvested in governments
and corporatrons with an investment orade credit ratmg Credrt rxsk 1s further reduced by hmrtmo the amount whrch is 1nvested

The Company, in the normal course of busmess, is erposed to credrt r1sk from its customers, substantrally all of whxch are in

.the automotive mdustry

Thé Company is also exposed to credit risk from thie potentlal default by any of its counterpartres on 1ts fore1gn exchange forward B

- contracts. The: Company mrtrgates this credit risk by dealing with' counterpartres who are major ﬁnanctal 1nst1tut10ns and whrch '

the Company ant1c1pates will satlsfy thexr obhgauons under the contracts -

" Interest rate risk

The Companyis not exposed to significant interest rate risk due to the short term. matunty of its monetary current assets and

- current llabrlrtres In addition, thé Company’s exposure to interest rate risk on fixed rate lonﬁ~term 1nstrurnents is also reduced

gwen the minimum perlods to redemptlon with respect to- the convernble subordmated debentures and Preferred Securmes

) Unrealrzed currency translanon ad)ustments, which arrse on the translatxon to U.S. dOllalS of‘assets and lrabﬂmes of the

: Companys self-sustaining foreign operations; resulted in an unreallzed currency translanon loss.of $117 m1lhon durmg the
. "_year ended December 31, 2001 [2000 - loss of $120 mllhon, 1999 = loss of $96 mrlllon] The 2001 and’ 2000 unrealized loss .
resulted pnmarﬂy from the weakenlng of the Euro, British Pound:and Canadlan*dollar agamst the U.s. dollar “The- 1999 untealued R

loss resulted pnmarlly from the weakenmg of the Euro and Brrtlsh Pound partlally offset by the strengthemng of the Canad]an .
dollar both agamst the U.S. dollar.

‘,‘vThe followmc is the Companys combmed propornonate ‘share of. the ma)or components of the ﬁnanctal statements of the )orntly ;

controlled entities in Wthl’l the. Company has an, mterest [before ellmmattons]

Balance ‘Sheets

2001 2000

Current assets $ 100 $ 101

‘ - Long-term assets. - . ) . $ 43 3 49 .
Current liabilities . . .. 8 51 $ 49
Long-term liabilities : $ 46 3 52

*Statements of Income

Years ended December 31, -

2001 - 2000 1999
Sales I ‘ $ 356 $ 668 $ 671
Cost of goods sold, expenses and income taxes . ‘ : 337 634 638
Net income . C . . . . $ 19 $ 34 $ 33

Statements of Cash Flows - * .- Loe Dl e

60 -

Years ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Cash provided from (used for): : o - - . . . e e
Operating activities $ 61 $ 74 $ 54
Investment activities $  (14) $  (67) $ (46)
Financing activities $ (38) $ (33) $ 6

The Company’s share of equity in jointly controlled e_ntities includes undistributed earnings of $45 million [2000 - $41 million].




The Company has agreements with an affiliate of the Chalrman of the Board for the provision of busmess development and consultmg
. services. In addition, the Company has an agreement with the Chairman of the Board for the provision of business development

" ‘and other services. The aggregate amount expensed under these agreements with respect to the year, ended December 31 2001 was
$33 mrllron [2000 $28 mrlllon 1999 $23 million]. : v h e e o Tl

Durlng the year ended. December 31,2001, trusts, whrch exist to make orderly purchases of the Company s shares for employees
‘ erther for transfer to the EPSP orto recrplents of erther bonuses orrights to purchase 'such shafes from the trusts, borrowed up to
* $51, mitlion 2000+ $41 rmlhon, 1999 - $18 million} from the ‘Company to facilitate the purchase of Class A Subordmate Voting -

" Shiarés of the Company. At December 31 2001 the trusts 1ndebtedness to the Company, whrch is’ mcluded in‘accounts payable, was E

$33 million [2000 "$26 million].

~ Investments include $2 million [2000 $2 iillion], at cost in respect of an mvestment ina company that was establrshed to acquire
shares of the Compary, for sale to employees

Durrng the year ended December 31, 2000 a subsrdrary of the Company purchased from a company assocrated with’ members of

.. the family of Mr. F. Stronach, Ms. B: Stronach and Mr. A Stronach the Chairman of the Board, Presrclent and Chief Executrve Officer, ’
- and Executive Vice-President, Business Development, respectively of the Company, approximately 200 acres of land and improvements .

in Aurora, Ontario for a purchase price of approximately $11.0 mrllron In addition; during the year ended December 31,2000, a
. subsrdrary of the Company sold approximately 3 acres of land ind improvements in Aurora, Ontario to the. same company assocnted
w1th members of the famrly of Mr. E Stronach; Ms. B. Stronach and Mr. A. Stronach for approxrmately $0.2 mrlhon

" [a)* In November 1997, the Company and two of its subsidiaries were sued by KS Centoco Ltd., an Ontario-based steering wheel

manufacturer in which the Company has a 23% equity interest, and by Centoco Holdings Limited, the. owner of the remaining

77% equity’ interest in KS Centoco Ltd. On March 5, 1999, the plaintiffs were granted: léave to. make substantial amendments to
o _the original statement of claim, in order to add several new defendants and claim additional remedles The amendecl statement
o of Clall‘(l alleges among other thirigs:

Ces breach of ﬁducrary duty by the Company and two of its subsrdrarres, ’

¢ breachbythe Company of its binding letter of intent wrth KS Centoco Ltd., including its covenant not to'have any interest,

-directly or rndrrectly, in any entity that carries on the arrbag business in North Arerica, other than through MST
Automotive Iric., a company to be 77% owned by Magna and 23% owned by Centoco Holdmgs Limited;.

T ;the plaintiff’s exclusrve entrtlernent to certain airbag technologres in North' America" pursuant to an exclusive lrcence

“agreement, together with an, accounting of all revénues and’ profits resulting from the alleaed use by the Company, TRW Inc. '

[ TRW”] and other unrelated third party autornotive supplrer defendants of such technology in North Amerrca,

- .a consprracy by the Company, TRW and others to deprrve KS Centoco Ltd. of the benefits of. such airbag technology in-
North America and to catise Centoco Holdings Limited to sell to TRW: its interest in KS Centoco Ltd. in- con)unctron wrthv
the Company’s sale to TRW of'its interest in MST Automotrve GmbH and TEMIC Bayern -Chemie Airbag GmbH

The plaintiffs are seeking, amongst other things, damages of approxrmately $3.5 billion. The Company has ﬁled an amended
i statement of defence and counterclarm The Company intends to vigorously defend this case. At this time, notwithstanding the.

Aearly stages of these legal proceedmgs and the drfﬁculty in predicting final outcomes, management belreves that the ultrmate

resolutron of these claims will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated. financial position of the Company. -

[b]. A customer of one of the Company’s publicly traded subsrdlarles, Intier, is requestmg reimbur sement for warranty costs as well

as . addmonal expenses ‘which:it expects to incur as a result-of a voluntary customer satrsfacuon based recall of-a product which.

forms part of a moduyle supphed by, Intier to the customer. The product in question is supplred to lntrer by another large supplrer
that Intier was directed to use by its customer. The customér has claimed that the warranty and futuré recall costs could aggregate
up. to $42 million. Based on Intier's investigations to date, Intier does not believe that it has any liability for this claim and that
any liability that it may become subject to, if it is established that the product is defectrve, wili be recoverable from the supplier
of the product, although Intier cannot provide assurance that this will be:-the case.

[c} The Company and/or one of its subsidiaries were previously named as defendants in a number of class actions brought by plaintiffs
claiming compensatory and punitive damages in relation to unpaid work [forced/slave labour] performed by the plaintiffs during
World War II. All of these actions involved multiple named defendants. In November 2000, orders for Voluntary Dismissal with
Prejudice were entered in the District Court, District of New Jersey dismissing most of the class actions, including nine of ten
cases specifically naming the Company and/or its subsidiary. The defendants have filed a motion to dismiss the final case in
which the Company and its subsidiary have been named and the U.S. Government has filed a Statement of Interest based on
the slave labour and property settlements with the Austrian Government. As a result, the Company has assessed the current
status of the legal proceedings and believes the ultimate resolution will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated
financial position of the Company. '
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’[d] AIn‘the ordinary course of business activities, the Company may be contingently liable for litigation and claims with customers,
supphers and former employees Management believes that adequate provisions are recorded in the accounts where requlred
and when est1mable However, there can be no assurance that the: Company w1ll not incur-additional expense

. le)’ MEC is currently consrderrng a major redevelopment of its Gulfstream’ Park racetrack in Florrda [the Gulfstream Development 1.
-Should it proceed as currently contemplated, the Gulfstream Development would include a srmulcast pavilion; sports and : o
entertamment arena and a new turf club and grandstand In addttlon, there would be sromﬁcant modrﬁcatrons and enhancements ! i
“to the racetracks and stablé areas. If completed; the Gulfstream Development would. require the’ demolition of a substantial ’ ;
portlon of the current buildings and related structures, which include the Orandstand turf club and annex. The aggregate carrying
valueat December. 31, 2001 of the assets that would be demolished if the Gulfstream Development is completed is approx1mately
$23 million. If MEC decides to proceed with the Guifstieam Development and obtains the approval of its board of dlrectors,
L a reductron in the expected life of the ex1st1ng assets would occur and a write- down would be necessary

. ‘[a] Macna follows a corporate pohcy of functlonal and’ operattonal decentrahzatlon It conducts its autornottve operatxons through
’ d1v1510ns Wthl’l function as autonomous operatmg unifs.

Dur]ng 2001 the Company reorOamzed its automotwe operatrons along global product lines. Each automotrve systems 0roup o
provrcles full servrce systems rntegratlon in a spec1ﬁc vehicle area. T 1. R S AR

The Companys automotive operations are further segmented in the Companys mternal ﬁnancral reports along global product
- lines between pubhcly traded and wholly owned operations. ‘Thesegregation of. automotive operatxons between publtcly traded.

- and wholly owned recognizes the fact that in. the case of wholly owned operations, the Company’s Presideént and Chief Executive
Ofﬁcer -and executive management have direct responsibility for-the key operating, financing and resource, allocation decxsrons,
whereas in the case of publrcly traded opetatrons such responsrbrlrty has:been delegated to the public companys separate
board of’ drrectors and thetr executtve management

»_:x: = ) Accordanly, segment reportlnty has been restated to reflect the Company s Tew structure as follows

i Pubhc Automotive Operattons L S EEE
A ’ The Companys Pubhc Automotlve Operatlons include:

fig - Decoma Internatronal Inc..
Decoma [mcludlng 100% of Bestop] desrgns englneers and manufactures autornotlve exterior components and systems
" which include fascias [bumpers] front and rear end modules, plastic body panels, roof moduiles, exterior trim components,
seahng and greenhouse systems and lighting components for cars-and light trucks [including sport utility vehicles and
: mini- vans] Decoma has 43 manufacturing, engmeermt7 and product development facilities in Canada, the Umted States,
Mexico, - Germany, Belglum7 England and Japan.

) "[ii] IntlerAutomotlve Imc. : ’ . I . . ' o !

Intier is a global full service suppher 1nd 1ntegrator of attomotive interior and closure cornponents, systems and. modules o S
it directly supphes most of the major automobile manufacturers in the world through 64 manufacturing: facilities-[including -
... one joint venture facrhty w1th Magna Steyr] and 19 product development engineering and testing centres. [mcludmg one
}omt venture faclhty wrth Magna Steyr] in North Amerlca, Europe, Brazrl China and Japan.

[in] Tesma Internatlonal Inc. . : . . :
" Tesma is a global supplier of hlghly englneered engrne, transmission and fuellng systems and modules for’ the automotrve
1nclustry Tesma Has 22 manufacturmg facthtles and two research centres in North Amerlca, Europe and Asra

‘ o Lo Wholly Owned Automotlve Operatlons .
USRI The Companys Wholly Owned Automottve Operatrons 1nclude

L T ) ‘Magna Steyr - . . . . .
- Magna Steyr is an’ advanced develope1 and suppher of complete drivetrain technolog1es including four wheel/all-wheel -
‘drive systems and axle modules, and is the automotive industry’s leading independent assembler of low volume derivative
and specialty vehicles, Magna Steyr has 8 manufacturing and assembly facilities [incliding one )ornt venture facility with
‘Intier] and nine engmeerrng ‘and testing facilities [mcludmg one )omt venture facrhty w1th each of Intrer and the Metals
and Other Automotive Operattons] in Europe, lndra the United States and Mexico.

- [ii}- Metals and Other Automotlve operatlons . Lo - . b B

s Metals operations— The metals operations manufacture a comprehenswe range of metal body systems, components,
assemblies and imodules. The metals operations have 34 manufacturing facilities and 8 engmeermU 1nd testing facrlmes
[including one joint venture facility with Magna Steyr] in North America and Europe. i T
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e Other Automotwe opemtzons = Other automotive operations include the Company’s exterxor ‘and interior mirror systems
divisions. The Companys other automotive operations have 9 manufacturmg fac111t1es and 2 enOmeermg ‘and testmo
facrlmes in North Amerrca, South Amerlca and Europe '

. Magna Entertamment Corp. : . .
- L In addition to the Company s Automotive Operatmg Segments, the Company has-certain non “automotive operatxons held-

) throuOh its subsidiary, MEC."MEC is the leading owner and éperator-of thoroughbred racetracks in the United States, based
on revernue, and a leading suppher, via simulcasting, of live" racing content to the inter- track, off-track and-account wagering
rrnrkets MEC curren‘dy operates. erght thouroughbred racetracks, one standardbred. racetrack and one gr eyhound racetrack

- és viell as the sxmulcast wagering Venues at these tracks. In ‘addition, MEC operates off-track betting facilities and a national’
S - account wagering’ busmess named “XpressBet“‘” which permits customers to place wagers by telephone and over the Internet '
on horse races at up to 65 racetracks in North Amerlca - ’

Year ended December 31, 2001

Depreciation Interest Fixed Fixed
Total and (income) - Operating " asset .. assets,
sales amortization expense, net income additions - - net :
Public Automotive Operations )
Decoma International Inc. . ' . $ 1,885 $ 83 $ .28 $ 118 $ .68 $ 488
Intier Automotive Inc. 3,268 86 19 ‘81 88 © 404
Tesma Internanonal Inc. 791 34 2 74 80 246
‘Wholly Owned Automotive Operations v
Magna Steyr 1,510 52 21 31 91« 344 o
, Metals and Other Automotive Operations 3,165 112 (3) 365. : 98 . 813 . . ;
‘ Corporate and other (i), (iii) - (112) 32 . (65) 180 61 . 725 o
. Total Automotive Operatrons ‘ 10,507 - o 399 2 - ' 649 " 486 »3,’0’20‘
MEC G L 519 23 39 575 i
Total.reportable segments . $11,026 . $. 399 $. 2 . % 872 $ 525 . 3,595 il
;- Current assets . ‘ ’ 3,558
o Investments, goodwill and other assets 753 !
L Consolidated total assets : : $ 7,906

Year ended December 31, 2000

) Depreciation Interest - Fixed Fixed :
o o : Total and (income)  Operating asset assets, :
h ; ‘ sales amortization expense, net income additions net’ f
Public Automotive Operations ’ . P
’ T Decoma International Inc. » $ 1,648 $ 67 $ 24 $ 94 $ 79 % 503 ‘
. % Intier Automotive Inc. 2,971 83 25 67 105 403
s Tesma International Inc. 785 30 1 94 58 212 )
Wholly Owned Automotive Operations ) o : ; ‘
_ , Magna Steyr 1,358 53 15 41 87 293
e S et Metals and Other Automotive Operations 3,479 110. 41 310 178 859. ,
T - Corporate and other (i), (iii) (142) 29 (93) 203 94 750 .
o " Total Automotive Operations S 10,099 " 372 ' 13 809 601 3,020
I . MEC (i) 414 2 52 569
Total reportable segments $10,513 $ - 372 $ 13 $ 811 $ 653 3,589
Current assets : ) 3,137
Investments, goodwill and other assets : - 682
Consolidated total assets ) $ 7,408
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Year ended December 31,1999

Depreciation Interest : : Fixed Fixed
Total " and (income)  Operating " asset assets,
sales amortization expense, net income additions net
Public Automotive Operations
Decoma International Inc. $ 1,490 3 61 $ 18 $ 60 $ 108 $ 437
Intier Automotive Inc. 2,835 73 23 49 124 389
Tesma International Inc. 685 26 2 72 43 196
Wholly Owned Automotive Operations ) )
Magna Steyr 1,403 53 16 - 60 . 117 287
Metals and Other Automotive Operations = ** 2,997 98 17 275 285 : 883 e
Corporate and other (i), (iii) . i (150) C 21, (60) 147 127 ) 739 v “
A Total Automotive Operations - . 9,260 332 . . 16 663 804 - . 2,931 ST
MEC (ii) ~ 187 ' ‘ 4 55 s67 .
Total reportable segments $ 9,447 $ 332 % 16 $ 667 $° 859 3,498 !
i Current assets } . . : ] 2,905 X
Investments, goodwill and other assets ) : ‘ ‘ . __ 630 . ‘
Consolidated total-assets I : - : : - $ 7,033 :
‘Notes

4 (i) " Included in Corporate and other operatmg income‘are mtercompany fees, rent and interest charged to the other automonve segments ¢

o (i) Included in MEC operating income for the y year ended December 31, 2004 is deprecmtxon and amortization ancl net mterest -expénse |

: - (mcome) of $26 million and $3 mlllron, respectlvely [2000 $20 million and $ml respecuvely, 1999 - $8 million and ($1) mrllron respectrvel}l]
B ., (i) During the year ended December 31, 2001, equrty mcome of$16 mrlhon is mcluded mn the Corporate and other segment [2000 $16 mllhon,'
a 1999 $15m|lhon] - e Rt LT e T et e

by In the year ended December 31 ZOOl sales to the Companys three largest customers amounted to 29%, 4% and 19%
: -'[2000 289%; 22% and 20%; 1999 32"/0 20% and 18%] Of total sales. ’ : .

el The followmg table shows certam mformatron wrth respect fo geographrc secmentatron

, : e ’ o . ‘ ) Year ended December 31, 2001

Total . Fixed assets, =~ Goodwill,

sales net : net

Canada $ 3,622 $. 1,042 $ 61

" United States . 3,007 T 1,182 70

! Furoland (i) , . : : 2,997 848 85
1 Mexico ’ 840 360 -
* Great Britain o 468 107 43
Other | ' ‘ : 92 . 56 -

) $11,026 $ 3,595 $ 259

Year ended December 31, 2000

I S Total Fixed assets, Goodwill,
P e ' sales net net
E Canada $ 3,801 $ 1,031 $ 58

R .. . United States . 2,836 1,147 70
i R - Euroland (i) : . 2,770 902 . 119
{ ) ‘Mexico 554 335 —
Great Britain ) 400 117 48

QOther 152 57 —

$10,513 $ 3,589 $ 295




o Year ended December 31, 1999
- . Total Fixed assets, = Goodwill,

' sales net net

_ +"Canada : : B - $ 3,376  $ 1,036 $ 77
" "l United States : 2,469 1,058 61
", Euroland (i) . ' 2,802 954 74
Mexico . 250 269 -
Great Britain 429 103 55
Other 121 78 -

: : ~ $ 9,447 $ 3,498 $ 267

- . b e o e et e+

) For purposes of cveocraphlc segmentatlon Euroland has been deﬁned as those European countues that have adopted the
Euro as therr cornmon currency '

: 'Wand am rtrzed over the remalnmg hfe of the debt. Under U S GAAP the galn or loss on translatlon is mcluded in lncome
"whenrtarlses.i'y e . R : [ ; ; . v‘ ' Lo T

The Companys subordlnated debentures are recorded n part as: debt and in part as shareholders equ1ty Tir add1t1on, the
Company s Preferred Securmes are recorded entrrely as shareholders equrty Under U GAAP the’ subordlnated debentures
-and Preferred SCCUI‘IUCS would be recorded entlrely as debt IR ;

1+ Th € Company has certam 1nterests m )omtly controlled entmes whrch have been proportronately consohdated m the Compa_ny s
'ﬁnancxal statemerits. For purposes of U.s. GAAP these interests would be accounted forby: the equ1ty method Net mcorne,
earnmgs ‘per share-and shareholders” equity under U S. GAAP are not rmpacted by the proportlonate consohdatron of these

. rnterests in }ozntly controlled entltres

] " “Design and engineering costs relmbursed as part of subsequent related parts productron plece price amounts, are e)tpensed as

mcurred unless.a contractual guarantee for rermbursement exrsts Design and development costs for moulds, diesrand other L
Sols that the Company does not éwn fand that will bé used in, and reirfibursed as part of the piece prrce amount for, subsequent

‘ related Parts, ploductron] arealso expensed asiiricurred unléss a contractual guarantéé for reimbursement exists or the supply
agreement provides the 1 non- cancelable right to use the'moulds, dies and other. tools. These polrcres were adopted for Canadian,

- GAAP.in ‘the year ended December 31,2000 on a retroactive basis. Under U.S. GAAP the above pollcres are apphed through a,

N cumulatlve catch-up ad]ustment as. of )anuary 1, 2000 i

] In Decernber 1999, the Umted States Securrnes and Exchance Comnnssron 1ssued Staff Accountmg Bullenn No 101, Revenue )
Recogmtron i Fmancral Staternents ‘Effective Ianuary 1,2000; the’ Company changed its method- of accountma under u. S. GAAP :
for in-house engineering servrce and toohng contracts provided.in conjuriction with subsequent assembly or productron .
r-*actrvmes which'are regarded as-a smgle arrangement Prev1ously, the-Company had recogmzed revenue from these engmeerlngv‘ .
- service and toolrng contra tage of c 1 i on. basrs Under the'new accountrng method adopted effectlve B

. —-"'Ianuary 1, 2000 for U. S. purposes, the' Cbmpany recognizes,revenue ‘and related cost of. Sales for these’ actrvmes over ‘the
: :gestlmated life of the assembly or productlon arrangement The effect of the change for the year ended Decernber 31 2000 was o

- Ato decrease et mcorne by $3 million [$0: 03 per “share]. : : o

:'For the year ended December-31, 2001 revenues and expenses under U.S. GAAP are lower by $142 mrllron [2000 - $61 nnlhon]
and $133 million [2000 - $58 million], respecttvely, as,a result of this difference between Canadian and U. s. GAAP.The net revenue
" reduction for the year erided December 31, 2001_1n3\.\des $79 million [2000 - $102 rnillion] in revenue that was included in- .

the cumulative effect adjustment as of January 1,2000. o

J e e -
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’ year endor specrﬁc annual average exchanoe rates as approprrate
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“The Company uses forercn exchange forward contracts to manage foreign’ exchange rrsk from its underlymg customer contracts
-, In_par trcular, the Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts for the sole purpose of hedgmo certain of its future commrtted
’ U.S. dollar, Canadran dollar and Euro outﬂows and inflows. Under’ Canadran "GAAP; gainis and losseson these contracts are '

’ ,and losses on ‘thiese contracts were also 1ccounted for as a component of the related hedged transactron under U S..GAAP. .

' Effectrve Ianuary 1, 2001 the Company adopted Statement of Frnancral Accountmg Standards No. 133 [“FAS 1337,
. Accountlnc' for- Derlvatwe Instruments and Hedgmg Actw1t1es as amended, which establishes accounting and reporting standards
. for deuvatrve mstruments, including cértain derivative, Instrumernts embedded in- other contracts, and for hedgmg act1vrt1es L
S FAS.133 requiresa company to recognize all of its derrvanve instruments, whether desxgnated in hedgmg relationships or’ not -
Con the balance sheet at fair value. The accountmg for changes in the fair valué [i.e., gains or losses] of a derivative instrument
- depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relatlonshlp FAS 133 estabhshes certam criteria’
to be met ‘in.order.to’ desrgnate a derrv"rtrve instrument as-a hedge and to deem a hedge as effectrve AR " c

- Effectrve Ianuary 1 2002 the Company unplernented a néw treasury management system that comphes w1th the new
documentation requrrements for hedge accounting. under FAS'133. Asa result, for the year ‘ended December 31; 2001 the - _
' Company s derwatlve portfolro is not eligible for hedge accountmv desprte the fact'that management consrders its portfolro to :

..do llar and Euro outﬂows and mflows

35 mxlllon has reversed through 1ncorne durmg 2001.

“ Under U s. GAAP, Statement 6f Financial AccountmCr Standards No. 57 “Forelgn Currency Tr anslatron”A[“FAS 52”] the Company

_The Company continues to measure compematron cost related to awards of stock optrons using the intrinsic value-based method

of accounting as prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25, Accountrng for Stock Issued to Employees as permrtted by Statement of -
Financial Accounting Standards Board No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatron”_ [“FAS 1237} Under APB.Opinion '

:No. 25, when a stock opnon is repurchased by the Company for a cash payment, the Company must record compensanon T S

-expense. Under Canadian GAAP, the payment is corlsldered a caprtal transaction and recorded in. reta1ned earnlngs

-In addition, under FAS 123, when stock options are 1ssued to non-employees: othe1 than duectors acting in their. capacrty asa’
dlrector, the Compﬂny must record compensatron expense. Options issued to directors for servrces provrded out:rde of their .. =
role as a director are recorded:as compensation expense by the Company. Under Canadlan GAAP, no compensatlon expense is

- recoomzed because the: optrons have no 1ntr1n51c value at the tlme of issuance.

In addition, under Emergmg [ssues Task Force 00-23 “lssues Related to the Accountmg for Stock Compensatxon for APB Oplmon

: No 25 and FASB lnterpretatron No. 44” when stock optrons are issued after January 18,2001 and are denommated in multiple -
currencres the Company must record compensation expense Under Canadian- GAAP no- compensatxon expense is recognrzedm

accounted for as a component of the telated hedged transacnon For periods up to and 1nclud1ng December 31, 2000, gams

be an, effectrve forergn currency. risk’ management tool and an economrc hedge of its future commrtted U S. dollar, Canadxan

AccordmOly, the Company has recorded a charge t0 income, of $26 mrllron in the year ended December 31 2001 for purposes-

“of reconcxlmg to U.S. GAAP. For: penods prior to and 1nclud1n0 December31, 2000, this amount. would have been’ deferred ‘ » .
- rand recorded asa component of the related hedged transactron under U. S GAAP In addrtron upon adoption of FAS 133, the o
L Company recorded a cumulative. ad;ustment to-other comprehenswe income of $9 mrllron as of Ianuary 1,2001, of which =

would only realize a-gain or loss on ‘the portion of the' currency translation ad)ustment included-as-a separate- component of -

~'the net mvestment in a foreign operatlon upor a sale or.complete, or substantrally complete quurdanon of the related 1nvestment S ' A
L Under FAS 52; Mo, gains or losses are recognrzed as a result of cap1t1l transactrons including the payment of drvrdends o : ’

' - Unde1 Canadran GAAP, the Company is réquired to. realize a gain or loss equal to' the appropriate portion of the cumul‘rnve -

g _translatxon adJustment account when there isa reducnon in the Companys net 1nvestment inga forelon subsrdrary resultrng

B

from the payment of drvldends S S

1 Effectrve December 31, 1998 the Company adopted the U S. dollar as its reporting currency. Prior to- thrs change the Canadran
! f.dollar had been used as the Companys reporting currency. 'Under Canadian GAAP, the Cormpany’s consohdated financial
L statements for all perrods presented through Decémber’ 31, 1998 were translated from Canadran dollars t6 U.S. dollars usrng
" thie;éxchange rate in effect at December 31,1998./Under U.S. GAAP, the consol1d1ted ﬁnanc1al statements for, perrods prlox to ) o 7
“ilke change in reportlno currency were transiated to-U.S. dollars using the current rate method wh1ch method uses specrﬂc




" [j] The following table presents neﬁ»incorr'lé and earnings per share information following U.S. GAAP:.

R . . oo Years ended December 31, el
ol ‘ L 4 : . _ S v 2001 . 2000. 1999 il
Net income under Canadian GAAP : ] $ 580 '$ 598 $ 419 o
Adjustments [net of related tax effects]|: :
Deferred gains (losses) on foreign currency
denominated debt [net of amortization] {a] (25) (17) 28
Additional interest expense on subordinated
debentures and Preferred Securities [b] (33) (32) (19)
Design and development costs [d] - - 5
In-house tooling and engineering [e] €)) (3) -
Compensation expense [f] (13) (1) —
Derivative instruments {g] . . (26) - -
Translation loss realized on the reduction
of-the net investment in a foreign subsidiary [h] (1) - -
. Net income under U.S. GAAP before cumulative catch-up adjustments 473 545 433
, - Cumulative adjustments for change in accounting for design )
and development costs and in-house tooling and engineering [d], [e] " -~ (69) —
Net income under U.S. GAAP 473 476 .. 433
‘ Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment : (93) (109) (131
Cumulative adjustment at January 1, 2001 for the change
in derivative instrument accounting [g] ' , (9) - -
Derivative instruments realized in net income . 5 - =
Comprehensive income under U.S. GAAP $ 376 $ 367 $ 302
Earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share under U.S.-GAAP:
. Basic : ) ) » )
Before cumulative catch-up adjustments . $ 591 $ 694 $ 552
Cumulative catch-up adjustments [d], [e] . — (0.88) —
After cumulative catch-up adjustment $  5.91 $  6.06 $ 5.52
Diluted
Before cumulative catch-up adjustments $ 5.67 $ 6.39 $ 470
Cuimnulative catch-up adjustments [d], [e] : — (0.75) —
After cumulative catch-up adjustment ) $ 5.67 $ 5.64 $ 4.70
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and in-house toolmg and engrneermg had been apphed durlng all perlods presented are as: follows

Proforma net income under U. S GAAP before cumulatrve catch- up ad)ustments and related dxluted earnings per Class A

Years ended December 31,

Subordmate Voting or Class B Share under U.S. GAAP as if the change in accounting pohc1es for design and development costs

2

(3)

2001 2000 1999
Net income under U.S. GAAP before cumulative catch- up ad)ustments
. As reported $ 473 545 433
Restatement for change in accounting policies for design and development costs - - (5)
Restatement for:in-house tooling and engineering — - (3)
Proforma $ 473 545 425
Earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share under U.S. GAAP
Basic -
As reported : : $ 591 6.94 5.52 .
Restatement for change in accounting policies for deswn and development costs — - (0.06)
Restatement for in- house toolmg and engmeermg - - (0.05) .
Prof01ma : $ 5.91 6.94 5.4]
Diluted
As reported $ 5.67 6.39 4.70
Restatement for change in accounting policies for design and development costs - - (0.05)
Restatement for in-house tooling and engineering ) — - (0.04)
- Proforma $  5.67 6.39 4.61
Years ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Basic earnings per Class A Subordinate Votmg or Class B Share —
After cumulative catch- up adjustments
Net income under U.S. GAAP $ 473 476 433
“ Average number of Class A Subordinate Voting and Class B Shares
outstanding during the year 80.1 78.5 78.5
Basic earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share $ 5.91 6.06 5.52
Diluted earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share —
After cumulative catch-up adjustments
Net income under U.S. GAAP $ 473 476 433
Adjustments [net of related tax effects]:
Interest, issue cost amortization and foreign exchange on 5% Convertlble
Subordinated Debentures 16 17
Interest, issue cost amortization and foreign exchange on 4.875% Convertible
Subordinated Debentures 29 23
$ 518 516 - 428
Average number of Class A Subordinate Voting and Class B Shares
outstanding during the year ' 80.1 78.5 78.5 .
5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures 4.4 6.5 6.3
4.875% Convertible Subordinated Debentures 6.5 6.5 6.3
Stock options 0.4 - -
91.4 91.5 91.1
Diluted earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting or Class B Share $ 5.67 5.64 4.70




[k] The following table indicates the srgmﬁcant items in the consohdated balance sheets that would have been affected had the
consolidated financial staterments beén prepared under Us. GAAP

December 31, 2001

In-house
Canadian Financial toolingand  Derivative U.S.
GAAP instruments engineering Instruments Other - GAAP
Other assets $ 292 $ 7 $ - $ - $ - $ 299
Other accrued liabilities $ 158 $ 7 $ 42 $ 46 $ 1 $ 254
Future tax liabilities, net $ 162 $ (17) $ (15 $ (18) $ - $ 114
Subordinated debentures 5 - $ 568 $ - $ - $ - $ 568
Debentures’ interest obligation $ 114 §(114) $ . - $ - 3 - $ -
Preferred Securities’ $ - $ 282 $ - & - $ - - $-282
Shareholders’ equity:
Capital stock $1,633 $ 11 s - $ - $ 152 $1,846 -
Preferred Securities : 277 (277) - - : - -
Other paid-in capital 463 (463) - - - -
Retained earnings 2,220 - (26) (26) 115 2,283
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (158) S 10 (1) (4) . (268) (421) :
Shareholders’ equity $4,485 $ (719) $ (27) $ (30) “$ ) $3,708 1
December 31, 2000
. In-house
Canadian Financial tooling and o us.
GAAP instruments engineering Other . GAAP
Other assets $ 205 $ 12 $ - B $ 217
Other accrued liabilities $ 119 $ 1l $ 29 R $ 159
Future tax liabilities, net $ 128 $ (19 $ (11) $ - § 98
Subordmated debentures $ _~’> $ 1,018 3 - $ - $1,018
Debentures interest oblrganon % 191 $ (191) $ . - s - 5 -
Preferred Securities $ - $ 282 3 - $ - % 282
" Minority interest $ 356 $  (69) § - $ - $ 287
Shareholders’ equity: '
Capital stock ; $1,443 $ - $ - $ 140 $1,583
Preferred Securities o277 277y . - C - - .
Other paid-in capital o ) 734 (73 - - - oL
Retained earnings’ v ) 1,789 4 (17) 129 1,905.
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ©(41) (13)' (1) (269) - (324) © -
Shareholders’ equity $4,202 $(1,020) $ (18) 5 - $3,164

m- _The Company does not recognize compensatlon expense for its outstandmg ﬁxed prrce stocl\ opnons Under U. S. GAAP, the
Company is requned to disclose compensation expense assummg compensation expense for the stock option plan had been
determined based upon the fair value at the grant date, consistent with-the methodology prescrrbed under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No 123 ‘Accounting for Stock Based Compensatlon

The fair value of stock options is estrmated at the date of grant usmg the Black Scholes option, prrcmo model with the following
weighted average assumptrons

Risk free interest rate 5%
Expected dividend yield ) 1.45%
Expected volatility . . . 24%
Expected time until exercise 4 - 7 years

The Black-Scholés option valuation model used by the Company to determine fair values was developed for use in es.tr‘mating
the fair value of freely traded options which are fully transferable and have rio vesting restrictions. In addition, this model requires
the input of highly subjective assumptions, including future stock price volatility and expected time until exercise. Because the
Company’s outstanding stock options have characteristics which are significantly different from those of traded options, and
because changes in any of the assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing
models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its stock options.




) For purposes of proforma drsclosures the Companys net income atmbutable to Class A Subordinate Voting and Class B Shares
and basic and diluted earnrngs per Class A Subordrnate Votlng or Class B Shares would have been:

Years ended December 31

2001 2000 1999
Proforma net income after cumulative catch-up adjustments attributable
to Class A Subordinate Voting and Class B Shares $ 469 § 467 $ 426
Proforma earnings per Class A Subordinate Voting
ot Class B Share after cumulative catch-up adjustments
Basic $ 5.86 $ 594 $ 543
Diluted $_5.63 $ 554 $ 462

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year are as follows:

Years ended December 31, -
2001 2000 1999

Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year $ 993 $ 10.54 $  9.85

Under Staff Accountmg Bu[Ietln 74, the Company is requrred to drsclose certain mforrnatron related to new: accountrng .

o dm
© standards whlch have not yet been adopted due to delayed effectrve dates

Canadian GAAP standards '

In August 2001 the CICA issued Handbool\ Sectlon 1581 Busrness Combmatrons” [“CICA 1581”] and Handbook Sectron 3062,
: “Goodwrll and Other Intanerble Assets” [“CICA 3062”] CICA'1581 requrres that-all business combrnatrons mmated after

“ Jane 30, 2001 be. accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. In addition, CICA 1581 provrdes new- cr1ter1a o

. .:determrne when an acqurred 1ntangrble asset should be recognlzed separately from goodwrll :

'A“.vCICA 3062 requlres the apphcatlon of the nosi- amortrzatron and 1mpa1rment rules:for exrstmg goodwﬂl and 1ntang1ble assets, 5
* .. which meet the criterid for-indefinite life, begmmng wrth fiscal years starting aftér December 15, 2001 Inall cases, the standard
, must be adopted atthe beginning ofa ﬁscal year. :

In December 2001; the CIcA amended Handbook, Sectlon 1650 “Forergn Currency Translatlon” [“CICA 1650”] The most’
ot 10mﬁcant change under the new recommendatrons is fo ehmmate the deferral and" arnortrzatron method for unrealized translatron
-~ -gains'and losses on'non-ctirrent monetary assets and lrabrhtles The arnendments to CICA 1650 are effective for ﬁscal years

; begmmng o or aftef Ianualy 1,2002.

“»In Novermber 2001, the CICA issued- Handbook Section 3870 “Stock Based Cornpensatron and Other Stock Based Payments
</ [“CICA 3870”]. CICA 3870 requrres ‘that certam types.of stock- based compensation arrangements be accounted for at farr
* value- after ]anuary 1, 2002 meg rise to compensatron expense . .

- vAlthough the Company is. currently revrewrng the-new CICA pronouncements, the 1mpact if any, of these pronouncements on
: brts consohdated ﬁnancral statements has not been determmed : L

_.US GAAPstandards ) o ‘ R ’ ’ .- S
e L-;In ]uly 2001, the Fmancral Accountmg Standards Board [“FASB”] issued Statements of Financial Accountrng Standards No. 141
** “Business Combifations” and -No. 142; “Goodwill and Other Intanmble Assets These standards reﬂect the sarne accountrng
) requrrements as CICA 1581 arid CICA 3062, respectrvely ’ : . S
L In addition, durinig 2001, FASB 1ssued Statements of Financial Accountmg Stanidards No. 143, “Accouinting for Asset Retirement
',fObhgatlons” [“FAS 1437} and No. 144, “Accountrng for the Impairment or Disposal of Long- Lived Assets” [“FAS’ 144”]
FAS 143 1equ1res that legal oblrgatrons arising from the retirement of tangible long-lived assets, mcludmg obligations 1dent1ﬁed
B lby a company upon acqursltlon and construction and during the operating life of a long-lived asset, be recorded and amortized
el over the.asset’s useful life usmo a systematic and ratronal allocation method FAS 143 is effective. for. fiscal years beginning after - - .
* June 15,2002, - : :
FAS 144, Whrch supersedes FAS 121, is effective for fiscal years begmnrn g after December 15, 2001. FAS 1>44‘pr0vides guidance
* on differentiating between assets held for sale and held for disposal other than by sale. Consistent with FAS 121, FAS 144 continues
‘to require the same approach for recognizing and measuring the i 1mpa1rment of assets to be held and used.

vAlthough the Company is currently reviewing the new FASB pronouncements, the impact, if any, of these pronouncements on
its consolxdated financial statements’ has not been determined.

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s method of presentation.

0 o




SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND SHARE INFORMATION

Financial Summary

[U.S. dollars in millions, except per share figures]

Years ended Five Month Period
December 31, ended December 31, Years ended July 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992

Operational Data
Total Sales $11,026 $10,513  $9,447 $3,396 ] $6,006  $5,024  $3,826 $3,133 32,538 $1,881 $1,683
Net income 580 598 419 114 301 386 207 204 153 92 64
Basic earnings per

Class A or Class B Share $6.57 § 7.04 § 494 $ 1.33 $ 393 $532 $3.17 $335 $273 $202 %190
Diluted earnings per

Class A or Class B Share (4) $6.20 $ 6.44 § 4.65 $ 1.31 $ 3.7t §$499 $ 305 $ 332 %253 $ 167 § 136
Depreciation and amortization 399 372 332 120 192 147 121 102 90 81 78
Cash flow from operations (3) 1,029 655 713 143 359 453 198 298 244 220 155
Cash dividends paid per

Class A or Class B Share $136 $ 1.24 $ 111 S 0.22 $08 $074 $071 $071 $053 $036 $ 013
Average number of Class A

and Class B Shares outstanding (thousands) 80,131 78,546 78,490 78,353 71,909 70,369 62,152 61,034 55,973 45,443 33,625
Financial Position
Total assets 7,906 7,408 7,033 6,116 5,551 3,447 2,836 2,008 1,596 1,094 1,002
Fixed assets less accumulated depreciation

and amortization 3,595 3,589 3,498 2,842 2,417 1,353 981 852 703 564 576
Warcking capital 1,297 1,054 663 564 716 763 986 360 232 140 67
Capital expenditures 525 653 859 370 638 471 216 193 148 55 36
Long-term debt 358 459 461 386 328 163 186 108 68 110 209
Shareholders’ equity 4,485 4,202 3,933 3,334 3177 2,112 1,785 1,077 862 552 386
Equity per Class A or Class B Share $53.81 §$53.48 $50.08 $42.55 $40.55 $29.67 $25.64 $17.53 $14.18 $11.05 $ 9.64
Long-term debt to shareholders’ equity ratio 0.08:1 0.11:1  0.12:1 0.12:1 0.10:1  0.08:1  0.10:3 0.10:1  0.08:1 0.20:1  0.54:1

(1) The figures presented for the year ended December 31, 1999, the five month period ended December 31, 1998 and the years ended July 31, 1998, 1997, 1996 and 1995
have been restated to reflect the Company’s new accowinting policies with respect to preproduction costs.

(2) All amounts up to and including the five month period ended December 31, 1998, have been restated in U.S. dollars, in accordaince with accounting principles generally
accepted in Canada, using the December 31, 1998 exchange rate of Cdn$1.5305 per U.S.$1.00.

(3) Cash flow front operations for the years ended July 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 liave been restated to exclude the effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
as required by new accounting recommendations issued by The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA").

(4) The figures presented for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, the five month period ended Decemmber 31, 1998 and the years ended July 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996
have beert restated to reflect the adoption of the CICA's new recommendations for the presentation and disclosure of diluted carnings per share (see note 2 in the consolidated
Jinancial statements).
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND SHARE INFORMATION

Supplementary Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

{U.S. dollars in millions, except per share figures/

Year Ended December 31, 2001 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Total
Sales $2,863 $2,817 $2,517 $2,829 $11,026
Gross Margin on automotive sales 478 527 427 487 1,919
Net Income 147 209 105 119 580
Earnings per share: ’

Basic $ 1.72 $ 2.51 $ 1.05 $ 1.32 $ 6.57

Diluted 1.57 2.24 1.02 1.28 6.20
Year Ended December 31, 2000 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Total
Sales $2,808 $2,610 $2,354 $2,741 $10,513
Gross Margin on automotive sales 487 471 403 474 1,835
Net Income 146 170 162 120 598
Earnings per share:

Basic $ 1.71 $ 2.03 $ 1.91 $ 1.38 $ 7.04

Diluted 1.57 1.84 1.74 6.44

Share Information

Price Range of Shares — Canada

1.28

The Class A Subordinate Voting Shares (“Class A Shares”) are
listed and traded in Canada on The Toronto Stock Exchange

(“TSE”) and in the United States on The New York Stock

Exchange (“NYSE”). The Class B Shares are listed and traded in

Canada on the TSE. As of March 14, 2002 there were 951

registered holders of Class A Shares and 92 holders of Class B

Shares.

Distribution of Shares

Class A Class B
Canada 86.11% 99.16%
United States 13.87% .84%
Other .02% -
Dividends

Dividends paid on the Magna Class A Subordinate Voting
and Class B Shares for the calendar year 2001 were paid on each
of March 16, June 15, September 17 and December 14, 2001 at

the rate of U.S.30.34 per share.

Dividends on the Class A Subordinate Voting and Class B

Shares, w!

hen payable to holders who are non-residents of

Canada, are generally subject to withholding tax at a rate of

25 percent (25%) unless reduced, according to the provisions of
the applicable tax treaty. Currently, the reduced rate applicable
to dividends paid to a resident of the United States is generally

15 percent (15%;).

The following table sets forth, for the fiscal periods indicated, the high and
low sale prices of the Class A Shares and Class B Shares and volumes of Class
A Shares and Class B Shares traded, in each case as reported by the TSE.

CLASS A (TSE) ($CDN)

Year Ended
December 31, 2001

Year Ended
December 31, 2000

Quarter Volume  High Low Volume  High Low
st 17,585,359 75.00  60.50 23,615,597 72.25 55.10
2nd 11,855,431 95.12 70.41 17,965,031 7970 56.50
3rd 17,494,737 106.25 69.95 12,695,894 76.75 62.50
4th 14,231,693 104.00 78.71 19,059,692 70.75 57.40

CLASS B (TSE) ($CDN)

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000

Quarter Volume  High Low Volume  High Low
st 3,285 90.00 82.00 1,873 83.00  69.00
2nd 1,095 97.00  83.00 1,932 83.00 77.060
3vd 680 103.00 95.00 2,195 89.00 77.00
4th 340 101.74  93.00 1,465 98.00  83.00

Price Range of Shares — United States

The following table sets forth, for the fiscal periods indicated, the high and
low sale prices of the Class A Shares and volumes of Class A Shares traded, as
reported on the NYSE.

CLASS A (NYSE) ($U.S.)

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
Quarter Volume  High Low Volume  High Low
Ist 9,677,200 49.47 40.44 15,567,900 50.31 38.19
2nd 11,499,700 62.37 44.64 9,182,300 52.88 39.63
3rd 20,924,600 69.00 45.50 6,604,100 51.50 41.75
4th 15,199,900 65.82 50.14 9,173,800 47.06 37.82
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OFFICE LOCATIONS FOR MAGNA AND ITS MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES AND GROUPS

Corporate Offices

Magna International Inc.
337 Magna Drive

Aurora, Ontario

Canada L4G 7K1
Telephone: (905) 726-2462

www.magna.com

Group Offices

Magna International of America, Inc.

600 Wilshire Drive

Troy, Michigan

USA 48084

Telephone: (248) 729-2400

Magna Europa

Magna-Strasse 1

A-2522 Oberwaltersdorf
Austria

Telephone: 011-43-2253-600-0

M1 Developments Inc.
455 Magna Drive

Aurora, Ontario

Canada L4G 7A9
Telephone: (905) 713-6322

Intier Automotive Inc.
521 Newpark Boulevard
Newmarket, Ontario
Canada L3Y 4X7
Telephone: (905) 898-5200
www.intier.com

Closure Systems

521 Newpark Boulevard
Newmarket, Ontario
Canada L3Y 4X7
Telephone: (905) 898-2665

Seating Systems

United States

19700 Haggerty Road
South Building

Livonia, Michigan

USA 48152

Telephone: (734) 591-4440
Europe

Ostring 19,

D-63762 Grossostheim,

Germany
Telephone: 011-49-6026-992-100

Interior Systems

United States

27300 Haggerty Road, Suite F-10
Farmington Hills, Michigan,
USA 48331

Telephone: (248) 553-9500

Europe

Bircholt Road, Parkwood
Industrial Trading Estate
Maidstone, Kent,

England ME15 9XT

Telephone: 011-44-162-268-6311

Magna Steyr

Liebenauer Hauptstrasse 317
A-8041 Graz, Austria
Telephone: 011-43-316-404-0
www.magnasteyr.com

North America

600 Wilshire Drive

Troy, Michigan

USA 48084

Telephone: (248) 729-2400

Decoma International Inc.
50 Casmir Court

Concord, Ontario

Canada L4K 4J5
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Irn Ghai
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Telephone: 011-49-7153-65-0
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Telephone: {248) 729-2500
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Telephone: {905) 669-9000
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Canada L4K 5R8
Telephone: (905) 417-2100
www.tesma.conr
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Amsterdamer Strasse 230
D-50735 Kéln

Germany

Telephone: 011-49-221-976-5230

United States

1807 East Maple Road
Troy, Michigan

USA 48083

Telephone: {248) 524-5300

Europe

Tesma Allee 1

8261 Sinabelkirchen

Austria

Telephoner 011-43-3118-2055-140

United States

23300 Haggerty Road, Suite 200
Farmington Hills, Michigan
USA 48335

Telephone: (248) 888-5550

Magna Mirror Systems
5030 Kraft Avenue, Suite A
Grand Rapids, Michigan
USA 49512

Telephone: (616) 554-3135

Europe

Industriestrasse 3

D-97959 Assamistadt

Germany

Telephorne: 011-49-6294-909-0
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337 Magna Drive
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Canada L4G 7K1
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Telephone: (626) 574-7223

2001 Annual Report
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The Secretary, Magna International Inc., 337 Magna Drive, Aurora, Ontario, Canada L4G 7K1 or www.magna.com
Copies of financial data and other publicly filed documents are available through the internet on the Systemn for Electronic Document
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PRODUCT AND SERVICES DIRECTORY

MAGNA STEYR

D

ECOMA INTERNATIONAL INC.

INTIER AUTOMOTIVE INC.

Advanced R&D Concept Development
Total Vehicle Program Management
Systems Sequencing and Logistics
Complete Niche Vehicle Assembly

Complete Vehicle Manufacturing
Complete Space Frames

Full Frames

Sub-Assemblies
Body-In-White

Painting

Vehicle Assembly

CKD Manufacturing

EpoBERaE

OEM Engineering and Complete Vehicle and
Systems Capability
B Concepts and Designs
—Advance Development
—Feasibility Studies
& Development
~Technical Caleulation and Simulation
—Prototype Building
—Rig & Vehicle Testing
Noise and Vibration Testing
Safety Engineering
Production Planning
Technical Software Development

ango

ivetrain Components and Systerns
Transfer Cases
Power Take Off Units
Axle/Differential Drives
Differential Locks
Plate/Viscous Couplings
{controlled/uncontrolied)

HEEADY

Engine Systems
B Mass Balancing Systems

Axle Modules
@ 4x4 Vehicle Modules

COSMA INTERNATIONAL

Chassis Systems

Crossmember Assemblies
Engine Compartment Panels
Radiator Supports

Shock Towers

Transmission Supports
Engine Cradles

Instrument Panel Reinforcements
Suspension Systems

Control Arms

Frame Rails

Sub-Assemblies

HNpOocoDBEes0a

Stampings

Arm Rest Supports

Seat Belt Anchor Plates
Instrument Pancl Supports
Bumper Beams

Door Intrusion Systemns

Ol Strainers

Heat Shields

Brake Backing Plates

Master Cylinder Vacuum Shells
Friction Welded Bearing Retainers
Motor Compartment Rails

ERERODO0DDBEEA

Body Systemns

Floor Pans

Body Side Assemblies

Door/Hood/Deck Assemblies

Roof Panels

Fender/Quarter Panels

Tailgate/Liftgate Assemblies
Medium/Large Stamping Dies/Class A Dies
A, B, Cand D Pillars

oopoDEanA

Finishing

& E-Coating

B2 Powder Coating

2 Aluminum Heat Treating

Design and Engineering

Complete CAD/CAM Capabilities
Complete Body Engineering
Complete FEA

Prototypes

Concept Vehicles

Laser Trimming/Welding
Complete Testing
{Component/Module/System)

ooRpEBe0R

Metalforming Technologies
Hydroforming
Stamping

Roll Forming
Extrusions

gooco

Front and Rear Bumper Systems

gpaan

Spoilers and Grilles (MIC, Paint or Bright}
GOP Moldings & Nerf Strips

Energy Management Systeras

Front & Rear Bumper Fascias

Complete Front & Rear End Modules

Greenhouse Systems

=]
@
2
=
=]

Backlite Moldings

Belt & Windshield Moldings
Pillar Appliques

Door Surround Moldings
Roof Drip Moldings

Cowl Screens

Window Surround Module

Body Side Systems

C BEBERODDAER

EEDDREOADEBOR

[eR=Rsguls]

T O ODABAEY OB

Body Side Moldings & Claddings
Wheel Opening Moldings
Running Boards

Rocker Panels

Stone Guards/Mud Flaps
Vertical Body Panels

Front & Truckside Fenders

Door Panels

Quarter Panels

ighting Systems

Composite Headlamps
Projector Headlamps

H.I.D Headlamps

Rear Combination Lamps
Rear Lighting Appliques
LED Tail Lamps

Fog Lamps

Cornering Lamps

Signal Lamps

CHMSLs

Backup Lamps

Accessory Lighting

World Homologated Lamps
Modular Lighting Assemnblies

aling Systems
Door Primary/Secondary Seals
Inner & Outer Belt Seals
Glass Run Channels
Sliding Door, Pop-Out Window &
Liftgate Seals
Complete Convertible Sealing Systems

olymeric Glazing Systems

Bacldites & Quarter Windows
Decklid Appliques

Headlamp & Tail Lamp Lenses
Fixed Vent Windows

Sunroofs, T-Tops & Targa Roofs

Top Systems

o
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Soft Tops

Hard/Soft Tonneau Covers
Hard Tops

Light Bars

Vehicle Enhancement Packages

]
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Touneau Covers
Aerodynamic Enhancements
Brush Guards

MAGNA MIRROR SYSTEMS

Products

]
B
]
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Exterior Mirrors

Interior Mirrors

Information Mirrors

Extendable Trailer Towing Mirrors

Electric Technologies

@
=]
=]
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Power Actuators
Powerfold Actuators
Power Extend Actuators
Memory Powerpacks

Advanced Technologies

0 oopoR

Multiplex and Smart Power Actuators
Sclf-Dimming Glass Technology
Plastic Glass and Prisms

Lens Mirror Technologies

Safety Mirrors with Lighting &
Warning Systems

Motortess Power Actuators
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fnterior Systems.
Cockpit Systems

E
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Car,
Car
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Integration of Safety and Electronic Systems
Complete Interior Integration

Seating Systems
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idewall Systems

ating Hardware Systems

Cockpit Modules
Insttument Panels
Leather Covered IP
Consoles

Floor Consoles

Glove Boxes

Air Duct Systems

PSIR Doors

Assembly & Sequencing
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verhead Systermns

Complete Overhead System =
Headliner Substrates

Sun Visors o
Pillar Trim

Consoles

Assembly & Sequencing

Door Trim Modules

Hard Trim

Door & Side Panels

Package Trays o
Trim Hardware Module

Assembly & Sequencing

pets, Acoustic and
g0 Management Systems

Magna Engineering Center (MEC)
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Design, concept & development capability
for complete interior

Latest CAD systems linked by

secured network

Technical Hlustration

Program Management

Seven design offices close to our
customers (Germany, Austria, UK.}

Magna Automotive Testing (A2LA)

Safety, Structural, Fatigue, and Durability
Testing for Body and Interior Systems
Vehicle Ride Simulation, Noise, NVH and
Road Load Data Acquisition

Computer Aided Engineering, FEA,
Fatigue, Factory Simulation

Assembly and Test Equipment

Advanced Car Technology Systems (ACTS)
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Development of modular and functional
systems, vehicle structures, Occupant
Restraint Systems and Pedestrian
Protection Systems

Testing of safety, durability and
environmental simulation

TESMA INTERNATIONAL INC.

Needle Felt Punch Carpets

and Tufting

Floor Panels

Trunk Trim

Loadspaces

Footrests

Engine Compartment Insulation
Complete Interior Acoustic
Wheelhouse Liners

Modular Seat Assemblies

(Cut & Sew/Mold-In-Place*™)
Integrated Restraint Seats
Integrated Airbag Restraints
Integrated Child Safety Seats
Occupant Sensing

In-Vehicle Stowable Seating
Heavy Truck Sleeper Beds

Head Restraints and Armrests
{Cut & Sew/Mold-Tn-Place™")
Roof Integrated Head Restraints
Trim Covers

Laminated Trim

Molded Polyurethane Foam Pads
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Adjusters (2-4-6 way manual)

Seat Height Adjusters

EZ Entry Mechanisms

Fold & Tumble™ Mechanisms

Recliners (Disc Recliner/Pawl & Sector/

Adjuster Integrated/Fold Flat Mechanisms)

Specialty Latches m

Seat Frames o)

Wire Frames =]
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Spring Suspension Systems
Risers

Folding Load Floor Panels
Sliding Cargo Load Floor

sure and Latching Systems
Stde Door, Sliding Door,
Front and Rear Latches

Seat Latches

Strikers

Mechanical Cable Assemblies
Plastic Handles

Door Handle Assemblies
Latch Actuators

ss Moving Systems

Cable & Drum - Single and Dual Rail
Arm & Sector

Quarter System

Rear Window Closure Systems

System Module Technologies
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Power Sliding Doors
Power Liftgates

Door Modules

Trim Hardware Module
Integrated Closure Systems
Power Load Space Systems
Midgate Systems

Electro-Mechanical Systems
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Actuator Assemblies

Wiper Systems

Electrical Motors

Obstacle Detection Systems

Engine Systems

Front End Accessory Drive Systems
Front Cover Modules

Engine Oil Pumps

Water Pumips

Cooling Management Systems
Over-running Alternator Decouplers
Cam Covers

Variable Camshaft Phasing Systems
Engine Oil Pan Assemblies
Accessory and Timing Drive Tensioners
Steel, Phenolic & Aluminum Pulleys
Engine Balance Shaft Assemblies
Tubular Drive Shaft Assemblies
Idler Assemblies

ransmission Systems

Torque Converter Damper Assemblies

Qil Pump Assemblies

Flow-Formed Clutch Housings
Die-Formed Oil Pan Assemblies
Aluminum Die Cast & Machined

Case Extensiony

Servo Piston & Accumulator Assemblies
Cam Die-Formed Transmission Shells

Roll Die-Farmed Drive Hubs & Housings
Fineblanked Products, Separator Plates
and Backing Plates

Flexplates

Reactions Shells

CVT - Pistons, Plungers & Clutch Housings
Automatic Transmission Cluich Housings
& Shaft Assemblies

Fuel Systems

Fuel Caps

Fuel Filler Inlets & Tubes

Capless Filler Systems

Stainless Steel Fuel Filler Pipes
Stainless Steel Fuel Tank Assemblies
Vent Tubes







